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In the 
SUPREME COURT 

of the 
STATE OF IDAHO 

Reed J. Taylor, 

Plaintiff-Appellant, 

v. 

AlA Services Corporation, et al, 

Defendants-Respondents. 

CLERK'S RECORD ON APPEAL 

VOLUME IX 

Appealed from the District Court of the 
Second Judicial District of the State of Idaho, 

in and for the County of Nez Perce 

The Honorable Jeff M. Brudie 

Supreme Court No. 36916-2009 

RODERICK C. BOND 
ATTORNEY FOR PLAINTIFF-APPELLANT 

GARY D. BABBITT 
ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANT AlA CORP-RESPONDENTS 



IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT OF THE STATE 
OF IDAHO, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF NEZ PERCE 

REED J. TAYLOR, a single person, 

P lainti ff-Counterdefendant -Appellant­
Cross Respondent, 

v. 

AIA SERVICES CORPORATION, an Idaho 
corporation; AlA INSURANCE, INC., an Idaho 
corporation; R. JOHN TAYLOR and CONNIE 
TAYLOR, individually and the community 
property comprised thereof, BRIAN FREEMAN, 
a single person; JOLEE DUCLOS, a single person 
and JAMES BECK and CORRINE BECK, 

and 

Defendants-Counterclaimants­
Respondents-Cross Appellants-Cross 
Respondents, 

CROP USA INSURANCE AGENCY, INC., 
an Idaho corporation; 

Defendant-Respondent-Cross Respondent, 

and 

401(k) PROFIT SHARING PLAN FOR THE 
AIA SERVICES CORPORATION, 

Intervenor-Cross Appellant-Cross 
Respondent. 
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Gary D. Babbitt ISB No. 1486 
D. John Ashby ISB No. 7228 
HAWLEY TROXELL ENNIS & HAWLEY LLP 
877 Main Street, Suite 1000 
P.O. Box 1617 
Boise, ID 83701-1617 
Telephone: (208) 344-6000 
Facsimile: (208) 342-3829 
Email: gdb@hteh.com 

j ash@hteh.com 

Attorneys for AlA Services Corporation, 
AlA Insurance, Inc., and CropUSA Insurance 
Agency, Inc. 

00 (ft 10 APllO 10 
PATTY O. WEEKS 

CLERK OF ~)J~ D/1ST. CA~jU' T 

~ 
/ 

IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE SECOND mDICIAL DISTRICT 

OF THE STATE OF IDAHO, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF NEZ PERCE 

REED 1. TAYLOR, a single person, 

Plaintiff, 
vs. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

AlA SERVICES CORPORATION, an Idaho ) 
corporation; AlA INSURANCE, INC., an ) 
Idaho corporation; R. JOHN TAYLOR and ) 
CONNIE TAYLOR, individually and the ) 
community property comprised thereof; ) 
BRYAN FREEMAN, a single person; JOLEE ) 
DUCLOS, a single person; CROP USA ) 
INSURANCE AGENCY, INC., an Idaho ) 
Corporation; and JAMES BECK and ) 
CORRINE BECK, individually and the ) 
community property comprised thereof, ) 

Defendants. 
) 
) 
) 

------------------------------) 
AlA SERVICES CORPORATION, an Idaho ) 
corporation; and AlA INSURANCE, INC., an ) 

Case No. CV-07-00208 

AFFIDAVIT OF JOHN TAYLOR IN 
OPPOSITION TO MOTION FOR 
PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION 

1550 
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Idaho corporation, 

Counterc1aimants, 
vs. 

REED J. TAYLOR, a single person, 

Counterdefendant. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

------------------------------) 
I, JOHN TAYLOR, duly swear and state: 

1. This affidavit is based upon my personal knowledge. 

2. I am the President and CEO of AlA Services Corporation and AlA Insurance, Inc. 

I have read the motion and memorandum of law for preliminary injunction submitted by Reed J. 

Taylor. 

3. The injunction seeks all commission and related receivables of AlA Services and 

AlA Insurance and the original of the promissory note of Washington Bank properties payable to 

the order of Universal Life Insurance Company along with barring AlA Services and AlA 

Insurance for encumbering or selling or transferring any assets. 

4. The financial effect of depositing all the commissions and receivables and the 

promissory note payable to the order of Universal Life and the Registry of Court will force AlA 

Services and AlA Insurance out of business. 

5. This requested injunction will strip all income producing assets from AlA 

Services and AlA Insurance. This means AlA Services and AlA Insurance will not be able to 

pay its bills in the ordinary course of business, pay salaries, and pay taxes. Many of the 

employees have long tenure with the Company of fifteen and twenty years. The collective 

knowledge and information which is invaluable to an insurance company will be forever lost, not 

to mention the loyalty that these employees have shown. Moreover, the injunction will have an 

AFFIDAVIT OF JOHN TAYLOR IN OPPOSITION TO MOTION FOR PRELIMINARY J 551 
INJUNCTION - 2 
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immediate and severe affect on the 401 (k) plan. The 401 (k) plan has 92,500 shares of preferred 

stock with a market value of $8.54 per share. This means that the 401 (k) plan will be devalued 

by approximately $1 million with the entry of the preliminary injunction affecting many past and 

present employees. 

6. AlA Services and AlA Insurance has the option of filing a petition for Chapter 11 

Bankruptcy with the u.S. Bankruptcy Court in the event the preliminary injunction is entered. 

This alternative would have long term adverse affects on AlA Insurance and AlA Services and 

can be viewed only as the last resort. 

7. In my opinion, this preliminary injunction is not designed to protect Reed Taylor 

but to destroy AlA Services and AlA Insurance. 

AFFIDAVIT OF JOHN TAYLOR IN OPPOSITION TO MOTION FOR PRELIMINARY l552-
INJUNCTION - 3 
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STATE OF NEW YORK 

County of.t//,¢J (\)'vA..... 

) 
) a!t. 
) 

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN before me this ~ d.Q:y ofDeccsmber. 2007. 

FRANKLIN RODRIGIJEZ 
NQtary Public • Stale of N@w York 

NO. 01 R061.!!00b4 
QIJOlifled In New furl<: County 

My CommlstlOn ExPlf9S 

AFFlD.A VIT OF .JOHN TA YLOR.lN OPPOSITION TO MonON :FOR P:RELIMINARY 
lNJUNcrION - 4 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that on this ~ day of December, 2007, I caused to be served a 
true copy of the foregoing AFFIDAVIT OF JOHN TAYLOR IN OPPOSITION TO MOTION 
FOR PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION by the method indicated below, and addressed to each of 
the following: 

Roderick C. Bond 
Ned A. Cannon 
Smith, Cannon & Bond PLLC 
508 Eighth Street 
Lewiston, ID 83501 
[Attorneys for Plaintiff] 

Paul R. Cressman, Jr. 
Ahlers & Cressman PLLC 
999 Third Avenue, Suite 3100 
Seattle, W A 98104-4088 
[Attorneys for Plaintiff] 

David A. Gittins 
Law Office of David A. Gittins 
P.O. Box 191 
Clarkston, W A 99403 
[Attorney for Defendants Duclos and Freeman] 

Michael E. McNichols 
Clements Brown & McNichols 
321 13th Street 
Lewiston, ID 83501 
[Attorneys for Defendant R. John Taylor] 

Jonathan D. Hally 
Clark & Feeney 
P.O. Box 285 
Lewiston, ID 83501 
[Attorneys for Defendants Connie Taylor, James Beck 
and Corrine Beck] 

__ U.S. Mail, Postage Prepaid 
Hand Delivered 

__ Overnight Mail 
__ Telecopy 
-K-Email 

__ U.S. Mail, Postage Prepaid 
Hand Delivered 

__ Overnight Mail 
__ Telecopy 
~Email 

__ U.S. Mail, Postage Prepaid 
Hand Delivered 

__ Overnight Mail 
__ Telecopy 
--K- Email 

"-
__ U.S. Mail, Postage Prepaid 

Hand Delivered 
__ Overnight Mail 
__ Telecopy 
~Email 

__ U.S. Mail, Postage Prepaid 
Hand Delivered 

__ Overnight Mail 
__ Telecopy 
~Email 

AFFIDAVIT OF JOHN TAYLOR IN OPPOSITION TO MOTION FOR PRELIMINARY J5'S~ 
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James 1. Gatziolis 
Charles E. Harper 
QUARLES & BRADY LLP 
500 West Madison Street, Suite 3700 
Chicago, Illinois 60661-2511 
[Attorneys for Crop USA Insurance] 

__ U.S. Mail, Postage Prepaid 
Hand Delivered 

_. _ Overnight Mail 
~E-rnail 
__ Telecopy 

.--------., / '~ 
I U 
i. ===-=4?= 
~D.Babbitt 

AFFIDAVIT OF JOHN TAYLOR IN OPPOSITION TO MOTION FOR PRELIMINARY 1655 
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Gary D. Babbitt ISB No. 1486 
D. Jo1m Ashby ISB No. 7228 
HAWLEY TROXELL ENNIS & HAWLEY LLP 
877 Main Street, Suite 1000 
P.O. Box 1617 
Boise, ID 83701-1617 
Telephone: (208) 344-6000 
Facsimile: (208) 342-3829 
Email: gdb@hteh.com 

jash@hteh.com 

Attorneys for AIA Services Corporation, 
AlA Insurance, Inc., and CropUSA 

FILED 
ln07 DEC. 10 AI'\ 10 10 

URT 

IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT 

OF THE STATE OF IDAHO, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF NEZ PERCE 
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vs. 

) 
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) 
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Corporation; and JAMES BECK and ) 
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AIA SERVICES CORPORATION, an Idaho ) 
corporation; and AIA INSURANCE, INC., an ) 
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Case No. CV-07-00208 

AFFIDAVIT OF GARY D. BABBITT IN 
SUPPORT OF AIA SERVICES 
CORPORATION'S AND AIA 
INSURANCE, INC. 'S MEMORANDUM 
IN OPPOSITION TO PLAINTIFF'S 
MOTION FOR PRELIMINARY 
INJUNCTION 
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Idaho corporation, 

Counterc1aimants, 
vs. 

REED J. T AYLOR, a single person, 

Counterdefendant. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

GARY D. BABBITT, being first duly sworn upon oath, deposes and says: 

1. I am an attorney with the law firm of Hawley Troxell Ennis & Hawley LLP, 

counsel of record for Defendants AIA Services Corporation and AIA Insurance, Inc., in the 

above-referenced matter. I make this affidavit based upon my own personal knowledge. 

2. Attached hereto as Exhibit A is a true and accurate copy of AIA Services 

Corporation Statement of Cash Flows dated June 30, 2006 - June 30, 2007. 

3. Attached hereto as Exhibit B is a true and accurate copy of AIA Services 

Corporation and Subsidiaries Consolidated Balance Sheets dated December 31, 2006 -

September 30,2007. 

4. Attached hereto as Exhibit C is a true and accurate copy of AIA Services 

Corporation and Subsidiaries Consolidated Statements of Operations dated September 30, 2006 -

September 30, 2007. 

5. Attached hereto as Exhibit D is a true and accurate copy of AIA Services 

Corporation and Subsidiaries Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity (Deficit) for the 

Quarter Ended September 30, 2007 and the Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005, 2004, and 

2003. 

6. Attached hereto as Exhibit E is a true and accurate copy of AIA Services 

Corporation Consolidated Balance Sheet dated September 30,2007. 

AFFIDAVIT OF GARY D. BABBITT IN SUPPORT OF AIA SERVICES CORPORATION'S 1557 
AND AIA INSURANCE, INC. 's MEMORANDUM IN OPPOSITION TO PLAINTIFF'S 
MOTION FOR PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION - 2 
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7. Attached hereto as Exhibit F is a true and accurate copy of AIA Services 

Corporation and Subsidiaries Consolidated Financial Statements dated September 30,2006. 

8. Attached hereto as Exhibit G is a true and accurate copy of AIA Services 

Corporation and Subsidiaries Consolidated Financial Statements dated December 31,2005. 

9. Attached hereto as Exhibit H is a true and accurate copy of AIA Services 

Corporation and Subsidiaries Consolidated Financial Statements dated December 31,2003. 

10. Attached hereto as Exhibit I is a true and accurate copy of AIA Services 

Corporation and Subsidiaries Consolidated Financial Statements dated December 31, 2002 and 

December 31, 2001. 

11. Attached hereto as Exhibit J is a true and accurate copy of AlA Services 

Corporation and Subsidiaries Consolidated Financial Statements Years Ended December 31, 

1997 and 1996. 

12. Attached hereto as Exhibit K is a true and accurate copy of AIA Services 

Corporation and Subsidiaries Consolidated Financial Statements Years Ended December 31, 

1996 and 1995. 

Further your affiant sayeth naught 

AFFIDAVIT OF GARY D. BABBITT IN SUPPORT OF AIA SERVICES CORPORATION'S 
AND AIA INSURANCE, INC.'S MEMORANDUM IN OPPOSITION TO PLAINTIFF'S ,;-Z-9 
MOTION FOR PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION - 3 -;;>0 
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STATE OF IDAHO ) 
) ss. 

County of Ada ) 

----==---------~ 
Gary D. BaBbitt 

-A-
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN before me this ~ day of December, 2007. 

Name: -I yt ; fA;',; u., . 
Notary Public fo~. 
Residing at ~-s-!' 
My commission expires ..1.c3""+/-I-I ..... ·I'-f/--l'~(;; ____ _ 

AFFIDAVIT OF GARY D. BABBITT IN SUPPORT OF AlA SERVICES CORPORATION'S 
AND AlA INSURANCE, INC.'S MEMORANDUM IN OPPOSITION TO PLAINTIFF'S ~ca 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that on this ~ day of December, 2007, I caused to be served a 
true copy ofthe foregoing AFFIDAVIT OF GARY D. BABBITT IN SUPPORT OF AlA 
SERVICES CORPORATION'S AND AlA INSURANCE, INC.'S MEMORANDUM IN 
OPPOSITION TO PLAINTIFF'S MOTION FOR PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION by the 
method indicated below, and addressed to each of the following: 

Roderick C. Bond 
Ned A. Cannon 
Smith, Cannon & Bond PLLC 
508 Eighth Street 
Lewiston, ID 83501 
[Attorneys for Plaintiff] 

Paul R. Cressman, Jr. 
Ahlers & Cressman PLLC 
999 Third Avenue, Suite 3100 
Seattle, WA 98104-4088 
[Attorneys for Plaintiff] 

David A. Gittins 
Law Office of David A. Gittins 
P.O. Box 191 
Clarkston, W A 99403 
[Attorney for Defendants Duclos and Freeman] 

Michael E. McNichols 
Clements Brown & McNichols 
321 13th Street 
Lewiston, ID 83501 
[Attorneys for Defendant R. John Taylor] 

Jonathan D. Hally 
Clark & Feeney 
P.O. Box 285 
Lewiston, ID 83501 
[Attorneys for Defendants Connie Taylor, James Beck 
and Corrine Beck] 

__ U.S. Mail, Postage Prepaid 
Hand Delivered 

__ Overnight Mail 
__ Telecopy 
~Email 

__ U.S. Mail, Postage Prepaid 
Hand Delivered 

__ Overnight Mail 
ZTelecopy 

Email 

__ U.S. Mail, Postage Prepaid 
Hand Delivered 

__ Overnight Mail 
__ Telecopy 
~/Email 

__ U.S. Mail, Postage Prepaid 
Hand Delivered 

__ Overnight Mail 
------;r Telecopy 
-iL-Email 

__ U.S. Mail, Postage Prepaid 
Hand Delivered 

__ Overnight Mail 
_~Telecopy 
~Email 
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James J. Gatziolis 
Charles E. Harper 
QUARLES & BRADY LLP 
500 West Madison Street, Suite 3700 
Chicago, Illinois 60661-2511 
[Attorneys for Crop USA Insurance] 

__ U.S. Mail, Postage Prepaid 
Hand Delivered 

__ Overnight Mail 
V E-mail 

_ Telecopy 
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AlA SERVICES CORPORATION 

Statement of Cash Flows 

June 30, June 30, 

2007 2006 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Net income (loss) $ (418,077) $ (356,026) 
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash 
(used in) provided by operating activities: 

Permanent write down of investments 
Write off of account receivable 
Depreciation and amortization 7,865 15.,507 
Deferred income taxes 
Changes in assets and liabilities: 
Accounts receivable and agent advances 2,584 8,085 
Prepaid expenses 5,160 12,687 
Due from related companies, net 227,689 243,435 
Related party receivable . (88,044) (147,B42) 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 130,795 177,490 
Income taxes payable (5,000) 
Unearned commissions (15,000) (14,000) 

Net cash provided by operating activities (147,028) (65,664) 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Capital expenditures (1,959) 
Proceeds from sale of investment securities 

Net cash used in investing activities: (1,959) 

Cash flows from financing activities: 
Repayment of mortgages and notes payable (1,646) (2,040) 
Change in Series A preferred stock (41,187) . (40,152) 
Retired Treasury Stock 
Purchase of common stock 
Repayment of obligation to former majority stockholder 150,000 136,877 

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities: 107,167 94,685 

Net increase (decrease) in cash (41,820) 29,021 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 118,Q31 101,576 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 76,214 $ 130,598 

AFFIDAVIT OF GARY D. BABBITT IN SUPPORT OF AlA SERVICE CORPORATION'S ANI: 
AlA INSURANCE, INC. 'S MEMORANDUM IN OPPOSITION TO PL NTIF~iU5N FOR AIA0025012 
PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION 
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AlA SERVICES CORPORA rlON AND SUBSIDIARIES 

Consolidated Balance Sheets 

September 30, December 31, 
Assets 2007 2006 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 75,176 $ 118,031 
Investment securities available-for-sale 30 30 
Accounts receivable 14,681 163,348 

Agent advances 64,793 .74,088 

Related party receivable 547,002 437,245 
Due from related companies 21,120 20,539 
Prepaid expenses 62,314 74,863 
Deferred income taxes 387,430 387,430 
Lewis Clark Mortgage 992,607 

Net real estate 94,861 98,534 
Net property, equipment and vehicles 22,658 28,684 

Total assets $ 2,282,672 $ 1,402,792 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 465,389 $ 351,425 
Due to related companies 915,753 490,091 
I ncome taxes payable 230,991 230,991 
Unearned commissions 53,000 75,000 
Notes payable 28,650 30,296 

Total liabilities $ 1,693,783 $ 1,177,803 

Obligation to Former Stockholder: $ 8,425,864 $ 8,189,614 

Series A preferred stock: $ 478,520 $ 536,059 

Stockholders' deficit: 
Series C convertible preferred stock $ 92,500 $ 92,500 
Common stock 17,378 17,378 
Additional paid-in capital (14,471) (14.471) 
Accumulated deficit (8,410,902) (8,596,091) 
Treasury stock - at cost 

Total stockholders' deficit $ (8,315,495) $ (8,500,684) 

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 2,282,672 $ 1,402,792 

AFFIDAVIT OF GARY D. BABBITT IN SUPPORT OF AlA SERVIC CORPORATION'S AN 
AlA INSURANCE, INC.'S MEMORANDUM IN OPPOSITION TO PL INTIFE'XHlBt®N FOF AIA0025022 
PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION 
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AlA SERVICES CORPORA rlON AND SUBSIDIARIES 

Consolidated Statements of Operations 

Revenues: 

Commissions 
Administrative fees 
Gain on ULiC Settlement 
Investment income 

Total revenues 

Expenses: 

General and administrative expense 
Commission expense 
Change in estimated advanced commissions 

Total operating expenses 

Operating income: 

Other income (expense): 
Interest expense 
Equity in net loss (income) of affiliate 

Total other expense 

Income (/055) from continuing operations 
before income tax (expense) benefits: 

Income tax (expense) benefit: 

Net income (Joss): 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Quarter Ended September 3D, 
- 2007 2006 

541,017 

262,338 
837,117 

81,532 

1,722,004 

979,874 
141,654 

1,121,528 

600,476 

418,671 

418,671 

181,805 

(3,381) 

185,187 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

729,227 
378,728 

106,433 

1,214,388 

1,100,197 
194,252 

1,294,449 

(80,061) 

427,726 

427,726 

(507,787) 

28,911 

(536,697) 

---- ---~--~-~j 

19,q 
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! 
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AlA SERVICES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity (Deficit) 

For the Quarter Ended September'30, 2007 and the Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005, 2004 and 2003 

Balance, December 31, 2003 

Net income (loss) 
BOO 2004 Audit Adjustments Corrected in 2005 
Treasury stock retired 
Unrealized Gain (Loss) on Investments 
Intercompany Stock Transactions 

Balance, December 31, 2004 

Net income (loss) 
Unrealized Gain (Loss) on Investments 
Purchase by JT 475,000 sh 

Balance, December 31,2005 

Net income (loss) 
Treasury Stock retired 

Unrealized Gain (Loss) on Investments 

Balance, December 31, 2006 

Net income (loss) 
Treasury Stock retired 

_ Balance, September 30, 2007 

Series'C 

Convertible 
Preferred 

Stock 

$ 297,500 $ 

(205,000) 

$ ~$ 

$ ~$ 

$ 92,500 $ 

$ ~,$ 

Common 
Stock 

12,907 $ 

(136) 

12,771 $ 

4,750 

~ $ 

(144) 

17,377 $ 

~$ 

Additional 

Paid-in 
Capital 

1,303,834 

(7,078) 
2,072 

(1,305,693) 

Treasury 
Stock 

$ - $ 

Retained 

Earnings 
(Deficit) 

(8,795,549) 

762,536 
(168,258) 

61,580 

(6,865) $ - $ (8,139,691) 

(150,721) 
(900) 

(6,865) $ - $, (8,291,312) 

(304,043) 

(7,605) 

(735) 

(14,470) $ - $ (8,596,091) 

185,187 

(14,471) $ - $' (8,410,902) 

"""'~';'~"'"''''';pl!~""." ..... )" ... _,~~.'-''-''~.&~';-O"" ... ~'~~''''''',-.-.-~~"", ... ",.-~"""""",,,-,- "~,~~ ....... _ ...... _ .. ¥-. ___ , ........... ,,,,, ___ ~._¥.-..-.,..,~.,.......... ___ EXHIBIT 
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AlA SERVICES CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARIES 

Consolidated Financial Statements 

September 30, 2006 

EXHIBIT 

F 
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AlA SERVICES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

Consolidated Balance Sheet 
For the Quarter Ended September 30,2006 and the Year Ended December 31,2005 

September December, 31 
Assets 2006 2005 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 109,050 $ 101,576 
Investment securities available"for"sale 765 765 
Accounts receivable 163,348 163,348 
A~entadvances 76,678 89,866 
Related party receivable 369,673 ·164,622 
Due from related companies 7,775 27,310 
Prepaid expenses 55,486 65,332 
Deferred 'income taxes· 395,430 395,430 
Net real estate 99,781 104,399 
Net property, equipment and vehicles 32,555 54,077 

Total assets $ 1,310,541 $ 1,166,725 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 575,540 $ 438,286 
Due to related companies 841,423': 422,686 

. Income taxes payable 87,5QO 92,590 
Unearned commissions 68,000 93,000 
Notes payable 30,953 33,793 

Total liabilities $ 1,603,506 $ 1,080,355 

Obligation to Former Stockholder: $ 7,885,199 $ 7,669,572 

Series A preferred stock: $ 546,690 $ 604,955 

Stockholders' deficit: 
Series C convertible preferred stock $ 92,500 $ 92,500 
Common stock 17,521 17,521 
Additional paid-in capital (6,865) (6,865) 
Accumulated deficit (8,828,011) (8,291,313) 
Treasury stock - at cost 

Total stockholders' deficit $ (8,724,855) $ (8,188,157) 

,. 

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 1,310,541 $ 1,166,725 

AFFIDAVIT OF GARY D. BABBITT IN SUPPORT OF AlA SERVICES CORPORATION'S AND 
AlA INSURANCE, INC. 'S MEMORANDUM IN OPPOSITION TO PLAINTIFF'S MOTION FOR 
PRELIMINARY INTIJNCTION AIA0025088 

Jb1,8 



AlA SERVICES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

Consolidated Statements of Operations 
For the Quarters Ended September 30, 2006 and September 30, 2005 

September'30, September 30, 

Revenues: 

Commissions 

Administrative fees 
Investment income 

Total revenues 

Expenses: 

General and administrative expense 

Commission expense 
Change in estimated advanced commissions 

Total operating expenses 

Operating income: 

Other income (expense): 
Interest expense 
Equity in net loss (income) of affiliate 

. Total other expense 

Income (loss) from continuing operations 
before income tax (expense) benefits: 

Income tax (expense) benefit: 

Net income (loss): 

2006 

$ 729,227 
378,728 
106,433 

$ 1,214,388 

$ 1.100,197 
194,252 

$ 1,294,449 

$ (80,061) 

$ 427,726 

$ 427,726 

$' (507,787) 

$ 28,911 

$ (536,697) 

2005 

$ 859,560 
487,957 
106,271 

$ 1.453,788 

$ 1,117,039 

203,153 

$ 1,320,192 

$ . 133,596 

$ 420,097 

$ 420,097 

$ (286,501) 

198 

$ (286,699) 

AFFIDAVIT OF GARY D. BABBITT IN SUPPORT OF AlA SERVICES CORPORATION'S AND 
ALA INSURANCE, INC.'S MEMORANDUM IN OPPOSITION TO PLAINTIFF'S MOTION FOR 
PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION AIA0025089 

15ltt'l 



AlA SERVICES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity (Deficit) 
For the Quarter Ended September 30,2006 and the Years Ended December 31,2005,2004 and 2003 

Balance, December 31, 2003 

Net income (loss) 

BDO 2004 Audit Adjustments Corrected in 2005 
Treasury stock retired 

Unrealized Gain (Loss) on Investments 

Intercompany Stock Transactions 

Balance, December 31, 2004 

Net income (loss) 

Unrealized Gain (Loss) on Investments 
Purchase by JT 475,000 sh 

lance, December.31, 2005 

Net income (loss) 
Unrealized Gain (Loss) on Investments 

Balance, September 30, 2006 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Series C 
Convertible 

Preferred 
Stock 

297,500 $ 

(205,000) 

92,500 $ 

92,500 $ 

~$ 

....... _ .. _-... _-------_ .. _._---- ------- --------_. 

Common 
Stock 

12,907 $ 

(136) 

1312.:! $ 

4,750 

17,521 $ 

17,521 $ 

Additional 
Paid-in 
Capital 

.1,303,834 

(7,078) 

2,072 

(1,305,693) 

Treasury 
Stock 

$ -

Retained 
Earnings 
(Deficit) 

$ (8,795,549) 

762,536 
(168,258) 

61,580 

(8139,691) (6,865) $ - ,,;..$ _---:.;;.;..;.....;.;..;..;..;.; 

(150,721) 

(900) 

(R ?Q1,312) (6,865) $ - ~$ __ -=~~~ 

(536,697) 

If', R?8,011) (6,865) $ - .;.$_~~~;.,;.; 
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AlA SERVICES CORPORATION 

· ····'~I 
Statement of Cash Flows 

For the Quarter Ended September 30,2006 and the Year Ended December 31, 2005 

Cash flows from operating activities: 

Net income (loss) 

Adjustments to reconcile net income (\oss) to net cash 

(used in) provided by operating activities: 

Permanent write down of investments 

Depreciation and amortization 
Equity in net income of affiliate 
Write off of account receivable 

Deferred income taxes 
'Changes in assets and liabilities: 

Accounts receivable and agent advances 

Prepaid expenses 

Due from related companies, net 
Related party receivable 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 

Income taxes, payable 

Unearned commissions 

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities:, 
Capital expenditures 

Proceeds from sale of investment securities 

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 

Cash flows from financing activities: 

Repayment of mortgages, notes payable, and noncompete covenant 
Change'in Series A preferred stock 

Options exercised for common stock 
Prior Period Adj. for directors fees accrued 

Change in acct. princ.(cost acct for common stock) 
Prior Period Adj. for Reed Taylor's note 

Prior Period Adj. for Common Stock Issued 

Purchase of common stock 

Repayment of obligation to former majority common stockholder 

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash 

Cash at beginning of period 

Cash at end of period 

$ 

September 30, 

2006 
December, 31 

2005 

(536.697) -,--$ __ --'-'( 1-,-50,,-,-,7,-=2~1) 

15.355 

13,188 

9,846 
438,272 
(205,051) 
137,254 

(5,000) 

______ ~(~25~,_00~0) ______ ~~~ 

____ ~(~15_7~,8_3~3) ______ ~~~ 

$ 

10,786 

10,786 

(2,840) 

(58,265) 

215,627 

154,522 

7,475 

101,576 

(16,682) 
(84,891) 

4,750 
322,500 

225,677 

(11,421) 

112,999 

109,050 ~$===.,;,1,;;.,,01;;.;,5;,;,7,;;.,8 

AFFIDAVIT OF GARY D. BABBITT IN SUPPORT OF AlA SERVICES CORPORATION'S AND J 57 J 
AlA INSURANCE, INC.'S MEMORANDUM IN OPPOSITION TO PLAINTIFF'S MOTION FOR 
PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION AIA0025091 
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AlA SERVICES CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARIES 

Consolidated Financial Statements 

December 31, 2005 

AFFIDAVIT OF GARY D. BABBITT IN SUPPORT OF AlA SERVICES CORPORATION'S AND 1572-
AlA INSURANCE, INC'S MEMORANDUM IN OPPOSITION TO PLAINTIFF'S MOTION FOR 
PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION AIA0025092 
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AlA SERVICES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

Consolidated Balance Sheet 
December 31,2005 and December 31,2004 

December, 31 
Assets 2005 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 101,576 
Investment securities available-for-sale 765 
Accounts receivable 163,348 
Agent advances 89,866 
Related party receivable 164,622 
Due from related companies 27,310 
Prepaid expenses 65,332 
Deferred income taxes 395,430 
Vehicles 36,871 
Net real estate 104,399 
Net property and equipment 17,206 

Total assets $ 1,166,725 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 438,286 
Due to related companies 422,686 
Income taxes payable 92,590 
Unearned commissions 93,000 
Notes payable 33,793 

Total liabilities $ 1,080,355 

Obligation to former Stockholder: $ 7,669,572 

Series A preferred stock: $ 604,955 

Stockholders'. deficit: 
Series C convertible preferred stock $ 92,500 
Common stock 17,521 
Additional paid-in capital (6,865) 
Accumulated deficit . (8,291,313) . 
Treasury sto.ck - at cost 

Total stockholders' deficit $ (8,188,157) 

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 1,166,725 

December, 31 
2004 

$ 112,999 
1,665 

50,208 
105,641 

17,487 
273,576 

82,964 
428,430 
45,487 

108,525 
24,772 

$ 1,251,754 

$ 622,268. 
426,049 
54,328 

103,000 
.50,475 

$ 1,256,120 

$ 7,347,070 

$ 689,846 

$ 92,500 
12,771 
(6,865) 

(8,139,691) 

$ (8,041,285) 

$ 1,251,754 

AFFIDAVIT OF GARY D. BABBITT IN SUPPORT OF AlA SERVICES CORPORATION'S AND 1573 
AlA INSURANCE, INC.'S MEMORANDUM IN OPPOSITION TO PLAINTIFF'S MOTION FOR 
PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION AIA0025093 
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AlA SERVICES CORPORA liON AND SUBSIDIARIES 

Consolidated Statements of Operations 
For the Years Ended December 31,2005 and December 31,2004 

Revenues: 

Commissions 

Administrative fees 
Investment income 

Total revenues 

Expenses: 

General and administrative expense 
Commission expense 
Change in estimated advanced commissions 

Total operating expenses 

Operating income: 

Other income (expense): 
Interest expense 
Equity in net loss (income) of affiliate 

Total other expense 

Income (loss) from continuing operations 
before income tax (expense) benefits: 

Income tax (expense) benefit: 

Net income (loss): 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

December, 31 

2005 

1,142,243 $ 
639,684 
230,626 

2,012,553 $ 

1,198,542 $ 
265,860 

1,464,402 $ 

548,151 $ 

555,872 $ 

555,872 $ 

(7,721) $ 

143,000 $ 

(150,721) $ 

December, '31 

2004 

734,632 

1,478,957 
1,643,267 

3,856,856 

1,670,594 
365,248 

2,035,842 

1,821,014 

553,860 

553,860 

1,267,154 

673,109 

594,045 

AFFIDAVIT OF GARY D. BABBITT IN SUPPORT OF AlA SERVICES CORPORATION'S AND 157'/ 
AlA INSURANCE, INC.'S MEMORANDUM IN OPPOSITION TO PLAINTIFF'S MOTION FOR 
PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION AIA0025094 



AlA SERVICES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity (Deficit) 
For the Year Ended December 31,2005 and the Year Ended December 31, 2004 

Series C 
Convertible Additional 

Preferred Common Paid-in Treasury 
Stock Stock· Capital Stock 

Balance, December 31, 2003 $ 297,500 $ 12,907 $ 1;303,834 

Netinccime (loss) 
Treasury stock retired (136) (7,078) 
Unrealized Gain (Loss) on Investments 2,072 

Intercompany Stock Transactions (205,000) (1,305,693) 

Balance, December 31, 2004 $ 92,500 $ 12,771 $ (6,865) 

Net income (loss) 
Unrealized Gain (Loss) on Investments 

Purchase by JT 475,000 sh 4,750 

Balance, December 31,2005 $ 92,500 $ 17,521 $ (6,865) $ 

............ ---.... --.--~-.. --.-.---- .--~------.----.--.. -----~.---.-------

Retained 
Earnings 
(Deficit) 

- $ (8,795,549) 

. 594,278 

61,580 

- $ (8,139,691) 

(150,721 ) 
(900) 

- $ (8,291,313) 

AIA0025095 
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AlA SERVICES CORPORATION 

Statement of Cash Flows 
For the Year Ended December 31,2005 and December 31,2004 

December, 31 December, 31 
2005 2004 

Cash flows from .operating activities: 
Net income (loss) $ (150,721) $ 762,536 
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash 

(used in) provided by operating activities: 

Permanent write down of investments 

Depreciation and amortization 20,309 25,872 
Equity in net income of affiliate 

Write off of account receivable 

Deferred income taxes 33,000 645,834 
Changes in assets and liabilities: 

Accounts receivable and agent advances (97,365) 27,052 
Prepaid expenses 17,632 12,425 
Due from related companies, net 242,903 220,984 
Related party receivable (147,135) 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (183,982) (333,782) 
Income taxes payable 38,262 (42,569) 
Unearned commissions (10,000) (35,997) 

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities (237,097) 1,282,356 

Cash flows from investing activities: 

Capital expenditures (72,808) 
Proceeds from sale of investment securities 72,927 

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 119 

Cash flows from financing activities: 

Repayment of mortgages, notes payable, and noncompete covenant (16,682) (19,092) 
Repayment of obligation to former majority common stockholder 322,502 279,651 
Change in Series A preferred stock (84,891) (45,867) 
Options exercised for common stock (1,515,699) 
Prior Period Adj. for directors fees accrued 

Change in acct. princ.(cost acct for common stock) 

Prior Period Adj. for Reed Taylor's note 

Prior Period Adj. for Common Stock Issued 

Purchase of common stock 4,750, (136) 

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities 225,679 (1,301,143) 

Net increase (decrease) in cash (11,418) (18,668) 

Cash al beginning of period 112,999 131,667 

Cash al end of period $ 101,576 $ 112,999 

AFFIDAVIT OF GARY D. BABBITT IN SUPPORT OF AlA SERVICES CORPORATION'S AND 1 S 7 CJ, 
AlA INSURANCE, INC.'S MEMORANDUM IN OPPOSITION TO PLAINTIFF'S MOTION FOR 
PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION AIA0025096 



AlA SERVICES CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARIES 

Consolidated Financial Statements 

December 31,2005 
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AlA SERVICES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

Consolidated Balance Sheet 
December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004 

December, 31 
Assets 2005 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 101,576 
Investment securities available-far-sale 765 
Accounts receivable 163,348 
Agent advances 89,866 
Related party receivable 164,622 
Due from related companies 27,310 
Prepaid expenses 65,332 
Deferred. income taxes 395,430 
Vehicles 36,871 
Net real estate 104,399 
Net property and equipment 17,206 

Total assets $ 1,166,725 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 438,286 
Due to related companies 422,686 
Incoine taxes payable 92,590 
Unearned commissions 93,000 
Notes payable 33,793 

Total liabilities $ 1,080,355 

Obligation to former Stockholder: $ 7,669,572 

Series A preferred stock: $ 604,955 

Stockholders', deficit: 
Series C convertible preferred stock $ 92,500 
Common stock 17,521 
Additional paid-in capital (6,865) 
Accumulated deficit . (8,291,313) . 
Treasury sto.ck - at cost 

Total stockholders' deficit $ (8,188,157) 

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 1,166,725 

December, 31 
2004 

$ 112,999 
1,665 

50,208 
105,641 

17,487 
273,576 

82,964 
428,430 
45,487 

108,525 
24,772 

$ 1,251,754 

$ 622,268. 
426,049 
54,328 

103,000 
.50,475 

$ 1,256,120 

$ 7,347,070 

$ 689,846 

$ 92,500 
12,771 
(6,865) 

(8,139,691) 

$ (8,041,285) 

$ 1,251,754 

AFFIDAVIT OF GARY D. BABBITT IN SUPPORT OF AlA SERVICES CORPORATION'S AND 
AlA INSURANCE, INC.'S MEMORANDUM IN OPPOSITION TO PLAINTIFF'S MOTION FOR 

PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION 157i3 AIA0025093 



AlA SERVICES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

Consolidated Statements of Operations 
For the Years Ended December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004 

Revenues: 

Commissions 

Administrative fees 
Investment income 

Total revenues 

Expenses: 

General and administrative expense 
Commission expense 
Change in estimated advanced commissions 

Total operating expenses 

Operating income: 

Other income (expense): 
Interest expense 
Equity in net loss (income) of affiliate 

Total other expense 

Income (loss) from continuing operations 
before income tax (expense) benefits: 

Income tax (expense) benefit: 

Net income (loss): 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

December, 31 

2005 

1,142,243 $ 
639,684 
230,626 

2,012,553 $ 

1,198,542 $ 
265,860 

1,464,402 $ 

548,151 $ 

555,872 $ 

555,872 $ 

(7,721) $ 

143.DOO $ 

(150,721) $ 

December,'31 

2004 

734,632 

1,478,957 
1,643,267 

3,856,856 

1,670,594 
365,248 

2,035,842 

1,821,014 

553,860 

553,860 

1,267.154 

673.109 

594,045 

AFFIDA VIT OF GARY D. BABBITT IN SUPPORT OF AlA SERVICES CORPORATION'S AND 
AlA INSURANCE, INC.'S MEMORANDUM IN OPPOSITION TO PLAINTIFF'S MOTION FOR 

PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION J 571 AIA0025094 



AlA SERVICES CORPO~ TION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity (Deficit) 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2005 and the Year Ended December 31, 2004 

Series C 
Convertible Additional Retained 

Preferred Common Paid-in Treasury Earnings 
Stock Stock· Capital Stock (Deficit) 

Balance, December 31,2003 $ 297,500 $ 12,907 $ 1;303,834 $ - $ (8,795,549) 

Netincome (loss) 594,278 

Treasury stock retired (136) (7,078) 

Unrealized Gain (Loss) on Investments 2,072 61,580 

Intercompany Stock Transactions (205,000) (1,305,693) 

Balance, December 31, 2004 $ 92,500 $ 12,771 $ (6,865) - $ (8,139,691) 

Net income (loss) (150,721) 

Unrealized Gain (Loss) on Investments (900) 

Purchase by JT 475,000 sh 4,750 

Balance, December 31, 2005 $ 92,500 $ 17,521 $ (6,865) $ - $ (8,291,313) 

-_._._-_. __ .. __ ._._---_ ... _-_._-----_. ---- .. - .... --~--. 
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AlA SERVICES CORPORATION 

Statement of Cash Flows 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2005 and December 31,2004 

December, 31 December, 31 

2005 2004 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Net income (loss) $ (150,721) $ 762,536 

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash 
(used in) provided by operating activities: 

Permanent write down of investments 

Depreciation and amortization 20,309 25,872 

Equity in net income of affiliate 

Write off of account receivable 

Deferred income taxes 33,000 645,834 

Changes in assets and liabilities: 

Accounts receivable and agent advances (97,365) 27,052 

Prepaid expenses 17,632 12,425 

Due from related companies, net 242,903 220,984 

Related party receivable (147,135) 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses (183,982) (333,782) 

Income taxes payable 38,262 (42,569) 

Unearned commissions (10,000) (35,997) 

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities (237,097) 1,282,356 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Capital expenditures (72,808)' 

Proceeds from sale of investment securities 72,927 

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 11 

Cash flows from financIng activities: 

Repayment of mortgages, notes payable, and noncompete covenant (16,682) (19,092) 

Repayment of obligation to former majority common stockholder 322,502 279,651 

Change in Series A preferred stock (84,891) (45,867) 

Options exercised for common stock (1,515,699) 
Prior Period Adj. for directors fees accrued 

Change in acct. princ.(cost acct for common stock) 

Prior Period Adj. for Reed Taylor's note 

Prior Period Adj, for Common Stock Issued 
Purchase of common stock 4,750 (136) 

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities 225,679 (1,301,143) 

Net increase (decrease) in cash (11.418) (18,668) 

Cash at beginning of period 112,999 131,667 

Cash at end of period $ 101,576 $ 112,999 

AFFIDAVIT OF GARY D. BABBITT IN SUPPORT OF AlA SERVICES CORPORATION'S AND 
AlA INSURANCE, INC.'S MEMORANDUM IN OPPOSITION TO PLAINTIFF'S MOTION FOR 

PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION IS?l AIA0025096 
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December 31, 2003 

EXHIBIT 
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AlA SERVICES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

Final Consolidated Balance Sheets 
December 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002 

December 31, 
Assets: 2003· 

Cash and cash eqliivalents $ 131,667 
Investment securities available-for-sale 13,012 
Accounts receivable 57,499 
Agent advances 121,545 
Related party receivable 
Due from related ccimpanies 244,032 
Prepaid expenses 95,389 
Advanced commissions receivable 
Covenant not to compete, net of amortization 
Deferred in.come taxes 1,074,264 
Net real estate 113,616 
Net property and equipment 31,231 

Total assets $ 1,882,255 

Liabilities: 
AccOunts payable and accrued expenses $ 759,552 
Due to related companies 195,416 
Income taxes payable 96,896 
Unearned commissions 139,000 
Notes payable 69,567 
Covenant not to compete payable 
Advanced commissions payable 

Total liabilities $ 1,260,431 

Obligation to fonner Shareholder: $ 7,067,421 

Series A preferred stock: $ 735,713 

Stockholders' deficit: 

Series C convertible preferred stock $ 297,500 
Common stock 12,907 
Additional paid-in capital 1,303,834 
Accumulated deficit (8,795,549) 
Treasury stock- at cost 

Total stockholders' deficit $ (7,181,308) 

December 31, 
2002 

$ 66,003 . 
16,127 
46,751 

269,719 

152,841 
81,129 
73,825 
12,104 

1,420,000 . 
118,729 

44,502 

$ 2,301,730 

$ 840,172 
578,565 
131,678 
161,000 
134,561 

8,780 
498,914 

$ 2,353,670 

$ 6,723,039 

$ 735,713 

$ 297,500 
13,103 

1,309,211 
(9,130,504) 

$ (7,510,690) 

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 1,882,255 $ 2,301,730 ========= 
AFFIDA VIT OF GARY D. BABBITT IN SUPPORT OF AlA SERVICES CORPORATION'S AND 
AlA INSURANCE, INC.'S MEMORANDUM IN OPPOSITION TO PLAINTIFF'S MOTION FOR 
PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION JSRo AIA0025113 



AlA SERVICES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

Consolidated Statements of Operations 

For the Years Ended December 31,2003 and December 31, 2002. 

December 31, December 31, 

2003 2002 

Revenues: 

Commissions $ 942,356 $ 1,184,332 
Administrative fees 1,782,886 2,232,769 
Investment income 978,933 177,941 

Total revenues $ 3,704,175 $ 3,595,042 

Expenses: 
General and administrative expense $ 1,782,252 $ 2,071,513 
Commission expense 652,394 653,954 
Change In estimated advanced commissions· 

Total operating expenses $ 2,434,646 $ 2,725,467 

Operating income: $ 1,269,529 $ 869,575 

Other income (expense): 
Interest expense $ 581.619 $ 705,832 

. Equity in net loss (income) of affiliate 

Total other expense $ 581,619 $ 705,832 

Income (loss) from continUing operations 
. before income tax (expense) benefits: $ 687,910 $ 163,743 

Income tax (expense) benefit: $ (349,839) $ (67,168) 

Net income (loss) $ 338.071 $ 96.575 

AFFIDAVIT OF GARY D. BABBITT IN SUPPORT OF AlA SERVICES CORPORATION'S AND 
AlA INSURANCE, INC.'S MEMORANDUM IN OPPOSITION TO PLAINTIFF'S MOTION FOR 

PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION 158 L{ AIA0025114 



Balance, December 31,2001 

Net income (loss) 

Treasury stock retired 

Unrealized Gain (Loss) on In,:,estments 

Balance, December 31,2002 

Net income (loss) 

Treasury. stock retired 

Unrealized Gain (Loss) on Investments 

Balance, December 31, 2003 

AlA SERVICES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity (Deficit) 
For the Years Ended December 31,2003 and December 31,2002 

Series C 
. Convertible Additional 

Preferred Common Paid-in 

Stock Stock Capital 

$ 297,500 $ 13,103 $ 1,316,378 

(7,167) 

treasury 

Stock 

$ - $ 

$ 297,500 $ 13,103 $ - $ 1,309,211 .;.$_~ __ 

(196) (5,377) 

$ 297,500 $ ~$ - $ 1,303,834 .... $ ___ _ 

:." " ._ ..... ' ~- • ~ro.:NY~f ............. ~"" .... ,J .• ~""'''''., ••. , ... __ .• , ........ --..._~_.~.-._ ....... _______ • 

Retained 

Earnings 

(Deficit) 

(9,166,200) 

96,575 

(60,881) 

(9,130,504) 

338,071 

(3,115) 

(8;795,549) 

AIA0025115 
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AlA SERVICES CORPORATION 

Statement of Cash Flows 
For the Years Ended December 31,2003 and December 31,2002 

December 31, December 31 , 

2003 2002 

Casn flows from operating activities: 

Net income (loss) $ 338,071 $ 96,575 

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash 

(used in) provided by operating activities: -

Permanent write down of investments 

Depreciation and amortization 31,456 72,240 

Equity in net income of affiliate 

Write off of account receivable 

Deferred income taxes 345,736 63.000 
Changes in assets and liabilities: 

Accounts receivable and agent advances 137,426 32,056 

Prepaid expenses (14,260) 21,157 

Due from related companies, net (474,340) 285,755 

Related party receivable _ 
Advanced commissions receivable 73,825 147,648 _ 

Advanced commissions payable (498,914) (872,646) 

Aocounts payable and accrued expenses (80,620) (40,734) 

Income taxes payable (34,782) (16,109) 

Unearned commissions (22,000) (38,000) 

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities (198,401) (249,058) 

Cash flows from investing activities: 

Capital expenditures (969) (14,086) 

Investment in affiliate 
Proceeds from sale of investment securities 

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (969) (14,086) 

Cash flows from financing activities: 

Repayment of mortgages, notes payable, and noncompete covenant (73,774) (67,884) 

Repayment of obligation to former majority common stockholder 344,382 378,486 

Redemption of Series A preferred stock 
Options exercised for common stock (5,377) (7,167) 

_ Prior Period Adj. for directors fees accrued 
Change in acct princ.(cost aoct for common stock) . 

Prior Period Adj. for Reed Taylor's note 

Prior Period Adj. for Common Stock Issued 
Purchase of common stock (196) 

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities 265,035 303,435 

Net increase (decrease) in cash 65,665 . 40,292 

Cash at beginning of period 66,003 25,711 

Cash at end of period $ 131,668 $. 66,003 

AFFIDA VIT OF GARY D. BABBITT IN SUPPORT OF AlA SERVICES CORPORATION'S AND 
AlA INSURANCE, INC.'S MEMORANDUM IN OPPOSITION TO PLAINTIFF'S MOTION FOR 
PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION tS2(P AIA0025116 



AIA SERVICES CORPORATION 

AND SUBSIDIARIES 

Consolidated Financial Statements 

December 31, 2002 (Final Unaudited) 

and December 31, 2001 (Final Unaudited) 

EXHIBIT 

I 
AFFIDAVIT OF GARY D. BABBITT IN SUPPORT OF AlA SERVICES CORPORATION'S::!!! AI .. n .... _ .... _~ 
AlA INSURANCE, INC.'S MEMORANDUM IN OPPOSITION TO PLAINTIFF'S MOTION FOR 

PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION I £~ 7 AIA0025107 



AIA SERVICES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

Final Consolidated Balance Sheets 

December 31, 2002 and December 31, 2001 (Unaudited) 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Investment securities available-for-sale 
Investment in affiliate 
Accounts receivable 
Agent advances 
Related party receivable 
Due from related companies 
Prepaid expenses 
Advanced commissions .receivable 
Covenant not to compete, net of amortization 
Deferred income taxes 
Net real estate 
Net property and equipment 

Total assets 

$ 

2002 

66,003 

16,127 

46,751 

269,719 

·152,841 

81,129 

73,825 

12,104 

1,420,000 

118,729 

44,502 

2 301 730 

Liabil.ities and Stockholders'· Equity (Deficit) 

Liabili ties: 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Due to related companies 
Income taxes payable 
Unearned commissions 
Notes payable 
Covenant not to compete payable 
Advanced commissions payable 
Obligation to former majority common stockholder 

Total liabilities 

Series A preferred stock 

Stockholders' deficit: 

Series C convertible preferred stock 
Common stock 
Additional paid-in capital 
Accumulated ,deficit 
Treasury stock - at cost 

$ 840,172 

578,565 

131,678 

161,000 

134,561 

8,780 

498,914 

6,723,039 

9,076,709 

735,713 

297,500 

13,103 

1,309,211 

(9,130,5(J4) 

$ 

$ 

2001 

25,711 

77.,008 

108,570 

239,956 

272,609 

102,286 

221,473 

60,464 

1,483,000 

123,918 

49,108 

2 764 103 

880,906 

412,578 

147,787 

199,000 

170,423 

40,802 

1,371,560 

6,344,553 

9,567,609 

735,713 

297,500 

13,103 

1,316,378 

(9,166,200) 

Total stoc~lolders' deficit (7,510,690) (7,539,219) 

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 2,301,730 $ 2,764,103 

AFFIDAVIT OF GARY D. BABBITT IN SUPPORT OF AlA SERVICES CORPORATION'S AND 
AlA INSURANCE, INC.'S MEMORANDUM IN OPPOSITION TO PLAINTIFF'S MOTION FOR 

PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION 1£ '3 8 AIA0025108 
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AIA SERVICES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

Conso~idated Statements of Operations 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2002 and December 31, 2001 (Unaudited) 

Revenues 

Commissions 

Administrative fees 
Investment income 

Total revenues 

Expenses 

General and administrative expense 

Commission expense 

Change in estimated advanced commissions 

Total operating expenses 

Operating income 

other income (expense) 

Interest expense 

Equity in net loss (income) of affiliate 

Total other expense 

Income (loss) from continuing operations 

before income t.ax (expense) benefits 

Income tax (expense) benefit 

Net income (loss) 

2002 2001 

$ 1,184,332 $ 1,420[477 

$ 

2,232,769 
177;941 

3,595,042 

2,071,513 
653,954 

2,725,467 

869,575 

705,832 

705,832 

163,743 

(67,168) 

3,019,582 
284,829 

4[724[888 

2,882,349 
1,067,083 

3,949,432 

775,456 

893,468 

893,468 

(118,012) 

(120,672) 

96, 575 ,;.$=~( 2;;,3;;,8~',=6,,;;8=4 ) 

AFFIDAVIT OF GARY D. BABBITT IN SUPPORT OF AlA SERVICES CORPORA TION'S AND 
AlA INSURANCE, INC.'S MEMORANDUM IN OPPOSITION TO PLAINTIFF'S MOTION FOR 
PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION 15 ~'1 AIA0025109 



An SERVICES CORPORATION AND" SOl!SIOJ:ARIES 

Consolidated ~tatements of Stockholders' Equity (Deficit) 
Before %nccme Tax Expense 

For Years Ended December 31, 2002 and December 31, 2001 (Unaudited) 

Series C 
Convertible Additional 

preferred Common Paid-in Treasury 
stock Stock Capital ~ock 

Balance, 'January 1, 1999 297,500 11,511 1,699,015 (lBO,460) 

'Net income (loss) 
Debt issued for common stock (214,837) 

Issuance of stock options in exchange for 
covenant not to compete 23,620 

Balance, December 31, 1999 297,500 11,511 1,722,635 (395,297) 

Net income (loss) 
Debt issued for common stock (3,194) 

Options exercised 4,522 348,225 
Treasury stock retired 

---~--

_(!,~65) __ (_396,826) 398,491 

Balance, December 31, 2000 297,500 14,368 1,674,034 

Net income (loss) 
Debt issued for common stOCK 
Options exercised 
Treasury stock retired ( 331) (52,193) 
Prior Period Adj. for directors fees accrued 
Change in acct. princ. (cost aect for common stock) 
Prior Period Adj. for" Reed Taylor's note 
Prior Period Adj. for Pre!. Ser. C option exercise (233,517) 

Prior Period Adj. for Common Stock Issued ( 934) (11,945) 

Balance, December 31, 2001 297,500 13,103 1,316,378 $ 

Net income (loss) 
Treasury stock retired (1,167) 

Unrealized Gain ILoss) on Investments 

Balance, December 31, 2002 297,500 13,103 1,309,211 $ 

Retained 
Earnings 
IDeficit) 

(7,881,005) 

(798,799) 

(8,679,804 ) 

(218,308) 

$. (8!898,112) 

(238,684) 

26,800 
(10,846) 
(45,351) 

.~ (9,166,200) 

96,575 

(60,861) 

$ (9,130,504) 

;~;."" "·-··"lofl~'·'."'·' ' .......... ' .~ .... -..... ~, .... .,..-•. _' .... -'"'"M*~~~~----~;- ~___ . __ . _____ ...... ._~ ... ~". __ . ____ _ 

AIA0025110 

. (;) 

o 0:; ~ 
ZO\I'\ 
--< >.<.. U,J 
~Z­
ZO 
0>-< ,.;..,f-< 
f-<O 
;2~ 
O~ 
~lt 
of: 
UZ 
CI)>-< 
IJ-l--< 
U.....l _0.. 
>0 
O:;f-< 
~Z 
-<9 >-<f-< 
--<>-< 
>.<..CI) 
00 .0.. 
f-<o.. 
0:;0 
Oz 
~>-< 

o..~ 
~::J 
~~ 
~;2 
05 0 
~~ 
~w.lZ 
~~9 
d5C1)f-< ,0 U 

~.o. cj ~ ~7 
-<I=< 
<9 w.l"~ 

P·. U z>--
rf~~ 

::JZ 
CI)-
z~ 
-.....l 

~~ 
--<0.. 



, . ,~~ 

AIA SERVICES CORPORATION 

Statement of Cash Flows 
For the Years Ended December 31, 2002 and December 31, 2001 (Unaudited) 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Net income (loss) 
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash 

(used in) provided by operating activities: 
permanent write down of investments 
Depreciation and amortization 
Equity in net income of affiliate 
Write off of account receivable 
Deferred income taxes 
Changes'in assets and liabilities: 

Accounts receivable and agent advances 
prepaid expenses 
Due from related companies, net 
Related party receivable 
Advanced comncissions receivable 
Advanced commissions payable 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Income taxes payable 
Unearned commissions 

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Capital expenditures 
Investment in affiliate 
Proceeds from sale of investment securities 

Net.cash provided by (used in) investing activities 

Cash flows from financing activities: 
Repayment of mortgages, notes payable, and noncompete coven 
Redemption of Series A preferred stock 
Options exercised for common stock 
Prior period Adj. for directors fees accrued 
Change in acct. prine. (cost acct for common stock) 
Prior Period Adj. for Reed Taylor's note 
Prior Perio·d Adj. for Common- Stock Issued 
Purchase of common stock 
Repayment of obl:igation to former majority common stockhold 

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash 

Cash at beginning of period 

Cash at end of period 

$ 

$ 

2002 2001 

96, 575 -'..$ __ ->.;( 2=-3=-8"-,,<..:6,,,8-,-,4) 

72,240 

63,000 

32,056. 

21,157 

285,755 

147,648 

(872,646) 

(40,734) 
(16,109) 
(38,000) 

(249,058) 

(14,OB6) 

(14,086) 

(67,884) 

(7,167) 

378,486 

303,435 

40,292 

25,711 

74,231 

(7,000) 

437,442 

35,057 

(162,795) 

102,693 
147,648 

(669,822) 

(73,388) 

147,787 
31,000 

(175,831·) 

349,763 

349,763 

(41,375) 

(37,293) 

(285,111) 

26,800 
(lO,846) 

(45,357) 
(72,879) 

(331) 
311,471 

(155,521) 

18,411 

7,300 

66,003 ~$=-====~2~5~,=7=1=l 

AFFIDA VIT OF GARY D. BABBITT IN SUPPORT OF AlA SERVICES CORPORATION'S AND 
AlA INSURANCE, INC.'S MEMORANDUM IN OPPOSITION TO PLAINTIFF'S MOTION FOR 

PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION 15'11 AIA0025111 
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BDO Seidman, LLP 
Accountants and Consultants 

900 Seafirst Finandal Center 
601 West Riverside Avenue 
Spokane. Washington 99201·061 I 
Telephone: (509) 747-8095 
Fax (509)747-0415 

Independent Auditor's Report 

The Board of Directors 
AlA Services Corporation and Subsidiaries 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of AlA Services 
Corporation and Subsidiaries (the Company) as of December 31, 1997 and 1996, and the 
related consolidated statements of income, changes in stockholders' deficit and cash flows 
for the years then ended. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of 
the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
consolidated financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those 
standards require that we plan and perfonn the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. Webelieve that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly. in all material 
respects, the consolidated financial position of AlA Services Corporation and Subsidiaries 
as of December 31, 1997 and 1996, and the results of their operations and their cash flows 
for the years then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. 

As discussed in Note I to the consolidated financial statements, the Company suffered 
significant losses in prior years, primarily attributable to its insurance underwriting 
operations. These operations were discontinued effective October 1, 1995; however, 
disposal is not complete and the recovery of the operation's assets and settlement of 
continuing and terminated obligations are being negotiated: The status of Management's 
efforts to transfer its insurance risk and settle its insurance obligations is described in Note 
L The accompanying consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments that 
might result from the outcome of these negotiations. 

March 11,1998 

AFFIDAVIT OF GARY D. BABBITT IN SUPPORT OF AlA SERVICES CORPORATION'S AND 
AlA INSURANCE, INC.'S MEMORANDUM IN OPPOSITION TO PLAINTIFF'S MOTION FOR 

PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION 1B14 
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J)ccember 31, 1997 1996 

Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 284,552 $ 474,137 
Short-term investments 864,470 
Accrued investment income 55,525 ·12,228 

. Investment and mortgage-backed securities (Note 3): 
A vailable-for-sal e 1,195,095 254,449 
Held-to-maturity 1,398,148 

Accounts receivable 456,681 152,560 
Mortgage loans 224,031 
Agent advances 814,186 746,144 
Related party receivable (Note 7) 349,542 283,736 
Prepaid expenses 469,969 471,969 
Deferred income taxes (Note 6) 30,000 203,747 
Real estate, net of accumulated depreciation of 

$111,315 and $107,280, respectively 157,529 161,565 
Property and equipment, net (Note 4) 185,452 96,301 
Cost of licenses acquired 1,046,252 
Deferred acquisition costs 161,765 
Net assets to be disEosed (Note 22 67,646 

Total assets $ 7,760,843 $ 2,856,836 

AFFIDAVIT OF GARY D. BABBITT IN SUPPORT OF AlA SERVICES CORPORATION'S AND 
AlA INSURANCE, INC.'S MEMORANDUM IN OPPOSITION TO PLAINTIFF'S MOTION FOR 
PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION /5tj5 AIA0025184 



AlA Services Co 

December 31, 

Liabilities and Stockholders' Deficit 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Policy benefits and other policy liabilities 
Income taxes payable (Note 6) 
Unearned commissions 
Mortgages and notes payable (Note 5) 
Obligation to former majority common stockholder 

(Note 7) 
Net liabilities to be disposed (Note 2) 

Total liabilities 

Series A preferred stock - redeemable and convertible, 
no par value, 200,000 shares authorized, issued and 
outstanding, 136,852 and 153,613 shares (Note 8) 

Commitments and Contingencies (Notes 2 and 10) 

Stockholders' deficit (Note 8): 
Series C convertible preferred stock - $1 par value, 

500,000 shares authorized, issued and outstanding, 
297,500 and 286,500 shares (Note 8) 

Common stock - $0.0 I par value, 11,000,000 authorized, 
issued 1,125,997 and 1,079,520 shares, outstanding 
1,058,477 and 1,079,520 shares (Notes 7 and 8) 

Additional paid-in capital . 

Consolidated Bala 

$ 

1997 

2,441,358 
1,211,891 

290,000 
441,790 

65,937 

7,164,783 

11,615,759 

1,368,517 

297,500 

11,260 
1,773,641 

$ 

1996 

1,466,876 

65,216 
761,000 
131,670 

7,394,472 
6,293,944 

16,113, I 78 

1,536,134 

286,500 

10,795 
1,947,902 

Accumulated deficit, including retained earnings 
(accumulated deficit) from discontinued operations 
0[$67,646 and ($14,245,921) (7,247,168) (17,037,673) 

Unrealized gains on investment and mortgage-backed 
securities available-for-sale, net of taxes 

Treasury stock - at cost, 67,520 and 0 shares 
92,544 

(151,210) . 

Total stockholders' deficit (5,223,433) . (14,792,476) 

Total liabilities and stockholders' deficit $ 7,760,843 $ 2,856,836 
See accompanying summary o/accounting policies and notes fo consolidated finanCial statements. 

AFFIDA VIT OF GARY D. BABBITT IN SUPPORT OF AlA SERVICES CORPORATION'S AND 
AlA INSURANCE, INC.'S MEMORANDUM IN OPPOSITION TO PLAINTIFF'S MOTION FOR 

PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION I S1fo 

4 

AIA0025185 



Consolidated Statements ~'~,·, IIW'~'A' 

Years Ended December 31, 

Revenues: 
Commissions (Note 7) 
Administrative fees 
Investment income 

Total revenues 

Expenses: 
General and administrative expenses 
Commission expense 
Interest expense 

Total expenses. 

Income from continuing operations before income 
tax expense 

Income tax expense (Note 6) 

Income from continuing operations 

Income from discontinued operations, net of applicable 
income taxes (Note 2) 

Net income 

$ 

$ 

1997 1996 

5,552,039 $ 6,255,197 
2,662,344 . 3,382,553 

98,330 120,476 

8,312,713 9,758,226 

4,078,120 5,212,644 
2,267,079 2,857,256 

804,614 820,293 

7,149,813 8,890,] 93 

1,162,900 868,033 

192,395 46,084 

970,505 821,949 

8,820,000 900,505 

9,790,505 $ 1,722,454 

See accompanying summary of accounting policies and notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholde 

Unrealiz.d 
G,ins (Losses) 
onlnv.:st!nmt 

and Mortgage-

Series C 
Backed 

Sc!Cuntic:s 
COllvertible Additional Available-for-

. Preferred Common Paid-in Treasury Sal~. Net of Accumulated 
Stock Stock Ca[!ital Stock Tax ... Deficit 

Balance, January I, 1996 $ 200,000 $ 10,795 $ 1,419,295 $ - $ 111 ,199 $ (18,760,127) 

Net income 1,722,454 
Unrealized gains on 

investment securities 
available-for-sale, net of 4,563 
taxes 

Issuance of Series C 
convertible preferred 
shares 86,500 778,501 

Series C preferred 
dividends paid or 
accrued (249,894 ) 

Transfer to net liabilities to 
be dis~sed {115,762) 

Balance, December 3 I, 
1996 2&6,500 10,795 \,947,902 (17,037,673) 

Nel income 9,790,505 
Issuance of conunon stock: 465 16,441 
Purehase of conunoll stock: (151,210) 
Issuance 0 f Series C 

convertible preferred 
shares 11,000 99,000 

Series C preferred 
dividends paid or 
accrued (289,702) 

Unrealized gains on 
illvestment and 
mortgage-backeD 
securities available-for- 92,544 
sule, net of taxes 

Bulance, December 31, 
1997 $ 297,500 $ 11,260 $ 1,773,641 $ (151,210) $ 92,544 $ F·247,I68) 

See accompanying summary of accounting poliCies and notes to consolidated jinancialstalemenls. 
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Consolidated Statements of 

Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Years Ended December 31, 

Cash flows from operatillg activities: 
Net income . 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net 

cash used in operating activities: . 
Depreciation 
Deferred income taxes 
Write off of account receivable 
Changes in assets and liabilities: 

Accounts receivable and agent advances 
Prepaid expenses and other assets 
Accounts payable and accmed expenses 
Income taxes payable 
Unearned commissions 
Discontinued operations 

Net cash used in operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Capital expenditures 
Issuance of notes receivable 
Discontinued operations investing activities 
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 

Net cash provided by investing activities 

1997 

$ 9,790,505 

51,023 
185,698 

(186,649) 
124,237 
242,018 
224,784 

(319,210) 
38,751 

10,151,157 

(35,905) 
(65,806) 

1,544,240 

1,442,529 

1996 

$ 1,722,454 

101,451 
(35,170) 
260,706 

(323,354) 
(54,117) 

(1,751,232) 
68,249 

115,000 
(5,751,605) 

(5,647,618) 

(11,352) 
(157,079) 

5,748,399 
246 

5,580,214 

See accompanying summary of accounting policies and notes to consolidated financial Sla{eme~[s. 
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AlA Services Corp · . 
and Subs i t:.'}~ :M1M:t; 

Consolidated Statements of Ca· 

Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Years Ended December 31, 

Cash flows from financing activities: 
Repayment of mortgages and notes payable 
Redemption of Series A preferred stock 
Dividends paid to preferred stockholders 
Net proceeds from issuance of Series C 

preferred stock 
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 
Purchase of common stock 
Repayment of obligation to former majority 

common stockholder 
Issuance of notes payable 

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year, including 
$1,143,257 and $504,484 from discontinued operations 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year, including · 
$12,149,483 and $1,143,257 from discontinued operations 

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information: 
Cash paid during the year for: 

Interest 
Income taxes 

Noncash investing and financing activities: 
Exchange of investment in preferred stock for 
. investment in common stock and advertising 
Exchange of accounts receivable for investment 

in common stock 
Unrealized loss on securities available-for-sale, 
net of taxes 

1997 

(65,733) 
(167,617) 
(289,702) 

110,000 
16,906 

(151,210) 

(229,689) 

(777,045) 

10,816,641 

1,617,394 

$ 12,434,035 

$ 808,119 
$ 

$ 245,474 

$ 109,000 

$ 23,218 

1996 

(710,334) 
(169,486) 
(249,894) 

865,00 I 

269,938 

5,225 

(62, 179) 

1,679,573 

$ 1,617,394 

$ 785,253 
$ 

.$ 

$ 

$ 

Ser! accompanying summary of accollnting policies and notes 10 consolidated financial stalemenls. 
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. AlA Services Corp' ..... .. . 
and Subs i :i:.::?i •. ·Wj· j bW@ti~ 

Summary of Accountin 

Business Activities AlA Services Corporation (the Company) is an insurance holding 
company based in Lewiston, Idaho. Prior to October I, 1995, the 
Company had two business segments. The insurance underwriting 
operations are contained within the Company's wholly-owned 
subsidiary, The Universe Life Insurance Company (Universe) and 
Universe's wholly-owned subsidiary, Great Fidelity Life Insurance 
Company (Great Fidelity). Effective October 1, 1995, the 
Company adopted a plan of disposal of its insurance underwriting 
operations. (See Notes I and 2 for further discussion .) 

The Company's continuing operations consist of its insurance 
marketing segment. The principal business of this segment is 
marketing insurance products and services to ranchers and farmers, 
many of whom are members of agricultural associations. The 
Company's current products include group health and life insurance 
and long-term care insurance. These products are marketed 
through two subsidiaries, AlA Insurance, Inc. (AlA) and AlA 
MidAmerica. Inc. (MidAmerica). 

The Company has established relationships with state and regional 
associations including the National Association of Wheat Growers, 
American Soybean Association, and the National Contract Poultry 
Growers Association (Association). These Associations were 
formed through the common interests of their members to promote 
specific segments of the agriculture industry. They are the primary 
recognized organizations representing the interests of the grain 
growers, soybean growers and poultry growers in the United 
States. 

The Company sells group health insurance to these Associations 
and their members and provides administrative services for such 
insurance in accordance with the terms of marketing and 
administrative agreements between the Company and the 
underwriting insurance company. The Company also acts as the 

. marketer and administrator for a multiple-association trust whose 
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Principles of 
Consolida tion 

r nvestmen ts 

AlA Services Cor 

Summary of Accounti 

participants engage in fanning, ranching or other agriculture related 
businesses. As part of the Company's administrative duties, the 
Company collects association dues through its regular customer 
billing procedure, thereby creating an important link between the 
Company and the Associations. In return, the Associations endorse 
the Company and certain of its products and services. 

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the 
Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries: AlA, Mid America, 
AlA Pacific Marketing Corporation, Universe, Great Fidelity and 
AlA Bancard Services Corporation. All material intercompany 
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. The long-term 
care and group universal health operations of Universe and Great 
Fidelity are shown as discontinued operations in 1997. The entire 
insurance underwriting operations of Universe and Great Fidelity 
are shown as discontinued operations in 1996 (see Notes 1 and 2). 

The Company accounts for investments according to the provisions 
of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SF AS) No. 115 
"Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity 
Securities". SF AS No. 1 t 5 requires that investments in all debt 
securities and those equity securities with readily determinable 
market values be classified into one of three categories: held-to­
maturity, trading, or available-for-sale. Classification of 
investments is based upon management's current intent. Debt 
securities which . management has a positive intent and ability to 
hold until maturity are classified as securities held-to-maturity and 
are carried at amortized cost adjusted for unamortized premium or 
discount. Unrealized holding gains and losses on securities he\d-to­
maturity are not reflected in the consolidated financial statements. 
Debt and equity securities that are purchased for short-term resale 
are classified as trading securities. Trading securities are carried at 
market value, with unrealized holding gains and losses included in 
earnings. AH other debt and equity securities not included in the 
above two categories are classified as securities available-for-sale. 
Securities available-for-sale are carried at market value, with 
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Deferred 
Acquisition Costs 

Cost of Licenses 
Acquired 

Property and 
Equipment 

AlA Services Corp .: 
and Subs i t. ... t ".,@¥'" @;'l'}i~ 

unrealized holding gains and losses reported as a separate 
component of stockholders' equity, net of applicable income taxes. 
At December 31, 1997 and 1996, the Company did not have any 
investments categorized as trading securities. 

The Company's carrying value for investments in the held-to­
maturity and available-far-sale category is reduced to its estimated 
realizable value if a decline in the market value is deemed other 
than temporary. Such reductions in carrying value are recognized 
as realized losses and charged to income. The Company has no 
investments where a decline in market value is deemed other than 
temporary. Premiums and discounts on debt securities are 
amortized over the life of the security as an adjustment to yield 
using the effective interest method. Realized gains and losses on 
disposition of investments are included in net income. The cost of 
investments sold is determined on the specific identification 
method. 

Costs of acquiring insurance business which vary with and are 
primarily related to the production of such business are deferred 
and amortized over the estimated life of the underlying policy. 
Such costs include certain expenses related to policy issuance and 
underwriting. These costs are being amortized over five to forty 
years on a straight-line basis. . 

The cost of licenses acquired related to the insurance underwriting 
operations is being amortized on a straight-line basis over 30 to 40 
years 

Property and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated 
depreciation. Where applicable, cost includes interest and real 
estate taxes incurred during construction and other construction 
related costs. Depreciation is computed principally by the straight­
line method using lives of 31 to 40 years for buildings and five to 
seven years for equipment. . 
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Summary of Accountin 

Commission Income Commission income is recognized ratably over the policy period. 

Administrative Fees 

Mortgage and 
Policy Loans 

Policy Benefits and 
Other Policy 
Liabilities 

AlA is a third-party administrator for Trustmark, Universe and 
various Association trusts providing administrative and data 
processing services. Through December 1, 1997, the Company 
was a third-party administrator for Centennial Life Insurance 
Company (Centennial) (see Note 1). All administrative fees result 
from such arrangements and are recorded as income upon receipt, 
which approximates the time period over which the fees are earned. 
The administrative fees are calculated on a per policy basis, on a 
percentage of certain future policy benefits, and also as specific 
administrative functions are performed. 

Mortgage loans and policy loans are carried at unpaid principal 
balances. 

Ordinary life insurance and annuity policy benefit liabilities are ' 
computed on a net level premium method using assumptions with 
respect to current investment yield, mortality, morbidity, 
withdrawal rates, and other assumptions determined to be 
appropriate as of the date the business was issued or purchased by 
the Company. Such estimates were based upon past experience 
adjusted to provide for possible adverse deviation from the 
estimates. 

Reserves for the Universal Benefit (UB), the Withdrawal Value 
(WV), and the Supplemental Benefit Accumulation (SBA) 
components of the group a'ccident and health insurance contracts 
are computed on a graduated scale from 25% to 100% of the 
certificate holders' VB, WV, or SBA balance over a 10 to 15 year 
period. 

The liability for unpaid is an estimate of payments to be made on 
insurance claims for reported losses and estimates of incurred but 
not reported claims. 
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Reinsurance 

Recognition of 
Premium Revenues, 
Benefits and Costs 

Income Taxes 

AlA Services Corp· 
and Subs i fM.~~~~Min~:: 

Summary of Accounti 

The Company accounts for reinsurance of insurance contracts 
according to the provisions of SF AS No. 113, "Accounting and 
Reporting for Reinsurance of Short-Duration and Long-Duration 
Contracts." Under SFAS No. 113, reinsurance receivables and 
prepaid reinsurance premiums are accounted for and reported 
separately as assets, net of valuation allowance, rather than being · 
deducted from the liability for future policy benefits and claims. 
The cost of reinsurance· related to long-duration contracts is 
accounted for over · the life of the underlying reinsured policies 
using assumptions consistent with those used to account for the 
underlying policies. Contracts not resulting in the reasonable 
possibility 'that the reinsurer may realize a significant loss from the 
insurance risk assumed generally do not meet the conditions for 
reinsurance accounting and are to be accounted for as deposits . 

. Reinsurance premiums ceded and reinsurance recoveries on benefits 
and claims incurred are deducted from the respective income and 
expense accounts. 

Premiums on life insurance are recognized as revenue when due. 
Benefits, losses and related expenses are matched with earned 
premiums in ·order to recognize income over the term of the 
contracts. This matching is accomplished by means of the 
provision for future policyholder benefits and estimated unpaid 
losses. 

The Company files a .consolidated income tax return. In 1996, the 
Company filed a separate consolidated income tax return for its non 
life i.nsurance subsidiaries and a separate consolidated income tax 
return for the Company's life insurance subsidiaries. 

The Company accounts for income taxes according to the 
provisions of SFAS No. 109 "Accounting for Income Taxes." 
Under the asset and liability method of SFAS No. 109, defelTed tax 
assets and liabiliti(!s are recognized for the future tax consequences 
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Summary of Accountin 

attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying · 
amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax 
bases. Deferred · tax assets and liabilities are measured using 
enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years 
in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered 
or settled. Under SF AS No. 109, the effect on deferred tax assets 
and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in in~ome .in the 
period that includes the enactment date. 

The Company accounts for stock options issued to employees 
under the provisions of Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 
25 CAPB25"). Under APB 25, because the exercise price of the 
Company's employee stock options approximates the fair value of 
the underlying stock at the date of grant, no compensation cost is 
recognized. SFAS No. 123 "Accounting for Stock-Based 
Compensation," requires the Company to provide pro forma 
information regarding net income (loss) as if compensation cost for 
the Company's stock option plans had been determined in 
accordance with the fair value method prescribed in SFAS No. 123. 

Cash and cash equivalents are comprised of cash and funds 
temporarily invested (with original maturities not exceeding three 
months) as part of the Company's management of day-to-day 
operating cash receipts and disbursements. 

Certain amounts in the prior year's financial statements have been 
reclassified to conform to the current year's presentation. 

The preparation of financial statements in confonnity with generally 
accepted accounting principles requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported 
amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. 
Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
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I. Disposal of 
Insurance. 
Underwriting 
Operations 

Notes to Consolidated Financial S 

In 1995, the Company adopted a plan to dispose of its insurance 
underwriting operations (the Plan) and recognized a net loss from 
discontinued operations of $9.0 million. This loss included 
management's estimate of the liabilities to be incurred by the 
Company in disposing of the insurance underwriting operations 
according to the Plan, in excess of the assets available to satisfy 
these liabilities (see Note 2) and the operating results of the 
insurance underwriting operations. During 1997. the Company 
revised the Plan whereby it intends to transfer or settle only the 
long-term care and group universal health insurance underwriting 
risk of its insurance subsidiaries, Universe and Great Fidelity. As 
such, discontinued operations for 1997 includes only those assets 
and liabilities and operating results of the long-term care and group 
universal health operations of Universe and Great Fidelity. 
Discontinued operations for 1996 includes all of . the assets and 
liabilities and operating results of Universe and Great Fidelity. As 
the Plan is carried out, management re-estimates its net liability to 
dispose of the discontinued operations. In 1997 and 1996, net 
income from discontinued operations of approximately $9 million 
and $900,000 included changes in estimates of liabilities and 
recoverable amounts of assets and the operating results of the 
discontinued operations. 

Effective December 1, 1997, in connection with a formal Plan of 
Rehabilitation, Universe completed the cancellation of substantially 
all of the Group Universal Health insurance policies previously 
reinsured, assumed or written by Centennial and arranged for the 
certificateholders to obtain similar coverage from Trustmark 
Insurance Company (Trustmark). The cash value obligation for the 
related Supplemental Benefit Accounts (SBA). and Universal 
Benefits (UB) of the certificateholders remained with Universe, and 
was subsequently paid in January 1998 (See Note 2). 

During 1996 and 1997, Great Fidelity continued to retain 10% of 
the risk on long-term care policies with 90% of risk being assumed 
by The American Long Term-Care Reinsurance Group (AL TCRG). 
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2. Discontinued 
Operations 

AlA Services CorP.l· [%]iw:i 
and Subsi · 

Notes to Consolidated Financial 

In March 1998, the Company transferred the agreement with 
AL TCRG and executed an assumption reinsurance agreement with 
Central States Health and Life Company (Central States) to transfer 
all long-tenn care in force policies as of an effective date of January 
1, 1998. The Company is currently negotiating the sale of a 
majority of its common stock ownership interests in Great Fidelity 
to an unrelated third party investor. No adjustments have been 
recorded to reflect this possible sale of Great Fidelity common 
stock. 

The net assets (liabilities) to be disposed, recorded in the 
consolidated financial statements, include management's estimates 
in accordance with Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion 
No. 30 "Reporting the Results of Operations-Reporting the Effects 
of Disposal of a Segment of a Business, and Extraordinary, 
Unusual and Infrequently Occurring Events and Transactions," and 
consist of the following assets and liabilities of the discontinued 
insurance operations at December 31 : 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Investment and mortgage backed 

securities: 
Available-for-sale 
Held~to-maturity 

Mortgage loans on real estate 
Policy loans . 
Short-term investments 
Accrued investment income 
Receivables 
Prepaid expenses 
Net property and equipment 
Deferred acquisition costs 
Cost of insurance and licenses 

acquired 

Total assets 

1997 1996 

$12,149,483 

5,745,068 

2,315,758 

16,160 
37,973 

1,556,417 _ 

21,820,859 

$ 1,143,257 

8,028,768 
1,402,031 
3,224,774 

.58,545 
289,561 
90,392 

14,341,496 
119,684 
153,900 
163,396 

1,509,896 

30,525,700 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial 

1997 1996 

Policy liabilities 12,445,834 32,327,665 
Accounts payable and accrued 

eX2enses 9,307,379 4,491!979 

Total liabilities 21,753,213 36,819,644 

Net assets (liabilities) to be 
disEosed $ 67,646 ~$ 6,293,9442 

Summary consolidated statements of income for the discontinued 
insurance operations are as follows: 

Years ended December 31, 

Revenues: 
Premiums 
Net investment income 
Gain on tennination of 

reinsurance agreements 

Total revenues 

Benefits and expenses: 
Benefits' 
Commissions 
General and administrative 

expenses 

Total benefits and expenses 

Income before income tax 
expense 

Income tax expense 

Net income 

1997 1996 

$ 14,131,803 $ 5,631,049 
816,868 945,380 

1,542,235 

16,490,906 6,576,429 

3,623,163 1,520,581 
2,677,743 815,519 

1,180,000 3,339,824 

7,480,906 5,675,924 

9,010,000 900,505 

190,000 

$ 8,820,000 $ 900,505 
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AlA Services Corp: 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial S 

Operating results of the long-term care and group universal health 
. operations of Universe and Great Fidelity for 1997 (the entire 

insurance underwriting operating results of Universe and Great 
Fidelity for 1996), including changes in the estimate of net assets 
(liabilities) to be disposed, have been shown separately as income 
from discontinued operations, net of applicable income taxes, in the 
accompanying consolidated statements of income. 

Management anticipates no future significant operating gain or loss 
for the discontinued operations through final disposal date. 
However, the final settlement of liabilities and recovery of assets 
may result in a change in management's current estimates of these 
assets and liabilities, which will be included in the income (loss) 
from discontinued operations. 

. . 
Investment and Mortgage-Backed Securities 

The amortized cost and market value of investment and mortgage­
backed securities as of December 31, 1997 and 1996 follows. The 
market values are based on quoted market prices, where available, 
or on value obtained from independent pricing services. 

Available-far-sale: 
Government: 

U.$. Treasury bonds 
Mortgage backed 
securities 

Co!,£orale bonds 

Total debt securities 

Common stocks 

TOI<11 ,wailable-for-sale 

December 31. 1997 
Gross Gross 

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Market 
Value Cost Gains, Losses 

$ 2.703,403 $ 79,531 $ (150) $ 2,782,784 

2,635,334 (26,444) 2,608.890 
250,000 25 250,025 

5,588,737 79,556 (26,594) 5,641,699 

83,705 19.664 103,369 

$ 5.672.442 $ 99,220 $ (26.594) $ 5,745,068 
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Available-far-sale: 
Government: 

U.S. Treasury bonds 
Mortgage backed 

securities 
C0!:Earate bonds 

Tala I debt securities 

Common Slacks 

Total a\'ailable-for-sale 

Held-to-maturity: 
U.S.' Treasury bonds 
Ca!:Earate bonds 

Talal held-to-maturi~ 

. December 31. 1996 
Gross Gross 

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized 
Cost Gains Losses 

$2,705,536 S 104,27& $ - $ 

4,505,200 (3&,234 ) 
249.726 (6,818) 

7,460,462 104,27& (45,052) 

392,918 116,162 

$ 7,853,380 $ 220,440 $ (45.052) $ 

December 31, 1996 
Gross Gross 

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized 
Cost Gains Losses 

Market 
Value 

2,809,814 

4,466,966 
242,908 

7,519,688 

509,080 

8,028,768 

Market 
Value 

$ 1,302,031 $ 49,009 $ - $ 1,351,040 
100.000 1,159 101,159 

$ 1,402,031 $ 50,168 $ - $ 1,452,199 

At December 31, 1997 and 1996 securities held with a carrying 
value of $3,955,469 and $3,963,445, respectively, were on deposit 
with certain state insurance departments in order to meet regulatory 
requirements 

At December 31, 1996, a U.S. Treasury note with a carrying value 
of $766,875 was held in a Texas district court as security for 
payment of a judgment. In 1997, the judgment was settled and the 
note was released . 
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The amortized cost and market value of debt securities available­
for-sale at December 31, 1997, by contractual maturity, are shown 
below. Expected maturities may differ from contractual maturities 
because borrowers may have the right to prepay obligations. 
Securities not due at a single maturity date are collateralized 
mortgage obligations of government backed securities which have 
principal payments throughout the life of the investment, the timing 
of which may vary with market conditions. 

Available-for-Sale 
Amortized Market 

Cost Value 

Due one year or less $1,398,435 $ 1,399,247 
Due one through five years I,S57,322 ],933,532 
Not due at a single maturity date 2,332,980 2,308,920 

$ 5,588,737 $ 5,641,699 

Net investment income consists of the following: 

Year ended December 31, 1997 1996 

Bonds $ 469,919 $ 559,184 
Mortgage loans 234,858 276,502 
Short-term investments 84,791 91,142 
Real estate 32,842 - 32,842 
policy loans 3,332 13,084 

Other 14,708 _ 3,339 

840,450 976,093 
Less investment expenses 23,582 30,713 

$ 816,868 $ 945,380 

AFFIDAVIT OF GARY D. BABBITT IN SUPPORT OF AlA SERVICES CORPORATION'S AND 
AlA INSURANCE, INC.'S MEMORANDUM IN OPPOSITION TO PLAINTIFF'S MOTION FOR 

PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION /flJ 2-

20 

AIA0025201 

i , 
I 
~ 

I 

I 
i 

i 
i 
I 
~ 



<. ~: '""- _ _ .-J •• • • _ _ • • =-_ . •• :._~ _ _ .~_ .. _'. ___ .. __ __ ,.: . - - ~-.:-___ .:~ __ . __ • _.~ ..... _ . _ " _ . .. ..: _.: __ _ ..:......-.: .. : 

AlA Services Corp t"l'r "k; ~W~~tM}W 
and Subsi.·=" ".',. ,=".." .~ 

Notes to Consolidated Financial S 

Realized gains and losses on investments are as follows : 

Year elided December 31, 1997 1996 

Gross gains $ $ 

Gross losses (20,483) (74,440) 

$ PO,483) $ (74,440) 

Proceeds from the sales of fixed maturity securities during 1997 
and 1996 were $50,000 and $1,025,000, respectively. 

Sale of Real Estate 

On December 30, 1993, Universe sold its home office building for 
$2,650,000 in connection with a sale and lease back agreement. 
Universe received a note secured by a deed of trust for $1,987,500 
at 8% per annum and the balance in cash, AlA entered into a 15 ' 
year lease with an option to purchase the property, Universe 
reported a deferred gain of $492,629 in 1993 which is being 
recognized over the tenn of the lease. Universe recognized 
$32,842 of the deferred gain in both 1997 and 1996. 

Policy Liabilities 

Policy liabilities at December 31 are as follows: 

1997 1996 

Future policy benefits ' $ 5,308,576 $ 30,965,857 
Unpaid claims 7,105,306 1,069,916 
Other policy liabilities 3],952 291,892 

$ 12,445,834 $ 32,327,665 
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Activity in the liability for claims in the course of settlement and 
unrecorded claims as it applies to accident and health policies are as 
follows (includes unpaid claims included in continuing operations of 
$64,050 at December 31, 1997): 

1997 1996 

Balance, beginning of year, 
accident and health $ 1,069,916 $ 5,853,825 

Less reinsurance recoverable (167,418) (190,040) 

Net balance, beginning of year 902,498 5,663,785 

Total incurred during year 22,618,930 1,794,107 

Paid in current year related to: 
Current year 11,452,120 2,923 ,908 
Prior years 4,902,968 3,631,486 

Total paid 16,355,088 6,555,394 

Net balance, end of year 7,166,340 902,498 
Plus reinsurance recoverable 167,418 

Balance, end of year, accident 
and health 7,166,340 1,069,916 

Net life claims liability 3,016 

Total un~aid claims, end ofzear $ 7,169,356 - $ 1,069,916 
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Dispositions and Reinsurance 

During 1995 and 1994, Universe entered into various agreements 
with Centennial, pursuant to which Universe sold or reinsured its 
group universal health (GUH) business. Under a transfer 
agreement and related reinsurance agreements, Universe transferred 
all of its GUH morbidity underwriting risk, other than that related 
to totally disabled claimants, to Centennial. Effective December 1, 
1997, in connection with a formal Plan of Rehabilitation, Universe 
completed the cancellation of substantially all of the GUH insurance 
policies previously reinsured, assumed or written by Centennial and 
arranged for the certificateholders to obtain similar coverage from 
Trustmark. The cash value obligation for. the SBA and VB of the 
certificateholders remained with Universe, which was subsequently 
paid in January 1998. 

Effective July I, 1995,90% of the long-term care business of Great 
Fidelity was ceded to AL TCRG on a quota-share basis. In March 
1998, the Company transferred the agreement with ALTCRG and 
executed an assumption reinsurance agreement with Central States 
to transfer all long-term care in force policies as of an effective date 
of January 1, 1998. The insurance agreement with Central States 
provides for the Company to receive a monthly fee equal to 3.5% 
of the net gross premiums collected on all reinsured contracts. 

Summary of significant reinsurance amounts affecting the 
accompanying financial statements as of and for the years ended 

. December 3 I, 1997 and 1996 is presented below. The ceded 
balance sheet amounts have been classified as assets in the balance 
sheets of Universe and Great Fidelity in accordance with the 
provision of SF AS 113. 
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1997 
Assumed Ceded 

Balance sheets: 
Nonaffiliates: 
Future policy benefits and claims: 

Accident and health $ - $ 158,406 
Amounts recoverable from 

remsurer 1,394 

Reinsurance receivables $ $ 159,800 

1997 
Assumed Ceded 

Statements of income: 
Nonaffiliates: 

Life insurance premiums $ - $ 3,744 
Accident and health insurance 

premIUms $ - $ 3,245,726 . 
Benefits and claims $ - $ 2,240,088 
Commission and expense 

allowances on reinsurance 
ceded· $ - $ 1,209,991 

1996 
Assumed Ceded 

Balance sheets: 
Nonaffiliates: 

Future policy benefits and claims: 
Accident and health $ - $ 13,330,533 

Amounts recoverable from 
remsurer 781,830 . 

Reinsurance receivables $ - $14,112,363 . 
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Statements of income: 
Nonaffiliates: 

Life insurance premiums $ 
Accident and health insurance 

premIUms 
Benefits and claims 
Commission and expense 

allowances on reinsurance 
ceded 

$ 

$ 

$ 

1996 
Assumed Ceded 

- $ , 192,548 

- $ 18,825,289 
- $ 13,956,351 

- $ 4,428,378 

The Company evaluates the financial condition of its reinsurers and 
monitors concentrations of credit risk arising from similar 
geographic regions, activities, or economic characteristics of the 
reinsurers to minimize its exposure to significant losses from 
reinsurer insolvencies. Amounts for ceded future policy benefits 
and claims would represent a liability of the Company in the 
unlikely event that its reinsurers would be unable to meet existing 
obligations under reinsurance agreements. 

Income Taxes 

The significant components of the Company's net deferred tax 
assets and liabilities related to discontinued operations at December 
31 are summarized as follows: 

Deferred tax assets: 
Policy reserves 
Net operating loss carryforwards 
Other 

1997 1996 

$ 130,000 
1,018,000 

150,000 

1,298,000 

$ 69,807 
4,730,934 

274,380 

5,075,l21 
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1997 1996 

Deferred tax liabilities: .. 
Tax over book depreciation and 

amortization (10,000) (136,616) 
Deferred gains on installment 

sales on real estate (210,000) (327,467) 
Net unrealized gains on available-

for-sale securities (60,000) (59,631 ) 
Deferred policy acquisition costs (55,555) 
Other (12,478) 

(280,000) (591,747) 

Valuation allowance (1,018,000) . (4,483,374) 

Net deferred tax asset (Iiabilit~) $ - $ 

At December 31, 1997, the long-term care and group universal 
health operations of Universe and Great Fidelity have 
approximately $3 million in · net operating loss carryforwards 
available to offset future taxable income which expire through 
2011. 

Regulatory Requirements and Other Matters 

Generally, the net assets of Universe and Great Fidelity available 
for transfer to the Company are limited to the amounts by which 
the net assets exceed minimum capital requirements . 

Under Idaho insurance law, dividends may be paid by Universe only 
from profits or eamed surplus and require Idaho Insurance 
Department (Department) approval if the dividend is in excess of 
the greater of 10% of surplus or net gain from operations of the 
prior year. Univers~ may not pay a dividend without prior approval 
from the Department. 
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Under Indiana insurance law, the minimum statutory capital and 
surplus required is $450,000. Great Fidelity may not pay dividends 
that reduce surplus to less than 50% of capital stock. 
Extraordinary dividend payments which exceed the greater of the 
net gain from operations or 10% of surplus from the preceding year 
require approval from the Indiana Commissioner of Insurance. 

Universe and Great Fidelity file annual statements with the 
Department of Insurance of the states of Idaho and Indiana, 
respectively, prepared on the basis of accounting practices 
prescribed or permitted by such regulatory authorities. Prescribed 
statutory accounting practices include a variety of publications of 
the National Association of Insurance Commissioners (NAIC), as 
well as 'state laws, regulations and general administrative rules. 
Permitted statutory accounting practices encompass all accounting 
practices not so prescribed. The Company has no material 
permitted statutory accounting practices. . 

On March 5, 1996, at the direction of its Board of Directors, 
Universe and the Idaho Department of Insurance (the Department) 
entered into a Stipulation and Order of Rehabilitation (the Order) in 
the District Court of the Fourth Judicial District of the State of 
Idaho (the Court). Pursuant to the . Order, the rehabilitator 
appointed by the Department took possession of Universe's assets. 
In addition, Great Fidelity consented to a modified supervision 
order issued by the Indiana Department of Insurance on March 6, 
1996. Under both orders, the present management of both 
companies was retained. A formal Plan of Rehabilitation (the Plan) 
was fiied with the Court on August 8, 1997 and was amended and 
approved on October 7, 1997. The Plan became ~ffective upon 'an 
offer of replacement coverage from Trustmark, an acceptable third 
party insurer to all certificateholders insured under the group 

. universal health policies originally issued by Universe. The Plan 
required Centennial to deposit $14.5 million plus net premiums 
(defined as gross premiums less claims, commissions, taxes and 
administration and trust fees) from September 1, 1997, into a 
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segregated trust account under the control of the rehabilitator, and 
rescinded or terminated · all contracts and agreements between 
Centennial and Universe (see Note 1). 

Universe and Centennial reserved the right to continue negotiations 
to resolve their respective claims relating to Centennial's activities 
associated with the administration of these policies. 

On February 4, 1998, the Commission of the Kansas Insurance 
Department (the Centennial Rehabilitator) was appointed as 
rehabilitator of Centennial. 

On February 19, 1998, the Court entered a Judgment against 
Centennial for restitution and return by Centennial of Universe's 
assets held by Centennial and/or the Centennial Rehabilitator in the 
aggregate amount of $19.3 million. The Court further ordered that 
Universe was entitled to interest on its net assets held while in the 
possession of Centennial. Universe received a transfer of $l3.5 
from the segregated trust account in December 1997. The Court 
ordered Centennial to place $9.5 million on deposit in the same 
segregated trust account, which represented the remaining Universe 
assets of $5.8 million plus the interest on the total assets of $3.7 
million, as calculated over the period for which theses assets were 
under the control of Centennial. 

Universe estimates that if the entire $9.5 million is ultimately 
collected from Centennial, Universe will incur liabilities 
approximating $8.1 million for the. payment of certain 
administrative costs, legal fees and for future policy benefits. 
Should the amount collected be less than $9.5 f!liJlion, the related 
liability would also be reduced by an amount which management 
believes would approximate the uncollected judgment amount. 
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The following reconciles the statutory net income (loss) of 
Universe and Great Fidelity, as filed with regulatory authorities, to 
the net income included in the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements (as discontinued operations) based on generally 
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) for the years ended 
December 31, 1997 and 1996: 

1997 1996 

Statutory net income (loss) $ 7,225,795 $ (2,458,247) 
Adjustments to reconcile to the 

basis of GAAP: 
Future policy benefits 688,397 4,129,443 
Depreciation and amortization (15,646) 74,504 
Deferred gain on sale of real 

estate 32,842 32,842 
Deferred acquisition costs (163,397) (351,483 ) 
Cost of insurance and licenses 

acquired (106,612) (54,816) 
Prepaid expenses (33,599) (60,150) 
1nterest maintenance reserve (61,021) (38,885) 
GUHgain 1,542,235 
Other (288,994) (372,703) 

Net income in accordance 
withGAAP $ 8,820,000 $ 900,505 

The following reconciles the statutory capital and surplus (deficit) 
of Universe and Great Fidelity, as filed with regulatorj authorities, 
to stockholder's equity (deficit) of Universe and -Great Fidelity in 
accordance with GAAP which includes the net assets (liabilities) to 
be disposed and stockholder's equity ($1,822,242 at December 31, 
1997) included in continuing operations in the accompanying 
consolidated financial statements for the years ended D,ecember 31, 
1997 and 1996: 
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1997 1996 

Statutory capital and surplus (deficit) $1,508,667 $ (3,537;883) 
Cumulative effect of adjustments 

to reconcile to the basis of GAAP : 
Non-admitted assets 
Asset valuation reserve 
Interest maintenance reserve 
Future policy benefit 
Difference between amortized 

cost and f~ir value· of debt and 
equity securities available for 
sale, net of deferred taxes 

Deferred gain on sale of real 
estate 

Deferred income taxes 
Deferred acquisition costs 
Cost of insurance and licenses 

acquired 
Gain on sale of GUH business 
Prepaid expenses 

Stockholder's equity (deficit) in 

362,249 
184,515 
740,941 

(492,041) 

47,915 . 

(361,261) 
(101,097) 

709,775 
280,006 
801,962 

(900,675) 

(26,725) 

(423,917) 
(U3,054) 
164,843 

1,618,125 
(4,900,000) 

33,599 

accordance with GAAP $ 1,889,888 $ (6,293,944) 

Risk Based Capital 

The annual statement instructions of the National Association of 
Insurance Commissioners require the calculation of risk-based 
capital (RBC) for all life insurance enterprises. The RBCserves as 
a benchmark for the regulation of life insurance companies by state 
insurance regulators. RBC provides for surplus formulas similar to 
target surplus formulas used by commercial rating agencies. The 
formulas specify various weighting factors that are applied to 
financial balances or various levels of activity based on the 
perceived degree of risk, and are set forth in the RBC requirements. 
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Such formulas focus on four general types of risk: (a) the risk with 
respect to the Company's assets (assets or default risk); (b) the risk 
of adverse insurance experience with respect to the Company's 
liabilities and obligations (insurance or underwriting risk); (c) the 
interest rate risk with respect to the Company;s business 
(asset/liability matching); and, (d) all other business risks 
(management, regulatory action, and contingencies). The amount 
determined under such formulas is called the authorized control 
level RBC (ACLC). 

The RBC guidelines define specific capital levels based on a 
company's ACLC that are determined by the ratio of the 
Company's total adjusted capital (T AC) to its ACLC. T AC is equal 
to statutory capital, plus the Asset Valuation Reserve and any 
voluntary investment reserves, 50% of dividend liability, and certain 
other specified adjustments. The specific capital levels, in declining 
order, and applicable ratios are generally as follows: "Company 
Action Level" where TAC is less than or equal to 2.0 times ACLC; 
"Regulatory Action Level" where T AC is less than or equal to 1. 5 
times ACLC; "Authorized Control Level" where TAC is less than 
or equal to 1.0 times ACLC; "Mandatory Control Level" where 
T AC is less than or equal to 0.7 times ACLC. Companies at the 
Company Action Level must submit a comprehensive financial plan 
to the insurance commissioner of the state of domicile. Companies 
at the Regulatory Action Level are subject to a mandatory 
examination or analysis by the commissioner and possible required 
corrective actions. At the Authorized Control Level, a company 
may be subject to, among other things, the commissioner placing it 
under regulatory control. At the Mandatory Control Level, the 
msurance commISSIoner IS required to place a company under 
regulatory control. 

At December 31, 1997, Universe's TAC was $1,693,181 or 6.3 
times its ACLC. At December 3 I, 1995, Universe fell into the 
mandatory control level as its T AC was a deficit. As Universe's 
T AC was still a deficit at December 31, 1996, Universe remained in 
the mandatory control level. 
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At December 31, 1997 Great Fidelity's T AC was $2,511,297 or 
31.6 times its ACLC ($2,731,839 or 12.2 times its ACLC in 1996). 
Accordingly, Great Fidelity does not currently fall into one of the 
above levels. 

Contingencies 

Various lawsuits against Universe have arisen in the ordinary 
course of business. Management believes that contingent liabilities 
that may arise from these lawsuits will not 'be material in relation to 
the financial position or results of operations of Universe. 

The amortized cost and market value of investment and mortgage­
backed securities as of December 31, 1997 and 1996 follow. The 
market values are based on quoted market prices, where available, 
or on values obtained from independent pricing services. 

Held-to-maturity: 
U.S. Treasury bonds 
Corporate bonds 

Total hcld-to"matunty 

Available-for-sale: 
Government: 

Mortgage backed 
securities 

Total dcbt securities 

Common stocks 

- Total available-for-sale 

~ 

$ 

$ 

December 3 1, 1997 

Gross Gross 
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized 

Cost Gains Losses 
Market 

Value 

1,298,148 $ 
100,000 

65,717 $ 
2,271 

- $ 1,363,865 
102,271 

1,398.148 $ 67,988 $ - $ 1.466,136 

December 31. 1997 
Gross Gross 

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized 
Cost Gains Losses 

502.8-W $ - $ {5,046) $ 

502,840 (5,046) 

624,662 72.639 

Market 
Value 

497.794 

497,794 

697.301 

$ 1,127.502 $ 72,639 $ (5.046) $ 1.195,095 
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Available-for-sale: 
Preferred stocks $ 
Common stocks 

Total available-for-sale $ 

December 31, 1996 
Gross Gross 

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized 
Cost Gains Losses 

245,474 $ - .$ -
8,975 

254,4.f9 $ - $ -

.$ 

$ 

Market 
Value 

245,474 
8,975 

254,449 

The amortized cost and market value of debt securities 
segregated by held-to-maturity and available-for-sale at 
December 31, 1997, by contractual maturity, are shown below. 
Expected maturities may differ from contractual maturities 
because borrowers may have the right to prepay obligations. 
Securities not due at a single maturity date are collateralized 

. mortgage obligations of government backed securities which 
have principal payments throughout the life of the investment, the 
timing of which may vary with market conditions. 

Held-to-Maturi~ . Available-for-Sale 
Amortized Market Amortized Market 

Cost Value Cost Value 

Due one tl,rough 
five years $ 1,398.148 $ 1,466,136 $ - .$ 

Not due at a single 
maturity date 502,840 497,794 

$ 1,398,148 $ 1,466,136 $ 502,840 $ 497,794 
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Property and equipment at December 31 consist of the following: 

Leasehold improvements 
Furniture and equipment 

Less accumulated depreciation 

1997 1996 

$ 136,143 
2,311,100 

2,447,243 
. 2,261,791 

$ 87,794 
596,475 

684,269 
587,968 

$ 185,452 $ 96,301 

Mortgages and notes payable at December 31 consist of the 
following: 

1997 1996 

Mortgages on real estate - 11.75% 
at December 31, 1997, due 2000 $ 65,433 $ 71,357 

Notes payable: 
Term loan - 8%, due 1998, 

unsecu·red 504 60,313 

$ 65,937 $ 131,670 

Aggregate maturities of mortgages and notes payable over the next 
five years are as follows : 

Year ending December 3 1, 

1998 
1999 
2000 

Amount 

$ 6,743 
7,013 

52,181 

$ 65,937 
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Income tax expense (benefit) at December 31 consists of the 
following: 

1997 1996 

Current $ 196,697 $ 81,254 
Deferred 185,698 (35,170) 

Income tax ex£ense $ 382,395 $ 46,084 

The allocation of income tax expense between contInuIng and 
discontinued operations at December 31 is as follows: 

1997 1996 

Continuing operations $ 192,395 $ 46,084 
Discontinued operations 190,000 

Income tax ex£ense $ 382,395 $ 46,084 

Deferred income taxes retlect the impact of "temporary differences" 
between amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting 
purposes and such amounts as measured by tax laws. 

The significant components of the Company's net deferred tax 
assets and liabilities at December 31 are summarized as follows: 
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1997 1996 

Defcrred tax assets: 
Net operating loss carryforwards $ 1,716,000 $ 5,374,405 
AMT credit cal1)forwards 226,000 6,967 
Accrued wages 126,000 136,000 
Policy reserves 140,000 69,807 
Other 207,000 301,787 

Total deferred tax assets 2,415,000 5,888,966 

Deferred tax liabilities: 
Ta--:: over book depreciation (128,000) (164,149) 
Deferred gains on installment 
sales on real estate (251,000) (327,467) 

Net unrealized gains on available-
for-sale securities (71,000) (59,631 ) 

Deferred policy acquisition costs (55,555 ) 
Other. (12,478) 

Total deferred tax liabilities {450,OO02 (619,280) 

Valuation allowance ' (1,935,000) (5,065,939) 

Net deferred tax asset $ 30,000 $ 203,747 

The Company's effective income tax on income from continuing 
operations differs from the expected corporate statutory federal 
income tax rate primarily as a result of the change in valuation 
allowance. 

At December 31, 1997, the Company has approximately $ 5 milliol1 
in net operating loss carryforwards which are available to offset 
future taxable income which expire through 2011. 

The Company's ability to use its net operating loss carryforwards to 
offset future taxable income is subject to annual . restrictions 
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contained in the United States Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as 
amended (the Code). These restrictions act to limit the Company's 
future use of its net operating losses following certain substantial 
stock ownership changes as enumerated in the Code. There was 
such a change in ownership during 1995 · and there are substantial 
annual restrictions limiting the Company's future use of its net 
operating loss carryforwards. 

The Company had transactions with stockholders as follows: 

1997 1996 

Related party receivable, 
beginning of year $ 283,736 $ 126,657 

Advances 65,806 157,079 
Reductions 

Related ~art~ receivable, end ofz:ear $ 349,542 $ 283,736 

In July 1995, the Company acquired all the outstanding shares 
(613,494 shares) of its former majority stockholder in exchange for 
the following : 

$7.5 million of debt as described in the paragraph below and 
the following items with an aggregate fair market value of 
$240,000: 

* Three aircraft, net of related encumbrances; 
* Elimination of approximately $570,000 in debt to 

the Company; 
* Non-competition agreement through December 3 I, 

1998; and 
* Miscellaneous furniture and fixtures . 

A down payment of $1.5 million originally due on October 22, 
1995 was renegotiated in July 1996 to be due October 31, 1996. 
Interest on this note (as renegotiated in July 1996) is 9.5% (14% 
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while in default) and principal and interest payments of$33,750 per 
month are due beginning August 1, 1996. The balance at 
December 31, 1997 and 1996 was $1 ,164,783 and $1,394,472, 
respectively. The remaining $6 million is payable in the form of a 
note with interest at 8,25%, monthly payments of interest only, 
principal due and payable August 1, 2005. These notes are secured · 
by the Company's stock and commission income. In addition, in 
July 1996, the Company agreed to reimburse the former · majority 
stockholder for attorney's fees related to the restructuring. 

Series A Preferred Stock 

The Company has 136,852 outstanding shares of no par, 
nonparticipating Series A preferred stock at December 31, 1997 
(153,613 in 1996). 

Pursuant to the preferred stock agreement, the holder of the Series 
A preferred stock has the right to require the Company to redeem 
the stock at any time after September 14, 1993. The right was 
exercised by giving the Company written notice of demand for 
redemption effective December 2, 1993 . 

The Company began redeeming the Series ApH~ferred shares at 
$10 per share over a fifteen year period with interest at 1-1/2% 
below the First Interstate Bank of Idaho, N.A. prime rate, adjusted 
quarterly. In 1995, the Company agreed to restructure the 
redemption over a ten year period with interest at 114% above the 
First Interstate Bank ofIdaho, N .A. prime rate, adjusted quarterly. 
The Company redeemed 16,761 shares in 1997 and 16,949 shares 
in 1996. On July 1, 1996, the Company furthe~ restructured the 
Series A shareholder agreement such that in addItion to the regular 
ten-year amortization agreed to in 1995, a payment of $100,000 
will be made at the end of each six-month period commencing upon 
the full payment of the down payment note to the Company's 
former majority stockholder (see Note 7). Also, no principal 
payment shaH be made on the $6 million note payable to the 
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Company's former maJonty stockholder (see Note 7) until the 
Series A preferred stock has been fully redeemed. 

The redemption over the next five years and thereafter according to 
the regular ten year amortization schedule is as follows: . 

Year ending December 3 ] , Amount 

1998 $ 181,400 
1999 197,925 
2000 215,955 
2001 235,628 
2002 257,093 
Thereafter 280,516 

:£ 1,368,517 

If the Company dissolves, the Series A preferred stock has 
liquidating preference over common and Series C Stockholders in 
amounts equal to its redemption value. The holder of the Series A 
preferred stock has the right, voting separately as a class, to elect 
one member to the Board of Directors. 

Series C Preferred Stock 

During 1995, the Company initiated a private placement of 
preferred stock in which 150,000 shares of the 500,000 shares 
authorized of the Series C 10% convertible preferred stock and 
attendant Series C warrants were sold for $1.5 million in August of 
] 995 . An additional 50,000 shares with proceeds 'Of approximately 
$200,000 were placed by December 31, 1995. During 1996, 
86,500 shares with proceeds of $865,000 were placed. During 
1997, 11,000 shares with proceeds of $1 10,000 were placed. At 
December 31, 1997,297,500 shares were outstanding. Each Series 
C warrant issued to the preferred stock investors is exercisable 
upon the earlier of two years or the completion of a stock offering 
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which raises a minimum of $5 million and entitles the investors to 
acquire .0000307% of the Company's common stock on a fully 
diluted basis at a price below market value. The terms of the Series 
C preferred shares are as follows: 

The holders shall have no right to receive notice of or to vote 
on any matter at any regular or special meeting of 
stockholders of the corporation. 

The holders shall be entitled t6 receive, when and as declared 
by . the Company's Board of Directors, cumulative cash 
dividends at the per annum rate of 10% of the liquidation rate. 
The liquidation rate is $10 per share and the dividends are 
payable annually in preference to any dividends upon the 
Company's common stock, . but only if redemption payments 
to the Series A stockholder are current. 

Upon dissolution, liquidation, or winding-up affairs of the 
Company, the Series C convertible preferred stockholders 
receive preference before any payment is made to the holders 
of common stock. · The liquidation value per share is $10 plus 
any declared and unpaid dividends. 

Preferred stock is subject to certain mandatory redemption 
features and the Company has the right to redeem the 
preferred shares at any time. The redemption value at 
December 31, 1997 totaled approximately $3 .0 million ($2.9 
million at December 31, 1996). 

Each holder of Series C preferred stock shall have the right, 
exercisable beginning at the earlier of the date of receipt of 
notice of mandatory redemption of the Series C preferred 
stock or two years after the first Issuance of the stock and 
ending on the closing date of an equity offering, to convert 
each share of preferred stock into that number of shares of 
common stock which equals .0000693% of the common 
stock on a fully diluted basis at the effective date of exercise. 
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Common Stock 

See Note 7 for discussion regarding purchase of common stock 
from former majority stockholder. 

Employee Benefits Plans 

The Company may grant options to purchase shares of common 
stock to key employees of the Company under a stock option plan. 
The exercise price shall be no less than the fair market value of the 
shares on the grant date. The options vest immediately upon 
issuance and generally expire within five years. 

The following table summarizes stock option activity: 

Outstanding at January 1, 1996 
Granted 
Expired or canceled 
Exercised 

Outstanding at December 31, 1996 
Granted 
Expired or canceied 
Exercised 

Outstanding at December 31, 1997 

Number 
of 

Shares 

507,157 
48,174 

555)31 
101,219 

Exercise 
Price Per 

Share 

$0.01-$1.22 
$l.95 

$ 0.01-$1.95 
$3.42 

656,550 . $0.01-$3.42 
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The following table summarized information about fixed-price 
. stock options outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 1997: 

Options Outstanding 0Etions Exercisable 
Weighted-

Avemgc Wcighted- Weighted-
Range of Remaining Average Average 
EX<!fcisc Number Contractual Exercise Number Exercise 

Prices of Shares Life Price of Shares Price 

$0.01 475,000 5.00 $0.01 475,000 SO.OI 
$1.22 32,157 5.00 $1.22 32,157 SI.22 
$1.95 4&,174 3.75 $1.95 48,174 $1.95 
53.42 101,219 4.75 $3.42 101,219 $3.42 

$0.01 -$3 .42 656,550 4.87 52.65 656,550 $2.65 

Under the provisions of SFAS No. 123, the Company's net income 
would have · been reduced to the pro forma amounts indicated 
below: 

Years endill;; December 31, 

Net income 
As reported 
pro forma 

1997 

$ 9,790,505 
$ 9,703,014 

1996 

$ 1,722,454 
$ . 1,698,712 

The Company maintains a profit sharing retirement plan with an 
IRS Code Section 401 (k) feature covering substantially all 
employees who have completed one year of service. Employee 
elective deferral contributions are 100% vested and Company 
contributions are fully vested after seven years of participation. 
The Company's contributions to the plan were $59,000 and 
$124,847 in 1997 and 1996, respectively. 

The Company has an employee stock ownership plan covering 
employees who have completed one year of service. Employees 
are fully vested after five years of participation. There were no 
contributions to the plan in 1997 or 1996. Non-vested participants' 
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IBDO BOO Seidman, LLP 
Accountants and Consultants 

Independent Auditor's Report 

The Board of Directors 
AlA Services Corporation and Subsidiaries 

900 Seafirst Financial Center 
60 I West Riverside Avenue 
Spokane. Washington 99201-D611 
Telephone: (509) 747-8095 
Fax: (509) 747-0415 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of AlA-Services Corporation (an 
Idaho corporation) and subsidiaries as of December 31, 1996, and the related consolidated 
statements of operations, changes in stockholders' deficit and cash flows for the year then ended. 
These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated rmancial statements based on our audit. 
The financial statements of AlA Services Corporation as of December 31, 1995, were audited by 
other auditors whose report dated April 5, 1996, except notes 8 and 9 which are as of July 1, 
1996, and note 3(i) which is as of October 7, 1997, expressed an unqualified opinion except for 
the effects of not writing off or fuily reserving intangible assets included in the net liabilities to be 
disposed of approximately $2,233,000 and included an explanatory paragraph regarding the 
Company's ability to continue as a going concern. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test 
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also 
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation .. We believe that our audit 
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the consolidated financial position of AlA Services Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 
31, 1996, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for uie year then ended in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. 

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company has suffered 
significant losses, primarily attribtitable to its insurance underwriting segment. This segment was 
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discontinued effective October 1, 1995; however, disposal is not complete and the recovery of the 
segment's assets and settlement of continuing and terminated obligations are being negotiated. The 
status of Management's efforts to transfer its insurance risk and settle its insurance obligations is 
described in Note 1. The accompanying consolidated financial statements do not include any 
adjustments that might result from the outcome of these negotiations. 

June 17, 1997, except from the last paragraph 
on page 29 through the second full paragraph 
on page 30 which is as of October 8, 1997 and 
Note 1 and the first paragraph on page 
25 which are as of December 1, 1997 
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December 31, 1996 1995 

Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 474il37 $ 1,175,089 
Accrued investment income 12,228 15,123 
Investments (Note 3) 254,449 254,449 
Real estate, net of accumulated depreciation of $107,280 

and $110,155, respectively 161,565 167,124 
Receivables 898,704 833,161 
Related party receivable (Note 7) 283,736 126,657 
Prepaid expenses 471,969 417,852 
Income tax refund receivable (Note 6) 3,033 
Deferred income taxes (Note 6) 203,747 168,577 
Property and equipment, net (Note 4) 96.301 181,087 

Total assets $ 2,856.836 $ 3,342,152 

AFFIDAVIT OF GARYD. BABBITT IN SUPPORT OF AlA SERVICES CORPORATION'S AND fu3Q 
AlA INSURANCE, INC.'S MEMORANDUM IN OPPOSITION TO PLAINTIFF'S MOTION FOR 
PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION AIA0025038 



AlA Services C 
and S 

Consolidated Balan 

December 31, 

Liabilities and Stockholders' Deficit 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Income taxes payable (Note 6) 
Unearned commissions 
Mortgages and notes payable (Note 5) 
Net liabilities to be disposed (Note 2) 
Obligation to former majority common stockholder (Note 7) 

Total liabilities 

Series A preferred stock - redeemable and convertible, 
no par value, 200,000 shares authorized, issued and 
outstanding, 153,613 and 170,562 shares (Note 8) . 

Commitments and Contingencies (Notes 2 and 10) 

Stockholders' deficit (Note 8): . 
Series C convertible preterred stock - $1 par value, 
500,000 shares authorized, issued and outstanding, 
286,500 and 200,000 shares (Note 8) 

Common stock - $0.01 par value, 11,000,000 authorized, 
issued and outstanding 1,079,520 shares (Notes 7 and 8) 

Additional paid-in capital 
Unrealized gains on investment securities 
available-far-sale, net of taxes 

Accumulated deficit, including accumulated deficit from 
discontinued operations of ($14,245,921) and ($15,146,426) 

Total stockholders' deficit 

Total liabilities and stockholders' deficit 

$ 

1996 

1,466,.876 
65,216 

761,000 
131,670 

6,293,944 
7,394,472 

16,113,178 

1,536,134 

286,500 

10,795 
2,197,796 

(17 ,287 ,567) 

(14,792.476) 

$ 2,856,836 

$ 

1995 

3,218,108 

646,000 
842,Oll 

6,824,7l7 
7,124,534 

18,655,370 

1,705,620 

200,000 

10,795 
1,419,295 

111,199 

(18,760,127) 

(17,018,838) 

$ 3,342,152 

See accomparrying summary of accounting policies and notes to consolidated fuw.ncwl statements. 
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Year Ended December 31, 

Revenues: 
Commissions (Note 7) 
Administrative fees 

Investment" income 

Total revenues 

Expenses: 
Commission expense . 
General and administrative expense 

Interest expense 
Writ~ff of deferred. acquisition costs 

Total expenses 

Income (loss) from continuing operations 

before income taxes 
Income tax expense (benefit) 

Income (loss) from continuing operations 

Income (loss) from discontinued operations, 

net of applicable income taxes (Note 2) 

Net income (loss) 

AlA Services Corp 
and Subs 

Consolidated Statements of Dnmd1 

1996 

$ 6,255,197 
3,382,553 

120,476 

9,758.226 

2,857.256 
5,187.974 

844,963 

8,890.193 

868,033 
46.084 

821,949 

900.505 

$ 1,722,454 

1995 

$ 7,473,932 
3,439,955 

82,866 

10,996,753 

3,025,205 
7,491,331 

564,714 
2,331,166 

13,412,416 

(2,415,663) 
(770;633) 

(1,645 ,030) . 

(9,005,120) 

$(10,650,150) 

See accompanying summary ofaccounIing policies and notes 10 consolidated financial statements . . 
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Unrealized Gains 
(Losses) on 

Investment 
Series C Securities 

Convertible Additional Available-
Preferred Common Paid-in Treasury , for-'Sale, 

Stock Stock Capital Stock Net of Taxes 

Balance, January 1, 1995 $ $ 1,033,380 $ 771,318 $(1,244,153) $ (493,219) 

Net loss 
Unrealized gains on investment 

securities available-for-sale 604,418 

Purchase of common stock from 
fonner majority stockholder (7;740,027) 

Change in par value of common stock 

and split stock (349,045) 349,045 

Cancellation of outstanding 
treasury stock (673,540) (1,120,363) 8,984,180 

Issuance of Series C convertible 

preferred shares 200,000 1,486,418 

Series C preferred dividends paid 
or accrued (67,123) 

Balance, December 31, 1995 200,000 10,795 1,419,295 111,199 

Net income 
Unrealized gains on investment 

securities available-for-sale 4,563 
Issuance of Series C convertible 

preferred shares 86,500 778,501 

Series C preferred dividends paid 

or accrued 
Transfer to net liabilities to 

be disposed of (1t5,762) 

Balance, December 31, 1996 $ 286,500 $ 10,795 $ 2,197,796 $ $ 

Accumulated 

Deficit 

$ (919,700) 

(J 0,650, 150) 

(7,190,277) 

(18,760,127) 

1,722,454 

(249,894) 

$ (17,287,567) 

See accompanying summary of accounring policies and nOles to consolidated financial statements. 
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AlA Services Co 
and Su 

Consolidated Statements of 

Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Year Ended December 31, 

Cash flows from operating activities: 

Net income (loss) 
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net 
cash used in operating activities: 

Depreciation and amortization 

Write off of account receivable 
Other (gains) losses 

Deferred income taxes 
Change in assets and liabilities: 

Receivables 

Prepaid expenses 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 

Income taxes payable (receivable) 

Unearned commissions 

Discontinued operations 

Net cash used in operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Capital expenditures 
Proceeds from sale of securities available for sale 

Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 

Issuance of notes receivable 

Discontinued operations investing activities 

Net cash provided by investing activities 

1996 

$ 1,722,454 

101,451 
260,706 

(35,170) 

(323,354) 
(54,117) 

(1,751,232) 
.68,249 
115,000 

(5, 751,605) 

(5,647,618) 

(11,352) 

246 
(157,079) 

5,748,399 

5,580,214 

1995 

$ (10,650,150) 

2,560,265 

(649) 
(772,818) 

112,357 
155,554 

1,165,157 

(120,000) 
(9,365,528) 

(16,915,812) 

(24,940) 
8,432 

(28) 
(126,661) 

24,239,945 

24,096,748 
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Consolidated Statements of 

Year Ended December 31, 

Cash flows from financing activities: 
Repayment of mortgages and notes payable 
Capital paid in to discontinued operations 
Redemption of preferred stock 
Dividends paid to preferred stockholders 
Net proceeds from issuance of Series C preferred stock 

Issuance of notes payable 
Discontinued operations financing activities 

1996 

(710,334) 

(169,486) 
(249,894) 
865,001 
269,938 

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 5,225 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (62,179) 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year, including 
$504,484 and $39,188 from discontinued operations 1,679,573 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year, including 
$1,143,257 and $504,484 from discontinued operations $ 1,617,394 

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information: 
Cash paid for the period for: 

Interest 
Income taxes 

$ 

$ 

785,253 

1995 

(701,743) 
(1,500,000) 

(197,481) 
(67,123) 

1,686,418 

(5,154,000) 

(5,933,929) 

1,247,007 

432,566 

$ 1,679,573 

$ 

$ 
757,413 

(220,209) 

See accompanying summary of accounIing policies and notes to consolidated financwl statements. 
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Business Activities 

AlA Services Co 
and SUb~IFUr.;tJ 

Summary of Accounting 

AlA Services Corporation (the Company) is an insurance holding company 
. based in Lewiston, Idaho. Prior to October 1, 1995, the Company had two 
business segments. The Insurance Underwriting segment was comprised of 
the Company's wholly-owned subsidiary, The Universe Life Insurance 
Company (Universe), and its wholly:.-owned subs.idiary, Great Fidelity Life 
Insurance Company, (Great Fidelity). Effective October 1, 1995 , the 
Company adopted a plan of disposal of jts insurance underwriting segment. 
(See Notes i and 2 for further discussion.) 

The Company's continuing operations consist of its Insurance Marketing 
segment. The principal business of this segment is marketing insurance 
products and services to ranchers and farmers, many of whom are members 
of agricultural associations. The Company's current products include group 
.health and life insurance and long-term care insurance. These products are 
marketed through two subsidiaries, AlA Insurance, Inc. and AlA 
MidAmerica, Inc. 

The Company has established relationships with state and regional associations 
including the National Association of Wheat Growers, American Soybean 
Association,and the National Contract Poultry Growers Association 
(Association). These Associations were formed through the common interests 
of their members to .promote specific segments of the agriculture industry. 
They are the primary recognized organizations representing the interests of the 
grain growers, soybean growers and poultry growers in the United States . 

The Company sells group health insurance to these Associations and their 
members and provides administrative services for such insurance in 
accordance with the terms of marketing and administrative agreements 
between the Company and the underwriting insurance company. The 
Company also acts as the marketer and administrator for a multiple­
association trust whose participants engage in farming, ranching or other 
agriculture related businesses. As part of the Company's administrative 
duties, the Company collects association dues through its regular customer 
billing procedure, thereby creating an important link between the Company 
and the Associations, In return, the Associations endorse the Company and 
certain of its products and services. 
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Principles of 
Consolidation 

Investments 

AlA Services Corp 
and Subs 

Summary of Accounting 

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company 
and its wholly-owned subsidiaries: AlA Insurance, Inc. (AlA), AIA 
MidAmerica, Inc., AlA Pacific Marketing Corporation, The Universe Life 
Insurance Company (Universe), Great Fidelity Life Insurance Company 
(Great Fidelity), and AlA Bancard Services Corporation. All material 
intercompany transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. Universe 
and Great Fidelity are shown as discontinued operations (see Notes 1 and 2). 

The Company accounts for investments according to the provisions of 
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 115 (SFAS 115) 
.. Accounting for Certain . Investments in Debt and Equity Securities". SF AS 
115 requires that investments in all debt securities and those equity securities 
with readily determinable market values be classified into one of three 
categories: held-to-maturity, trading, or available-far-sale. Classification of 
investments is based upon management's current intent. Debt securities which 
management has a positive intent and ability to hold until maturity are 
classified as securities held-to-maturity and are carried at amortized cost 
adjusted for unamortized premium or discount. Unrealized holding gains and 
losses on securities held-to-maturity are not reflected in the consolidated 
financial statements. Debt and equity securities that are purchased for short­
term resale are classified as trading securities. Trading securities are carried 
at market value, with unrealized holding gains and losses included in 
earnings. All other debt and equity securities not included in the above two 
categories are classified as securities available-far-sale. Securities available­
for-sale are carried at market value, with unrealized holding gains and losses 
reported as a separate component of stockholders' equity, net of applicable 
income taxes. At December 31, 1996 and 1995, the Company did not have 
any investments categorized as trading securities. 

The Company's carrying value for investments in the held-to-maturity and 
available-for-sale category is reduced to its estimated realizable value if a 
decline in the market value is deemed other than temporary. Such reductions 
in carrying value are recognized as realized losses and charged to income. 
The Company has no investments where a decline in market value is deemed 
other than temporary. Premiums and discounts on debt securities are 
amortized over the life of the security as an adjustment to yield using the 
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Deferred Policy 
Acquisition Costs 

Property and 
Equipment 

Commission Income 

Administrative Fees 
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AlA Services Co 
and Subs 

Summary of Accounting 

effective interest method . Realized gains and losses on disposition of 
investments are included in net income. The cost of investments sold is 
determined on the specific identification method. 

Prior to 1995, costs of acquiring insurance business which vary with and are 
primarily related to the production of such business were deferred and 
amortized over the estimated life of the underlying policy. Such costs include 
certain expenses related to policy issuance and underwriting. These costs 
were being amortized over five years on a straight-line basis. During 1995, 
the Company began the disposal of its life and heiilth underwriting operations. 
This involved the disposal of the risk taking segments of Universe and Great 
Fidelity and the planned disposition of these two companies. The Company 
determined that as a result of actions taken to dispose of these two insurance 
companies, which issue and underwrite the policies related to the costs 
deferred, it was no longer appropriate to defer these costs. As a result, at 
December 31, 1995, the Company wrote off $2,331,166 in deferred 
acquisition costs, increasing 1995 expenses by this amount. 

Property and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. 
Where applicable, cost includes interest and real estate taxes incurred during 
construction and other construction related costs. Depreciation is computed 
principally by the straight-line method using lives of 31 to 40 years for 
buildings and five to seven years for equipment; 

Commission income is recognized ratably over the policy period. 

AlA is a third-party administrator for Universe, Centennial Life Insurance 
Company and various Association trusts providing administrative and data 
processing services. All administrative fees result from such arrangements 
and are recorded as income upon receipt, which approximates the time period 
over which the fees are earned. The administrative fees are calculated on a 
per policy basis, on a percentage of certain future policy benefits, and also as 
specific administrative functions are performed. 
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Income Taxes . 

Cash and Cash 
Equivalents 

Reclassifications 

Management 
Estimates 

AlA Services Corp 
and Subsi 

Summary of Accounting 

The Company files a consolidated income tax return for its non life insurance 
subsidiaries. A separate return is filed for the Company's life insurance 
subsidiaries. 

The Company accounts for income taxes according to the provisions of 
Statements of Accounting Financial Standards No. 109 (SFAS 109) 
"Accounting for Income Taxes." Under the asset and liability method of 
SFAS 109, deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax 
consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement 
carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax 

bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates 
. expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary 

differences are expected to be recovered or settled. Under SFAS 109, the 
effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is 
recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date. 

Cash and cash equivalents is comprised of cash and funds temporarily 
invested (with original maturities not exceeding three months) as part of the 
Company's management of day-to-day operating cash receipts and 
disbursements . 

Certain amounts in the prior year's financial statements have been reclassified 
to conform to the current year's presentation. 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting prillciples requires management to make estimates and assumptions 
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the 
reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. 
Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
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AlA Services Corp 
and Subs 

Notes to Consolidated Financial 

In 1995, the Company adopted a plan to dispose of its insurance underwriting 
segment (the Plan) and recognized a net loss from discontinued operations of 
$9.0 million. This loss includes management's estimate of the liabilities to 
be incurred by the Company in disposing of the insurance underwriting 
segment according to plan, in excess of the assets available to satisfy these 
liabilities (see Note 2) and the operating results of the insurance underwriting 
segment. The Plan requires that the Company transfer or settle the insurance 
underwriting risk of its insurance subsidiaries, Universe and Great Fidelity, 
and liquidate these insurance subsidiaries' remaining assets and liabilities. As 
the Plan is carried out, management re-estimates its net liability to dispose of 
the insurance underwriting segment. In 1996, net income from discontinued 
operations of $900,000 included changes in estimates of liabilities and 
recoverable amounts of assets and the operating results of the insurance 
underwriting segment. 

Effective December 1, 1997, Universe completed the cancellation of 
substantially all of the Group Universal Health insurance policies previously 
reinsured, assumed or written by Centennial Life Insurance Company 
(Centennial) and arranged for the certificateholdersto obtain similar coverage 
from Trustrnark Insurance Company (Trustmark). The cash value obligation 
for the related Supplemental Benefit Accounts (SBA) and Universal Benefits 
(UB) of the certificateholders remains with Universe until satisfied by 
payment. Approximately $13.5 million was placed in trust by Centennial and 
management believes these funds will be sufficient to satisfy the remaining 
prepaid premium obligations, claim liabilities, withdrawal values and vested 
SBA and UB obligations of Universe. The Company and Centennial are 
continuing negotiations to resolve their respective claims relating to 
Centennial's activities associated with the administration of these policies . 
Agreements to formal ize the Company's marketing and administration services 
relating to the Associations and their certificatehoJders,· now covered by 
Trustmark, are near completion and the Company expects that the new 
arrangements for commissions and administrative fees will provide' the 
Company a continued source of revenue sufficient to meet its operating 
obligations. No adjustments to record the effects of these 1997 transactions 
have been included in the Company's 1996 financial statements. 
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2 . . Discontinued 
Operations 

AlA Services C 
and Subs 

Notes to Consolidated Financial 

Great Fidelity continues to .retain 10% of the risk on long-term care policies 
(90 % of risk assumed by The American Long Term Care Reinsurance Group) 
and management has included an estimate of reserves necessary to fund policy 
Iiabil ities in the net liabil ities to dispose of the insurance underwriting segment 

. as of December 31, 1996. The Company is currently negotiating the sale of 
all or a portion of its common stock ownership interests ip Great Fidelity to 
an unrelated third party investor and continuing to pursue a reinsurance 
arrangement to transfer the remaining 10% long-term care risk. No 
adjustments have been recorded to reflect this possible sale of Great Fidelity 
common stock or reinsurance arrangement as the negotiations have not been 

finalized. 

The net liabilities to be disposed in the consolidated financial statements 
include management's estimates in accordance with Accounting Principles 
Board (APB) Opinion No. 30 "Reporting the Results of Operations-Reporting 
the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a Business, and Extraordinary, 
Unusual and Infrequently Occurring Events and Transactions," and consist of 
the following assets and liabilities of the insurance subsidiaries at December 
31: 

1996 1995 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1.143.257 $ 504,484 
Investment and mortgage-backed securities: 

Held-to-maturity 1.402,031 
Available-for-sale 8.028,768 14,033,604 

Mortgage loans on real estate 3.224,774 3,521,680 
Policy loans 58,545 74,316 
Short-term investments 289.561 1,032,564 
Other invested assets 85,351 
Accrued investment income 90,392 137,952 
Income taxes receivable 96,433 
Receivables 14.341,496 22,818,800 
Prepaid expenses 119,684 234,554 
Net property and equipment 153.900 250,495 
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AlA Services Corp 
and Subs 

Notes to Consolidated Financial 

1996 1995 

Deferred acquisition costs 163.396 514,880 
Cost of insurance and licenses acquired 1.509,896 1,717,757 

Total assets 30.525.700 45,022,870 

Policy liabilities 32.327.665 43,111,963 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 4,378,925 8,735,624 
Deferred income taxes 113.054 

Total liabilities 36,819.644 51,847,587 

Net liabilities to be disposed of $ 6.293,944 $ 6,824,717 

Summary consolidated statements of operations for the insurance subsidiaries 
to be disposed of are as foHows: 

Year ended December 31, 1996 1995 

Revenues: 
PremiulIiS $ 5.631.049 $ 24,319,529 
Investment income 945.380 1,498,819 

Total revenues 6',576,429 25,818,348 

Benefits and expenses: 
Benefits 1,520,581 22,294,342 
Commissions 815,519 5,263,431 
General and administrative expenses 3,339,824 6,650,656 
Interest 210,186 

Total benefits and expenses 5,675.924 34,418,615 

Income (loss) before income taxes 900,505 (8,600,267) 

Income tax expense (benefit) 404,853 

Net income (loss) $ 900,505 $ (9,005,120) 
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AlA Services Corp 
and SuOJ.~"~ 

Notes to Consolidated Financial 

Operating results of Universe and Great Fidelity, including changes in the 
estimate of net liabilities to be disposed, have been shown separately as 
income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of applicable income taxes, 
in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. 

All business remaining with Universe and Great Fidelity is in !1 runoff mode. 
Management anticipates no significant operating gain or loss for either 
company through final disposal date. However, the final settlement of 
liabilities and recovery of assets may result in a change in management's 
current estimates of these assets and liabilities, which will be included in the 
income (loss) from discontinued operations. 

Summary of Accounting Policies 

In addition to the accounting policies for continuing operations, the following 
accounting policies relate only to discontinued operations: 

Investment and Mortgage-Backed Securities 

Mortgage-backed securities represent participating interests in pools of first 
mortgage loans originated and serviced by the issuers of the securities. 
Premiums and discounts on mortgage-backed securities are amortized over 
the estimated life of the security as an adjustmerit to yield using' the effective 
interest method. Mortgage-backed securities are accounted for under SF AS 

115. 

Mortgage and Policy Loans 

Mortgage loans and policy loans are carried at unpaid principal balances. 
Real estate is carried at cost, less accumulated depreciation. 

Deferred Acquisition Costs 

Costs of acquiring insurance business which vary with and are primarily 
related to the production of such business are deferred and amortized over the 
estimated life of the underlying policy. Such costs include certain expenses 
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AlA Services Corp 
and Subs 

Notes to Consolidated Financial 

related to pol icy issuance and underwriting. These costs were written off in' 
1995. 

Cost of Insurance and Licenses Acquired 

The cost of licenses acquired related to discontinued operations is being 
amortized on a straight-line basis over 30 to 40 years. The cost of insurance 
acquired is being amortized over the premium-paying period of the related 
policies, estimated to be 5 to 15 years. 

Policy Benefits and Other Policy Liabilities 

Ordinary life insurance and annuity policy benefit liabilities are computed on 
a net level premium method using assumptions with respect to current 
investment yield, mortality, morbidity, withdrawal rates, and other 
assumptions determined to be appropriate as of the date the business was 
issued or purchased by the Company. Such estimates were based upon past 
experience adjusted to provide for possible adverse deviation from the 
estimates. 

Reserves for the Universal Benefit (UB), the Withdrawal Value (JIV), and the 
Supplemental Benefit Accumulation (SBA) components of the group accident 
and health insurance contracts are computed on a graduated scale from 25 % 
to 100% of the certificated holders' UB, WV, or SBA balance over a 10 to . 
15 year period. 

The liability for unpaid claims included in the net liability to be disposed is 
an estimate of payments to be made on insurance claims for reported losses 
and estimates of incurred but not reported claims. 

Reinsurance 

The Company accounts for reinsurance C)f insurance contracts according to th~ 
provjsions of Statement of Financial Standards No. 113, "Accounting and 
Reporting for Reinsurance of Short-Duration and Long-Duration Contracts" 
(SFAS 113). . Under SFAS 113, reinsurance receivables and prepaid 
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AlA Services Corp · 
and Subsi 

Notes to Consolidated Financial 

reinsurance premiums are accounted for and reported separately as assets, net 
of valuation allowance, rather than being deducted from the liability for future 
policy benefits and claims. As the Company's i~surailce subsidiaries' 
operations are discontinued, the reinsui:ance receivables and prepaid 
reinsurance are included in net liabilities to be disposed in the accompanying 
consolidated ·financial statements. The cost of reinsurance related to long­
duration contracts is accounted for over the life of the underlying reinsured 
policies using assumptions consistent with those used to account for the 
underlying policies. Contracts not resulting in the reasonable possibility that 
the reinsurer ·may realize a significant loss from the insurance risk assumed 
generally do not meet the conditions for reinsurance accounting and are to be 
accounted for as deposits. 

Reinsurance premiums ceded and reinsurance recoveries on benefits and 
claims incurred are deducted from the respective income and expense 
accounts. 

Recognition of Revenues and Costs 

Premiums on life insurance are recognized as revenue when due. Benefits, 
. losses and related expenses are matched with earned premiums in order to 
recognize income over the term of the contracts. This matching is 
accomplished by means of the provision for future policyholder benefits and 
estimated unpaid losses . 

Investment and Mortgage-Backed Securities 

The amortized cost and market value of investment and mortgage-backed 
securities as of December 31, 1996 and 1995 follows . The market values are 
based on quoted market prices, where available, or on value obtained from 
independent pricing services. 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial 

Held-to-maturity 
Bonds: 
U,S, Treasury bonds 
Corporate bonds 

Total held-to-maturity 

Available-for-sale 
Bonds: . 
Government: 

U,S. Treasury bonds 
Mortgage backed 
securities 

Corporate bonds 

Total debt securities 

Common stocks 

Total available-for-sale 

December 31, 1996 
Gross Gross 

Amortized unrealized unrealized Market 
value cost gains 

$ 1,302,031 $ 49,009 $ 
100,000 1,159 

$.1,402,031 $ 50,168 $ 

losses 

- $1,351,040 
101,159 

- $1,452,199 

December 31, 1996 
Gross Gross 

Amortized unrealized unrealized Market 
value cost gains 

$ 2,705,536 $104,278 $ 

4,505,200 
249,726 

7,460,462 104,278 

392,918 li6,162 

losses 

- $2,809,814 

(38 ,234) 4,466,966 
(6,818) 242,908 

(45,052) 7,519,688 

509,080 

$ 7,853,380 $220,440 $ (45,052) $8,028,768 
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AlA Services Corp 
and Subs 

Notes to Consolidated Financial 

December 31. 1995 
Gross Gross 

Amortized unrealized unrealized 
cost gains losses 

Available for sale: 
Bonds: 

Market 
value 

U.S. Treasury bonds 
Mortgage backed 

securities 
Corporate bonds 

$ 4,294,047 $236,337 $ (746) $ 4,529,638 

8,940,498 - (137,408) 8,803,090 
348,362 2,800 (237) 350,925 

Total debt securities 13,582,907 239,137 (138,391) 13,683,653 

Common stocks 392,918 15,304 (58,271) 349,951 

Total available-for-sale $13,975,825 $254,441 $ (196,662) $14,033,604 

At December 31, 1996 and 1995 securities held with. a carrying value of 
$3,963,445 and $3,915,311, respectively, were on deposit with certain state 
insurance departments inorder to meet regulatory requirements. 

A U.S. Treasury note with a carrying value of $766,875 and $727,098 at 
December 31, 1996 and 1995, respectively, was held in a Texas district court 
as security for payment of a judgment currently under appeal. 

The amortized cost and market value of debt securities segregated by held-to­
maturity and available-far-sale at December 31, 1996,· by contractual 
maturity, are shown below. Expected maturities may diff~r from contractual 
maturities because borrowers may have the right to prepay obligations. 
Securities not due at a single maturity date are collateralized mortgage 
obligations of government backed securities which have principal payments 
throughout the life of the investment, the timing of which may vary with 
market conditions. 
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Contractual maturity: 

Due one year or less 

Due one through five years 
Due six through ten years 
Due after ten years 

N at due at a single maturity d3.te 

H e1d-to-Maturity Available-for-Sale 

Amortized Market Amortized Market 
cost value cost value 

$ 50,067 $ 50,315 $ 649,767 $ 637,965 
1,351,964 1,401,884 746,740 771,009 

1,558,755 1,643,748 

- 4,505,200 4,466,966 . 

$ 1,402,031 $1,452,199 $7,460,.ul2 $ 7,519,688 

Investment income consists of the following: 

Year ended December 31, 1996 1995 

Bonds $ 559,184 $ 1,267,947 
Common stocks (16,500) 
Mortgage loans 276,502 299,666 
Policy loans 13,084 4,320 
Real estate 32.842 32,842 . 

Short-term investments 91.142 124,807 
Other 3,339 5,859 

976,093 1,718,941 
Less investment expenses 30,713 220,122 

$ 945,380 $ 1,498,819 
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Realized gains and losses on investments are as follows: 

Year ended December 31, 1996 1995 

Gross gains . 

Gross losses 
$ - $ 78,585 

(74.440) (382,039) 

$ (74,440) (303,454) 

Proceeds from the sales of fIxed maturity securities during 1996 and 1995 
were $1,025,000 and $601,914, respectively. 

Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment included as part of discontinued operations at 
December 31 consist of the following: 

1996 1995 

Company occupied properties $ 32,075 $ 32,075 
Furniture and equipment 1,786,238 1,795,485 

1,818,313 1,827,560 
Less accumulated depreciation 1,664,413 1,577,065 

$ 153,900 $ 250,495 

Sale of Real Estate 

On December 30, 1993, Universe sold its home office building for 
$2,650,000 in connection with a sale and lease back agreement. Universe 
received a note secured by a deed of trust for $1,987,500 at 8% per annum 
and the balance in cash. AlA entered into a 15 year lease with an option to 
purchase the property. Universe reported a deferred gain of $492,629 in 
1993 which is being recognized ove·r the term of the lease. Universe 
recognized $32,842 of the deferred gain in both 1996 and 1995. 

AFFIDA VIT OF GARY D. BABBITT IN SUPPORT OF AlA SERVICES CORPORATION'S AND 
AlA INSURANCE, INC.'S MEMORANDUM IN OPPOSITION TO PLAINTIFF'S MOTION FOR 
PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION 

23 

AIA0025057 

I 
! 
I 
! 



AlA Services Corp 
and Subs 

Notes to Consolidated Financial 

Policy Liabilities 

Policy liabilities at December 31 are as follows: 

Future policy benefits 
Unpaid claims 
Other policy liabilities 

1996 1995 

$30,965,857 $36,988,825 
1,069,916 5,877,615 

291,892 245,523 

$32,327,665 $43,111,963 

Activity in the liability for claims in the course of settlement and unrecorded 
claims as it applies to accident and health policies are as fOllows: 

1996 1995 

Balance, beginning of year, 

accident and health $ 5,853,825 $ 6,687,155 
Less reinsurance recoverable (190,040) (3,178,590) 

Net balance, beginning of year 5,663,785 3,508,565 

Total incurred during year 1.794,107 25,704,188 

Paid in current year related to: 
Current year 2,923,908 15,177,666 

Prior years 3.631,486 8,371,302 

Total paid 6,555,394 23,548,968 
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1996 

Net balance, end of year 902.498 
Plus reinsurance recoverable 167.418 

Balance, end of year, accident 

and health 1,069,916 

Net life claims liability 

Total unpaid claims, end of year $ 1,069,916 $ 

Dispositions and Reinsurance 

1995 

5,663,785 
190,040 

5,853,825 

23,790 

5,877,615 

During 1995 and 1994, Universe entered into various agreements with 
Centennial, pursuant to which Universe sold or reinsured its group universal 
health (GUH) business. Under a transfer agreement and related reinsurance 
agreements, Universe transferred all of its GUH morbidity underwriting risk, 
other than that related to totally disabled claimants, to Centennial. Effective 
December I, 1997, these agreements were rescinded and Centennial placed 
in trust approximately $13.5 million to pay the remaining policy obligations. 
Management believes these funds will be sufficient to satisfy the remaining 
policy obligations of Universe. The Company and Centennial are continuing 
negotiations to resolve their respective claims relating to Centennial's 
activities associated with the administration of these policies . 

Effective July 1, 1995, 90% of the long-term care business of Great Fidelity 
was ceded to a consortium of reinsurers on a quota-share basis. Great 
Fidelity will receive a ceding fee of 15 % of first year premium and 8 % of 
renewal premiums ceded. 

A summary of significant reinsurance amounts affecting the accompanying 
financial statements as of and for the years ended December 31, 1996 and 
1995 is presented below. The ceded balance sheet amountS have been 
classified as assets in the balance sheets of Universe and Great Fidelity in 
accordance with the provision of SF AS 113. 
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1996 
Assumed Ceded 

Balance sheets: 
N onaffiliates: 
Future policy benefits and claims: 

Accident .and health $ $13,330,533 
Amounts recoverable from reinsurer 781,830 

Reinsurance receivables $ $14,112,363 

1996 
Assumed Ceded 

Statement of operations: 
Nonaffiliates: 
Life insurance premiums $ $ 192,548 
Accident and health insurance premiums $ $18,825,289 
Benefits and claims $ $13,956,351 
Commission and expense allowances 
on reinsurance ceded $ $ 4,428,378 

1995 
Assumed Ceded 

Balance sheets: 
Nonaffiliates: 
Future policy benefits and claims: 

Accident and health 21,214,355 
Accounts recoverable from reinsurers 67,933 

Reinsurance receivables $ $21,282,288 
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Statements of operations: 
. Nonaffiliates: 

Life insurance premiums 
Accident and health insurance premiums 
Benefits and claims 
Commission and expense allowance 
on reinsurance ceded 

Assumed 

$ (9,903) 
$ 858,125 
$ 1,371,852 

$ 150,179 

1995 
Ceded 

$ 102,752 
$11,798,574 
$16,924,365 

$ 5,784,026 

The Company evaluates the financial condition of its reinsurers and monitors 
concentrations of credit risk arising from similar geographic regions, 
activities, or economic characteristics of the reinsurers to minimize its 
exposure to significant losses from reinsurer insolvencies. Ainounts for ceded 
future policy benefits and claims would represent a liability of the Company 
in the unlikely event that its reinsurers would be unable to meet existing 
obligations under reinsurance agreements. 

Income Taxes 

The significant components of the Company's net deferred tax assets and 
liabilities related to discontinued operations at December 31 are summarized 
as follows: 

Deferred tax assets: 
Policy reserves 
Net unrealized losses on 

available-far-sale securities 
Net operating loss carryforwards 
Other 

1996 

$69.807 

4,730,934 
274,380 

5,075,121 

1995 

$ 194,114 

61,328 
3,956,882 

302,521 

4,514,845 
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1996 

Deferred tax liabilities: 
Deferred policy acquisition costs (55,555) 
Tax over book depreciation 
and amortization (136,616) 

Deferred gains on installment 
sales on real estate (327A67) 

Net unrealized gains on available-

for-sale securities (59,631 ) 

Other (12A78) 

(591,747) 

.. :. , .. : .. ~.:.' .. :- .. ~. . ... -... 

1995 

(172,422) 

(155,793) 

(319,954) 

(44,480) 

(692,649) 

Valuation allowance (4A83.374) (3,822,196) 

Net deferred tax asset (liability) $ $ 

At December 31, 1996, The Universe Life Insurance Company consolidated 
group has approximately $13,900,000 in net operating loss carryforwards 
available to offset future taxable income which expire through 2010. 

The Company's ability to use its net operating loss carryforwards to offset 
future taxable income is subject to annual restrictions contained in the United 
States Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the Code). These 
restrictions act to limit the Company's future use of its net operating losses 
following certain substantial stock ownership changes as enumerated in the 
Code. There was such a change in ownership during the . year ended 
December 31, 1995 and there are substantial annual restr~ctions I imiting the 
Company's future use of its net operating loss carryforwards. 

Regulatory Requirements and Other Matters 

Generally, the net assets of Universe and Great Fidelity available for transfer 
to the Company are limited to the amollnts by which the net assets exceed 
minimum capital requirements·. 
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Under Idaho insurance law, dividends may be paid by Universe only from 
profits or earned surplus and require Iqaho Insurance Department 
(Department) approval if the dividend is .in excess of'the greater of 10% of 
surplus or net gain from operations of the prior year. Universe may not pay 
a dividend without prior approval from the Department. 

Under Indiana insurance law, the minimum statutory capital and surplus 
required is $450,000. Great Fidelity may not pay dividends that reduce 
surplus to less than 50% of capital stock. Extraordinary dividend payments 
which exceed the greater of the net gain from operations or 10% of surplus 
from the preceding year require approval from the Indiana Commissioner of 
Insurance. 

Universe and Great Fidelity file annual statements with the Department of 
Insurance of the states of Idaho and Indiana, respectively, prepared on the 
basis of accounting practices prescribed or permitted by such regulatory 
authorities. Prescribed statutory accounting practicesincJude a variety of 
publications of the National Association oflnsurance Commissioners (NAIC), 
as well as state laws, regulations and general administrative rules . Permitted 
statutory accounting practices encompass all accounting practices not so 
prescribed. The Company has no material permitted statutory accounting 
practices. 

On March 5, 1996, at the direction of its Board of Directors, Universe and 
the Idaho Department of Insurance (the Department) entered into a Stipulation 
and Order of Rehabilitation (the Order) in the District Court of the Fourth 
Judicial District of the State of Idaho (the Court). Pursuant to the Order, the 
rehabilitator appointed by the Department has taken possession of Universe's 
assets. In addition, Great Fidelity consented to a modified superVision order 
issued by the Indiana Department of Insurance on March 6, 1996. Under 
both orders, the present management of both companies was retained. A 
formal Plan of Rehabilitation (the Plan) was filed with the Court on August 
8, 1997 and was amended and approved on October 7, 1997. The Plan 
becomes effective upon an offer of replacement cO'v'crage from an acceptable 
third party insurer to all certificateholders insured under the group universal 
health policies originally issued by Universe. The Plan requires Centennial 
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to deposit $14.5 million plus net premiums (defined as gross premiums less 
claims, commissions, taxes and administration and trust fees) from September 
1, 1997, into a segregated trust account under the control of the rehabilitator, 
and rescinds or terminates all contracts and agreements between Centennial 
and Universe (see Note 1). 

Universe and Centennial reserve the right to continue negotiations to resolve 
their respective claims relating to Centennial's activities associated with the 

administratio!1 of these policies. 

The following reconciles the statutory net loss of Universe and Great Fidelity, 
as filed with regulatory authorities, to the net income Ooss) included in the 
accompanying consolidated financial statements (as discontinued operations) 
based on generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) for the years 
ending December 31, 1996 and 1995: 

1996 1995 

Statutory net loss $ (2,458.247) $ (823,709) 
Adjustments to reconcile to the basis 
of GAAP: 
Future policy benefits 4.129.443 (391,053) 
Gain on sale of GUH business (2,717,080) 
Deferred income taxes (404,853) 
Depreciation and amortization 74.504 (153,231) 
Deferred gain on sale of real estate 32,842 32,842 
Deferred acquisition costs (351.483) (1,580,945) 
Cost of insurance and licenses acquired (54,816) . (1,792,328) 
Prepaid expenses (60.150) (27,059) 
Interest maintenance reserve (38.885) (987,805) 
Other (372,703) (159,899) 

Net income (loss) in accordance 
with GAAP $ 900.505 $ (9,005,120) 
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The following reconciles the statutory capital and surplus (deficit) of Universe 
and Great Fidelity, as filed with regulatory authorities, to the net liabilities to 
be disposed included in the accompanying consolidated financial statements 
(as discontinued operations) based on GAAP for the years ending December 
31, 1996 and 1995: 

1996 1995 

Statutory capital and surplus (deficit) $ (3,537,883) $ (1,243,215) 
Cumulative effect of adjustments to 
reconcile to the basis of GAAP: 

Deferred acquisition costs 164,843 425,974 

Cost of insurance and licenses acquired 403,784 469,704 
Non-admitted assets 709,775 1,495,258 
Gain on sale of GUH business (4,900,000) (4,900,000) 
Cost of licenses 1,214,341 1,235,511 
Asset valuation reserve 280,006 187,105 
Interest maintenance reserve 801,962 840,847 

Future policy benefit (900,675) (5,119,297) 
Difference between amortized cost and 
fair value of debt and equity securities 

available for sale, net of deferred taxes (26,725) 100,744 

Prepaid expenses 33,599 93,749 
Property and equipment, net 15,848 
Deferred gain on sale of real estate (423,917) (426,945) 
Deferred income taxes (113,054) 

Net liabilities to be disposed $ (6,293,944) $ (6,824,717) 

Risk Based Capital 

The annual statement instructions of the National Association of Insurance 

Commissioners require the calculation of risk-based capital (RBC) for all life 
insurance enterprises. The RBC serves as a benchmark for the regulation of 
life insurance companies by state insurance regulators. RBC provides for 
surplus formulas similar to target surplus formulas used by commercial rating 
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agencies. The formulas specify various weighting factors that are applied to 
financial balances or various levels of activity based on the perceived degree 
of risk, and are set forth in the RBC requirements. Such formulas focus on 
four general types of risk: (a) the risk with respect to the Company's assets 
(assets or default risk); (b) the risk of adverse insurance experience with 
respect to the Company's liabilities and obligations (insurance or underwriting 
risk); (c) the interest rate risk with respect to the Company's business 
(asset/liability matching); and, Cd) all other business risks (management, 
regulatory action, and contingencies). The amount determined under such 
formulas is called the authorized control level RBC (ACLC). 

The RBC guidelines define specific capital levels based on a company's 
ACLC that are determined by the ratio of the Company's total adjusted capital 
(rAC) to its ACLC. TAC is equal to statutory capital, plus the Asset 
Valuation Reserve and any voluntary investment reserves, 50% of dividend 
liability, and certain other specified adjustments. The specific capital levels, 
in declining order, and applicable ratios are generally as follows: "Company 
Action Level" where TAC is less than or equal to 2.0 times ACLC; 
"Regulatory Action Level" where TAC is less than or equal to 1.5 times 
ACLC; "Authotized Control Level" when~ TAC is less than or equal to 1.0 
times ACLC; "Mandatory Control Level" where TAC is less than or equal 
to 0.7 times ACLC. Companies at the Company Action Level must submit a 
comprehensive fmancial plan to the insurance commissioner of the state of 
domicile. Companies at the Regulatory Action Level are subject to a 
mandatory examination or analysis by the commissioner and possible required 
corrective 'actions. At th'e Authorized Control Level, a company may be 
subject to, among other things, the commissioner placing it under regulatory 
control. At the Mandatory Control Level, .the insurance commissioner is 
required to place a company under regulatory control. 

At December 31, 1995, Universe fell into the mandatory control level as its 
TAC was a deficit of $1,056,110 or a negative 3.6 times its ACLC. As 

Universe's TAC was still a deficit at December 31, 1996, Universe remained 
in the mandatory control level . 
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At December 31, 1996 Great Fidelity's TAC was $2,731,839 or 12.2 times 
its ACLC ($3,617,855 or 45.9 times its ACLC in 1995). Accordingly, Great 
Fidelity does not currently fall into one of the above levels. 

Contingencies 

Various lawsuits against Universe have arisen in the ordinary course of 
business. Management believes that contingent liabilities arising from these 
litigation are not material. 

The amortized cost and market value of investments as of December 31, 1996 
and 1995 follow. The market values are based on quoted market prices, 
where available, or on values obtained from independent pricing services. 

Available for sale: 
Preferred stocks 
Common stocks 

Total investments 
available-for-sale 

Available for sale: 
Preferred stocks 
Common stocks 

Total investments 

available~fcir-sale 

December 31,1996 
Amortized 

. cost 
Market 

value 

$ 245,474 $ 245,474 
8,975 8,975 

$ 254,449 $ 254,449 

December 31. 1995 
Amortized 

cost 
Market 

value 

$ 245,474 $ 245,474 
8,975 8,975 

$254,449 . $ 254,449 
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4. Property and Property and equipment at December 31 consist of the followmg: 

Equipment 
1996 1995 

Company occupied properties $ 87,794 $ 87,794 
Furniture and equipment 596,475 586,345 
Transportation equipment 1,650 

684.269 675,789 
Less accumulated depreciat~on 587,968 494,702 

$ 96.301 $ 181,087 

5. Mortgages and Mortgages and notes payable at December 31 consist of the following: 

Notes Payable 
1996 1995 

Mortgages on reaJ estate - 11.75 % 
at December 31, 1996, due 2003 $ 71,357 $ 76,665 

Notes payable: 
Bank loan c at prime plus 1 %, due 1996. 
collateralized by Universe stock and 
certai'n cash balances, restructured 
July 1994, repaid March 29, 1996 625,919 

Term loans - 8% to 10%, due 1997 

to 1998, unsecured 60.313 .139,427 

$ 131,670 $ 842,011 
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Aggregate maturities of mortgages and notes payable over the next five years 
are as follows: 

Year ending December 31, Amount 

1997 $ 65,815 
1998 6,184 
1999 6,951 
2000 7,813 
2001 8,782 

Thereafter 36,125 

$ 131,670 

The provision for income taxes from continuing operations at December 31 
consists of the following: 

Current 
Deferred 

Income tax expense (benefit) 

1996 1995 

$ 81,254 $ 2,184 
(35,170) (772,817) 

. $ 46,084 $ (770;633) 

Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of "temporary differences" between 
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and such 
amounts as measured by tax laws. 
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The significant components of the Company' s net deferred tax assets and 
liabilities related to continuing operations at December 31 are summarized as 
follows: 

Deferred tax assets: 
Net operating loss carryforwards 
Accrued wages 
Accrued vacation 
Other 

Deferred tax liabilities: 
Tax over book depreciation 
and amortization 

Valuation allowance 

Net deferred tax asset 

1996 1995 

$ 643,471 $ 824,357 
136.000 85,000 

17.997 14,479 
16.377 92,430 · 

813,845 1,016,266 

(27,533) (16,922) 

(27,533) (16,922) 

(582,565) (830,767) 

. $ 203,747 $ 168,577 

The Company' s effective income tax on income from continuing operations 
differs from the expected corporate statutory federal income tax rate primarily 
as a result of the change in valuation allowance. 

At December 31, 1996, the Company has approx.imately $1,900,000 in net 
operating loss carryforwards which are available to offset future taxable 
income which expire through 2009. 

The Company's ability to use its net operating loss carryforwards to offset 
future taxable income is subject to annual rt'.strictions contained in the United 
States Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the Code). These 
restrictions actto limit the Company's future use of its net operating losses 
following certain substantial stock ownership changes as enumerated in t.he 
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Code. There was such a change in ownership during the year ended 
December 31. 1995 and there are substantial annual restrictions limiting the 
Company's future use of its net operating loss carryforwards. 

The Company had transactions with stockholders as follows: 

1996 1995 

Related party receivable, 
beginning of year $ 126,657 $ 344,2l4 

Advances 157,079 335,884 
Reductions (553,441) 

Related party receivable, 

end of year $ 283,736 $ 126,657 

In July 1995, the Company acquired all the outstanding shares (613,494 
shares) of its former majority stockholder in exchange for the following: 

* In exchange for $7.5 million of debt as described in the 
paragraph below and the following items with an aggregate 
fair market value of $240,000: 

* Three aircraft, net of related encumbrances; 
* Elimination of approximately $570,000 in debt to 

the Company; 
* Non-competition agreement through December 31 , 

1998; and 
* Miscellaneous furniture and fixtures. 

A down payment of $1.5 million originally due on October 22, 1995 was 
renegotiated in July 1996 to be due October 31, 1996. Interest on this note 
(as renegotiated in July 1996) is 9.5% (14% while in default) and principal 
and interest payments of $33 ,750 per month are due beginning August 1, 
1996. The remaining $6 million is payable in the form of a note with interest 
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at 8.25%, monthly payments of interest only, principal due and payable 
August 1, 2005. These notes are secured by the Company's stock and 
commission income. An escrow agreement was signed in July 1996 providing 
payments on these notes to be transferred directly from the Company's lock 
box. In addition, in July 1996, the Company agreed to reimburse the former 
majority stockholder for attorney's fees related to the restructuring. 

During 1995, AlA paid off four loans for one of the Company's stockholders 
totalling $126,657. AlA has set up a related party receivable for this amount. 
The receivable has no stated maturity or interest. During 1996, this 
receivable increased to $283,736. 

Series A Preferred Stock 

The Company has 153,613 outstanding .shares of no par, nonparticipating 
Series A preferred stock (170,562 in 1995). 

Pursuant to the preferred stock agreement, the holder of the Series A 
preferred stock has the right to require the Company to redeem the stock at 
any time after September 14, 1993. The right was exercised by giving the 
Company written notice of demand for redemption effective December 2, 
1993. 

The Company began redeeming the Series A preferred shares at $10 per share 
over a fifteen year period with interest at 1-1/2 % below the First Interstate 
Bank of Idaho, N.A. prime rate, adjusted quarterly. In 1995, the Company 
agreed to restructure the redemption over a ten year period with interest at 
114% above the First Interstate Bank of Idaho, N.A. prime rate, adjusted 
quarterly. The Company redeemed 16,949 shares in 1996 and 19,748 shares 
in 1995. On July 1, 1996, the Company further restructured the Seri~ A 
shareholder agreement such that in addition to the regular ten-year 
amortization agreed to in 1995, a payment of $100,000 will be made at the 
end of each six-month period commencing upon the full payment of the down 
payment note to the Company's former majority stockholder (see Note 7). 
Also, no principal payment shall be made on the $6 million note payable to 
the Company's former majority stockholder (see Note 7) until the Series A 
preferred stock has been fully redeemed. 
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The redemption over the next five years and thereafter according to the 
regular ten year amortization schedule is as follows: 

Year ending December 31, . Amount 

1997 $ 168,548 
1998 182,519 
1999 198,652 
2000 216,211 
2001 235,322 

Thereafter 534,882 . 

$ 1,536,134 

If the Company dissolves, the Series A preferred stock has liquidating 
preference .over common and Series C Stockholders in amounts equal to its 
redemption value. The holder of the Series A preferred stock has the right, 
voting separately as a class, to elect one member to the Board of Directors . 

Series C Preferred Stock 

During 1995, the Company initiated a private placement of preferred stock in 
which 150,000 shares of the 500,000 shares authorized of the Series C 10% 
convertible preferred stock and attendant Series C warrants were sold for 
$1,500,000 in August of 1995. An additional 50,000 shares with proceeds 
of approximately $200,000 were placed by December 31, 1995. During 
1996,86,500 shares with proceeds of $865,000 were placed . At December 
31, 1996,286,500 shares were outstanding . Each Series.C warrant issued to 
the preferred stock investors is exercisable upon the earlier of two years or 
the completion of a stock offering which raises a minimum of $5 million and 
entitles the investors to acquire .0000307 % of the Company's common stock 
on a fully diluted basis at a price below market value. The terms of the 
Series C preferred shares are as follows: 
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The holders shall have no right to receive notice of or to vote on any 
matter at any regular or special meeting of . stockholders of the 
corporation. 

The holders shall be entitled to receive, when and as declared by tbe 
Company's Board of Directors, cumulative cash dividends at the per 
annum rate of 10% of the liquidation rate. The liquidation rate is $10 
per share and the dividends are payable annually in preference to any 
dividends upon the Company's common stock, but only if redemption 
payments to the Series A stockholder are current. 

Upon dissolution, liquidation, or winding-up affairs of the Company, 
the Series C convertible preferred stockholders receive preference 
before any payment is made to the holders of common stock. The 
liquidation value per share is $10 plus any declared and unpaid 
dividends. 

Preferred stock is subject to certain mandatory redemption features and 
the Company has the right to redeem the preferred shares at any time. 
The redemption value at December 31, 1996 totaled $2.9 million (2.0 
million at December 31, 1995). 

Each holder of Series C pref~rred stock shall have the right, exercisable 
beginning at the earlier of the date of receipt of notice of mandatory 
redemption of the Series C preferred stock or two years after the first 
Issuance of the stock and ending on the closing date of an equity 
offering, to convert each share of preferred stock into that number of 
shares of common stock which equals .0000693% of the common stock 
on a fully diluted basis at the effective date of exercise. 

Common Stock 

See Note 7 for discussion regarding purchase of common stock from former 
majority stockholder. 
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In July of 1995 the Company made certain capital structure changes to the 
Company's common stock. This restructuring included a decrease in the par 
value from $1 to $.01 per share and an increase in the number of shares · 
authorized from 5 million to 11 million. The Company also had a three for 
one common stock split on August 26, 1995 for stockholders of record as of 
June 26, 1995. 

Employee Beriefits Plans 

Options for 12,500 shares of common stock, exercisable at $1.22 per share, 
were granted to certain corporate officers under a nonqualified stock option 
plan in 1987. In return, such officers agreed to loan the Company an amount 
not to exceed $90,000 in the aggregate, if certain earnings targets were not 
achieved over the seven-year period beginning in 1987. The loans are 
convertible to common stock at $1 .22 per share. None of these options have 
been exercised and no loans have been made. 

The Company maintains a profit sharing retirement plan with an IRS Code 
Section 401(k) feature covering substantially all employees who have 

completed one year of service. Employee elective deferral contributions are 
100% vesied and Company contributions are fully vested after seven years of 
participation. The Company's contribution to the plan was $200,000 and 
$172,428 in 1996 and 1995, respectively. 

The Company has an employee stock ownership plan covering employees who 
have completed one year of service. Employees are . fully vested after five 
years of participation. The Company contributed $120,787 to the plan in 
1995. There were no contributions in 1996. Non-vested participants' 
amounts are forfeited upon departure from the Company and reallocated to 
remaining participants. 

The Company also has an agents' stock ownership plan. No contributions 
were made to the plan in 1996 or 1995. 
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9. Operating 
leases 

10. Contingencies 

AlA Services Corp 
and Subsi 

Notes to Consolidated Financial 

The Company leases data processing and office equipment as lessee under 
lease agreements which' are accounted for as operating leases. The data 
processing and office equipment leases expire over the next five years. The 
Company leases its home office building under a 15 year operating lease 

which expires December 31, 2008. In most cases, management expects the 
leases to be renewed or replaced by other leases upon expiration of current 

. lease teI;ms. 

Minimum lease payments required under operating leases that have initial or 
remaining noncancelable lease terms in excess of one year are as follows: 

Year ending December 31, 

1997 
1998 
1999 
2000 
2001 

Thereafter 

Amount 

$ 407,496 
375,454 
333,243 
283,200 
283,200 

2,088,900 

$ 3,771,493 

Total rent expense for all operating leases was $443,575 and $856,189 in 
1996 and 1995, respectively. 

Various other lawsuits against the Company have arisen in the ordinary course 
of business. Management believes that contingent liabilities arising from this 
litigation are not considered material in relation to the financial position or 
results of operations of the Company. 
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IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT OF THE 
STATE OF IDAHO, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF NEZ PERCE 

REED J. TAYLOR, a single person, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

AlA SERVICES CORPORATION, an 
Idaho corporation; AlA INSURANCE, 
INC., an Idaho corporation; R. JOHN 
TAYLOR and CONNIE TAYLOR, 
individually and the community property 
comprised thereof; BRYAN FREEMAN, 
a single person; JOLEE DUCLOS, a single 
person; CROP USA INSURANCE 
AGENCY, INC., an Idaho Corporation; and 
JAMES BECK and CORRINE BECK, 
individually and the community property 
comprised thereof; 

Defendants. 

Case No.: CV -07 -00208 

PLAINTIFF REED TAYLOR'S REPLY IN 
SUPPORT OF HIS MOTION FOR PARTIAL 
SUMMARY JUDGMENT ON 
PROMISSORY NOTE 
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I. FACTS AND ARGUMENT 

Throughout its Response, AlA Services argues facts and defenses based upon the 

false assertion that evidence exists indicating that Reed agreed to the terms of the alleged 

oral modification. See AlA Services' Memorandum in Opposition to Plaintiff's Motion 

for Summary Judgment ("Response"). 

To be clear, there is no evidence to suggest that Reed even knew of the terms of 

the alleged oral modification, let alone any evidence to suggest that Reed agreed to such 

terms. Reed was questioned at the Preliminary Injunction Hearing held on March 1, 

2007, where he testified that he never agreed to modify the terms of the transaction. See 

Affidavit of Roderick C. Bond filed on March 26,2007, Ex. A, p. 160,11.7-8. 

The undisputable facts only show that Reed was accepting payments that he was 

entitled to received under the Note. See Hearing, Ex. AJ. Reed, in his sole discretion, 

elected to provide AlA Services notice of default on December 12, 2006. See Hearing, 

Ex. F. 

Reed was forced to file his Compliant in this action on January 29, 2007. See 

Complaint. On February 1, 2007, Reed reiterated to AlA Services in writing that it was 

in default for "failure to pay principal or interest of the $6 Million Note ... " Affidavit of 

Reed Taylor dated February 26, 2007, Ex. 1. 

On February 2, 2007, Reed reiterated to AlA Services in writing that it was in 

default "for the failure to pay interest or principal due on [his] $6,000,000 Promissory 

Note ... " Hearing, Ex. J. 

On February 6, 2007, Reed advised AlA Services in writing that "[m]y 

acceptance of any partial payments should not be construed as a waiver of AlA Services 
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Corporations' default under the $6,000,000 promissory note ... All amounts owed remain 

due and payable in full ... " Hearing, Ex. AH. The purpose of Reed's letter dated 

February 6, 2007, is unmistakably clear in that it notified AlA Services that any partial 

payments would not act as a waiver, cure the defaults, or negates Reed's numerous 

demands to be paid in full. Id. 

AlA Services' arguments pertaining to alleged oral modification are based 

exclusively on selected portions of the testimony of John and almost exclusively on 

John's First Affidavit (AlA Services also relies on a few select portions of John's 

deposition which happen to support his initial testimony). See Affidavit of D. John 

Ashby ("Ashby Aff."), Ex. A-B. The terms of the alleged oral modification do not have a 

definite date for payment. See Reed's Motion for Partial Summary Judgment; AlA 

Services' Response. John provided no new testimony in opposition to Reed's Motion for 

Partial Summary Judgment. Id. 

A. The Court Should Enter an Order of Partial Summary Judgment Because 
AlA Services is in Default of the Promissory Note. l 

Where a promissory note has been accelerated after notice of default and a legal 

action for collection has been instituted to collect the entire balance due, the defaulting 

debtor cannot cure by tendering payment of the past due amount. This fundamental 

principle is stated in 11 Am.Jur.2d, Bills and Notes, § 197 (2007), which provides: 

However, mere acceptance of a payment on a delinquent note does not 
constitute a waiver or cancel an acceleration which the creditor has 
previously initiated, where the acceptance of the payment is preceded by the 
filing of suit to collect the entire balance and is followed by notice that the 
creditor still considers the acceleration to be in effect ... the acceptance of the 

1 AlA Services does not dispute that a default of the Promissory Note does not constitute a default of the 
Amended Stock Pledge Agreement. Thus, Reed will not address the issue as he is also entitled to partial 
summary judgment on the default of the Amended Stock Pledge Agreement. 
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payee of late payments which do not include required interest does not 
~onstitute a waiver of the payee's right to declare the entire balance to be due 
and payable. 

Id. (emphasis added). 

Here, Reed's acceptance of partial payments after the maturity date of the Note 

does not constitute an acknowledgement of an extension of time to pay the full balance 

due. It only provides an indication that Reed did not assert his contractual rights against 

his brother until December 12,2006. See Hearing, Ex. F. Likewise, once Reed provided 

notice of a default under the terms of the allegedly modified Note (which AlA Services 

admits that the remaining terms of the Note are valid and that only the time of payment 

has been modified) and AlA Services fails to timely cure, no further notice is required to 

accelerate the remaining balance. See Hearing, Ex. A, p. 1 (If AlA Services fails to cure 

a default in 5 days, "the remaining unpaid balance of principal and all interest accrued 

thereon may, at the option of [Reed], be declared to be immediately due and payable 

without notice ... "). 

As a matter of law, Reed is entitled to partial summary judgment on the Note 

under any possible scenario--AlA Services admitted as much when it made its belated 

payment on December 3, 200?? 

1. AlA Services is in Default of the $6,000,000 Promissory Note. 

AlA Services is in default of the Promissory Note ("Note"). Under the terms of 

the Note, AlA Services promised to pay Reed $6,000,000, plus any accrued interest on 

August 1, 2005. See Hearing, Ex. A. AlA Services failed to pay the Note in full on 

2 Although the issue is moot because of AlA Services' default, this date assumes that the alleged 
$15,000 payment was actually made and received on December 3, 2007 (almost 1 year after AlA Services 
received Reed's written notice of default on December 12, 2006). The record is void of any evidence 
indicating that the payment was actually tendered or received. 
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August 1, 2005. See Affidavit of Aimee Gordon dated February 28, 2007; Hearing, Ex. 

AJ. Although Reed was not required to give notice of default after the Note matured on 

August 1, 2005, Reed notified AlA Services in writing that it was in default of the Note 

on December 12, 2006. 

AlA Services has failed to pay the required principal and accrued interest of over 

$8,425,864. Reed is entitled to partial summary judgment. 

2. Even if the $6,000,000 Promissory Note Was Orally Modified, AlA 
Services is in Default of the Alleged Modification and Admitted the 
Default by Making the Belated Payment to Reed Almost 1 Year After 
Receiving Reed's First Notice of Default. 

Assuming that the alleged oral modification actually occurred and is enforceable, 

it is undisputed that AlA Services was in default of its own alleged oral modification. 

See Affidavit ofCori Cleveland, ~ 3; AlA Services' Response, pp. 17-18. 

In giving every benefit of doubt and inference to AlA Services, the only way that 

AlA Services could have cured the default of the alleged orally modified Note and 

prevented the acceleration of all amounts owed would have been to pay the $15,000 on or 

before December 19, 2006 (5 business days after receiving the notice of default on 

December 12,2006). By AIA Services' own admission, it is undisputed that the past due 

installment was not paid within 5 business days as required. 

Thus, assuming the oral modified Note was valid and enforceable, AlA Services 

was in default and failed to timely cure. The full remaining $6,000,000 principal, plus all 

accrued interest, remains due and Reed is entitled to partial summary judgment. 

III 

III 

III 
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3. AlA Services Has Received Numerous Notices of the Default and that 
the Full $6,000,000, Plus Accrued Interest Was Due and Payable. 

When Reed demonstrated in his Motion for Partial Summary Judgment that there 

was no issue of fact or law pertaining to AlA Services' default under the Note and its 

own alleged oral modification, AlA Services was forced to resort to contending that Reed 

only "generically" provided written notice of the default. See AlA Services' Response, p. 

17. Significantly, however, AlA Services' argument is factually and legally incorrect. 

AlA Services cites no law for this argument, and not surprising, it fails as a matter of law. 

As explained by the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals: "[w]hen all facts are 

considered and it appears that enough has been done by the party attempting to give 

notice to put the party to be affected on inquiry into the contents of the written notice 

which he has in his hands, it should be held that notice has been given." NL.R.B. v. 

Vapor Recovery Systems Co., 311 F.2d 782, 786 (9th Cir. 1962). 

Here, on December 12, 2006, Reed provided written notice that "AlA Services 

[was] in default of the ... $6M Note ... " Hearing, Ex. F. Under the terms of the Note 

(originally or as allegedly modified), AlA Services had 5 business days to cure the 

default. Id. Thus, AlA Services was required to cure all defaults under the Note on or 

before December 19, 2006. However, AlA Services failed to do so. 

In addition to the notice of default received on December 12, 2006, AlA Services 

also received additional notices of default, all of which it failed to timely cure. 

Reed filed his Complaint against AlA Services on January 29, 2007. See 

Complaint. In Reed Complaint, he alleged: "AlA Services failed "to pay the Promissory 

Note as required ... [and has] failed to cure the defaults. As of the date of this Complaint, 

the $6 Million principal owed to Reed, plus accrued interest of over $2 Million, has not 
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been paid in full as required." Id. at p. 3, ~ 2.8, p. 7. 

On February 1, 2007, Reed reiterated to AlA Services in writing that it was in 

default for "failure to pay principal or interest of the $6 Million Note ... " Affidavit of 

Reed Taylor dated February 26,2007, Ex. 1. 

On February 2, 2007, Reed reiterated to AlA Services in writing that it was in 

default "for the failure to pay interest or principal due on [his] $6,000,000 Promissory 

Note ... " Hearing, Ex. J. 

On February 6, 2007, Reed advised AlA Services in writing that "[m]y 

acceptance of any partial payments should not be construed as a waiver of AlA Services 

Corporations' default under the $6,000,000 promissory note ... All amounts owed remain 

due and payable in full ... " Hearing, Ex. AH. 

On September 13, 2007, AlA Services received Reed's Proposed Fifth Amended 

Complaint, in which Reed stated that he denied there was an oral modification and that 

AlA Services was in breach of its alleged oral modification. See Reed Taylor's Motion 

to Amend and Supplement Complaint, Ex. A, p. 23, ~ 3.3; p. 46, ~ 15.34. 

Finally, Reed's Complaints and Motion for Partial Summary Judgment also 

constitute written notices. See Union Central Life Ins. Co. v. Schultz, 45 Idaho 185, 261 

P. 235 (1927); Mullen v. Gooding Implement & Hardware Co., 20 Idaho 348 (1911). 

There is no issue of fact or law pertaining to whether AlA Services received 

written notice of its default of the Note on December 12, 2006. Moreover, AlA Services 

received at least 11 written notices of default pertaining to the Note (including notice 

received by the filing of the original complaint and the 15t_4th Amended Complaints, but 

excluding notice received by the proposed amended complaints attached to Reed's 
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motions to amend for the 2nd and 3rd Amended Complaints). AlA Services failed to cure 

all such defaults within 5 business days. Moreover, AlA Services has received at least 10 

written notices that the full balance remained due and payable in full under the Note, 

despite the partial payments made to Reed. 

AlA Services' argument that it never received sufficient notice of default lacks 

merit both legally and factually, and fails as a matter oflaw. 

B. The Only Way that the Alleged Oral Modification Would Be Permitted By 
the Statute of Frauds Would Be if the Parties Entered Into an Entirely New 
Agreement. 

As explained in Reed's Motion for Partial Summary Judgment, "[p]arties [may] 

orally extend the time for performance of their agreements, so long as no other material 

terms is changed and the agreement is made before the underlying contract's expiration." 

Kelly v. Hodges, 119 Idaho 872, 875, 811 P.2d 48 (Ct. App. 1991). 

In Kelly, 119 Idaho 872, the Idaho Court of Appeals explained the two competing 

rules pertaining to oral modification of a contract within the statute of frauds. The 

minority rule not adopted by the Idaho Court of Appeals is that an agreement required to 

be in writing by the statute of frauds cannot be orally modified. Id. at 875. However, the 

rule adopted by the Idaho Court of Appeals holds that an agreement required to be in 

writing by the statute of frauds may be orally modified to extend the time of 

performance only. Id. (emphasis added). 

Thus, the alleged oral modification is barred by the statute of frauds under either 

of the two competing rules. Id. AlA Services does not dispute that the Note and 

Amended Stock Pledge Agreement were not required to be in writing. Assuming that the 

alleged oral modification was clear and not indefinite, the alleged oral modification 
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would change the amount of monthly interest to be paid to Reed and create condition 

precedents to payment of accrued interest and principal, i.e. that the payments may never 

be made unless certain premium targets are not met. Specifically, Reed would only be 

entitled to receive approximately $25,000 in interest per month instead of the required 

$41,250 per month. Moreover, AlA Services would never be required to pay the accrued 

interest owed to Reed unless it obtained $35,000,000 in annual premium. Likewise, AlA 

Services would never be required to pay the principal to Reed unless it obtained 

$60,000,000 in annual premium. All of these targets may never be reached. Finally, AlA 

Services argues that "[Reed] agreed to defer his receipt of the unpaid principal and 

interest on his note until the companies were financially able to be restructured and to 

redeem his note." Ashby Aff., Ex. B. p. 4, ~ 16. 

The same holds true for the material terms allegedly changed and deleted from the 

Amended Stock Pledge Agreement and other agreements. They too are barred from 

being orally modified by the statute of frauds because material terms would be changed. 

As a matter of law, the alleged oral modification would change material terms of 

the Note and Amended Stock Pledge Agreement and is barred by the statute of frauds. 

See Kelly, 119 Idaho at 875; I.C. § 9-505. 

1. The Cases Cited By AlA Services Do Not Hold That Material 
Terms May Be Orally Changed. 

AlA Services attempts to again convolute the facts and law by citing Whitlock v. 

Haney Seed Co., 110 Idaho 347, 715 P.2d 1017 (Ct. App. 1986) (an employment law 

case dealing with an alleged oral employment agreement) for the proposition that the 

REED TAYLOR'S REPLY IN SUPPORT OF MOTION FOR 
PARTIAL SUMMARY JUDGMENT ON PROMISSORY NOTE - 9 



alleged oral modification is not barred by the statute of frauds. 3 However, Whitlock 

applies to the general rule that an original oral agreement to be performed over 1 year is 

not required to be in writing if such an agreement as able to be performed within 1 year. 

Id. 

Here, as with other arguments, AlA Services misconstrues the law. In order for 

Whitlock to apply to the facts in this case, the parties would have been required to enter 

into an entirely new agreement. Significantly, AlA Services admits that the agreements 

were only orally modified, not that a new agreement was entered into. Thus, the alleged 

modifications must be in writing since material terms are changed. Kelly v. Hodges, 119 

Idaho 872, 875, 811 P.2d 48 (Ct. App. 1991). 

AlA Services' argument is equally flawed in citing Idaho Migrant Council, Inc. v. 

Northwestern Mut. Life Ins. Co., 110 Idaho 804, 718 P.2d 1242 (Ct. App. 1986). AlA 

Services has provided no evidence of detrimental reliance. Instead, AlA Services relies 

exclusively on its allegations that Reed agreed to an illusory promise to be paid when the 

companies met certain premium targets that may never be reached. 

As a matter of law, AlA Services' alleged oral modification is barred by the statue of 

frauds. 

III 

III 

3 Even if material terms were not changed, AlA Services' argument nevertheless fails because the 
Note stated that it could not be prepaid without Reed's written consent. See Davis v. Hinton, 519 S.W.2d 
776 (Tenn. 1975) (Holding that a debtor may not prepay a note). The Note specifically required that '[t]his 
Note may not be prepaid in whole or in part without prior written consent of Payee." Hearing, Ex. A, p. l. 
AlA Services admits that the remaining terms of the Note remained intact, which would include the no 
prepayment clause. The Note was due on August 1,2005, and the alleged oral modification occurred over 2 
years earlier in March 2003. Therefore, AlA Services' argument fails as a matter oflaw because the Note 
could not have been paid within 1 year of the date of the alleged oral modification. 
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C. The Alleged Oral Modification Fails as A Matter of Law. 

1. The Terms of the Alleged Oral Modification Construed in the Light 
Most Favorably to AlA Services are Too Indefmite and Fail as a 
Matter of Law. 

The issue of whether an alleged oral modification exists is not an issue for the 

jury when the terms of the alleged oral modification as alleged by the party asserting the 

modification are not sufficiently definite or certain. See Irwin Rogers Insurance Agency, 

Inc. v. Murphy, 122 Idaho 270, 833 P.2d 128 (Ct. App. 1992) (Holding that the right to 

pay an account "as funds become available ... are too indefinite and uncertain to constitute 

an enforceable contract right"); Black Canyon Racquetball Club, Inc. v. Idaho First, 119 

Idaho 171, 173, 804 P.2d 900 (1991)(Affirming summary judgment under the "well-

established rule that the terms of a contract must be sufficiently definite and certain in 

order to be enforceable."). 

Here, AlA Services has failed to submit evidence necessary for the Court to find 

an enforceable oral modification. This is true even if the Court ignores John's 

contradictory testimony and only accepts the facts as selectively presented by AlA 

Services. 

First, it should be noted that John's testimony is based upon Crop USA and AlA 

Services jointly reaching both premium goals. What happens if Crop USA files 

bankruptcy, dissolves, or is sold? The same question holds true for AlA Services. Under 

the terms of AlA Services' alleged oral modification, Reed would have no rights because 

neither premium goal was reached. This is a textbook example of an illusory promise 

and such a promise is unenforceable. See Black Canyon; Irwin Rogers. 
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Significantly, however, the illusory nature of the alleged oral modification can be 

best illustrated by the fact that the companies may never reach $35,000,000 in premiums, 

which would result in there never being the triggering of the alleged condition precedent 

to pay accrued interest. Similarly, what would happen if the companies reached 

$35,000,000 in premium and then never reached the $60,000,000 in premium required to 

pay the $6,000,000 principal owed to Reed? Would AIA Services be required to 

continue paying interest indefinitely? If so, what if premiums dipped below $35,000,000 

again? What happens if the companies reach $59,000,000 and decide to wind-up 

operations and distribute all assets to shareholders? What happens if AlA Services is 

purchased before reaching either premium goal? What happens if management decides 

to purposely never reach $60,000,000 so that the shareholders could make distributions 

year after year without paying Reed's Note? Thus, AlA Services could control when, if 

ever, Reed was paid and unilaterally elect to never reach the premium goals so as to 

never trigger the payments to Reed. The terms of the alleged oral agreement is illusory. 

The terms of the alleged oral modification are so uncertain and indefinite that it is 

impossible to enforce such an agreement. Therefore, the alleged oral modification fails 

as a matter of law. 

a. AlA Services Provides No Authority to Support the 
Indefinite Terms of the Alleged Oral Modification. 

Instead of setting forth facts of a definite date of payment necessary to form a 

valid contract to avoid summary judgment, AlA Services mistakenly relies upon Hamlin 

v. Steward, 622 N.E.2d 535 (Ind. App. 1993), for the proposition that an agreement to 

pay someone upon the sale of a parcel of real property is the same as the payment of 

Reed's accrued interest upon reaching $35,000,000 in premiums and the payment of 
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Reed's $6M principal upon reaching $60,000,000 in premiums. The facts in Hamlin 

couldn't be more different than the facts in this case. In Hamlin, both parties admitted to 

an oral modification in pleadings and acknowledged the oral agreement. Id. at 538-539. 

The parties had also agreed in the original contract that the motel would be sold to pay 

the loans, thus, the idea of the selling the house was merely extending time for payment. 

Id. at 539. Finally, and most importantly, selling a motel is an event that is certain to 

happen at some point in time in the future and the Court noted that the Stewards were 

required to do so in a reasonable amount oftime: 

The underlying debt is owed, and the only issue is when the Note is due. Thus, 
good faith is implied because fulfillment of [selling the motel] rests with the 
promisor, and without good faith, the mere promise to pay the Note subject to a 
condition precedent to be performed by the promisor would be an illusory 
promise. 

Hamlin, 622 N.E.2d at 541 (emphasis added). In other words, Hamlin supports Reed's 

argument because AlA Services' obligation to pay him based upon reaching certain 

premium targets is an illusory promise as the premium goals may never be met. 

2. As a Matter of Law, the Alleged Oral Modification Also Fails For 
Lack of Mutuality and No Meeting of the Minds. 

Proof of a meeting of the minds requires evidence of mutual understanding as to 

the terms of the agreement and assent of both parties. Potts Const. Co. V North Kootenai 

Water Dist., 141 Idaho 678, 681, 116 P.3d 8 (2005). The making of certain payments is 

insufficient by itselfto create a binding contract. Id. 

"There is no more settled rule of law applicable to actions based upon contracts 

than an agreement, in order to be binding, must be sufficiently definite to enable the court 

to determine its exact meaning and fix exactly the legal liability of the parties. Thomas v. 

Cate, 78 Idaho 29, 32, 296 P.2d 1033 (1956) (Affirming the trial court's pre-trial 
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dismissal of an action because the "law will not hold a party bound to a contract against 

his will, when the substance of what he is to get in return is executor, and is so shadowy 

in its outline that the other party can refuse to perform ... "). 

AlA Services fails to offer any evidence that there was a meeting of the minds, let 

alone a meeting in John's mind. This is supported by the vast inconsistent and 

contradictory testimony of John. As demonstrated in Reed's Motion for Partial Summary 

Judgment, John's inconsistent and contradictory testimony indicates that it is impossible 

for there to be a meeting of the minds or mutual assent because there is no meeting of 

John's mind or individual assent of John as to the exact terms of the alleged oral 

modification. 

3. As a Matter of Law, Reed Received No Consideration for the Alleged 
Oral Modification. 

AlA Services argues that consideration was provided in the form of John taking 

no salary and the substitution of consideration through promissory estoppe1.4 

Under AlA Services' alleged oral modification, Reed received no consideration 

for the honor to wait indefinitely for the payment of his Note. AlA Services' argument 

makes no logical sense. There is no reason for Reed to give up substantial contract 

rights in exchange for nothing. Reed received no consideration or benefit, and there is no 

evidence that he acquiesced or agreed with the alleged oral modification. See Rule Sales 

and Service, Inc. v. Us. Bank Nat. Ass'n, 133 Idaho 669, 674, 991 P.2d 857 (et. App. 

1999). 

III 

4 The promissory estoppel element of AlA Services' argument is discussed below and 
incorporated by reference into this argument. 
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a. John Received a Significant Salary in 2001. 

AlA Services also attempts to argue, without citing any legal authority, that 

consideration was replaced by John not taking any salary. This argument is irrelevant, 

flawed, and unsupported by the evidence. The only evidence relied upon by AlA 

Services pertaining to John's salary is set forth in his Affidavit wherein he states that 

"[ d]uring this period, I was not taking a monthly salary in order to assist in conserving 

cash." Ashby Aff., Ex. B, p. 4, ~ 16 (referring to the period "[f]rom 2000 to 2003."). 

However, this statement is factually incorrect as specifically noted in relevant portions of 

AlA Services' 2001 tax returns that indicate John was paid $224,139 in compensation. 

See Hearing, Ex. T, p. 2. Moreover, John cannot simply state that he received no salary 

without SUbmitting documentation to support such false allegations.s Most significantly, 

this argument also makes no logical sense. John should be happy that he has been able to 

take hundreds of thousands of dollars out of AlA Services since 2003. 

4. The Alleged Oral Modification Is NOT an Issue for the Jury. 

For the reasons set forth above, Reed is entitled to partial summary judgment on 

the Note as a matter oflaw. However, in response to Reed's Motion for Partial Summary 

Judgment, AlA Services as with its other arguments mistakenly asserts that "[t]he 

question of whether there has been an oral modification of the Note is not a question for 

the Court to determine." AlA Services' Response, pp. 5-6, Section 1. But the cases cited 

by AlA Services do NOT apply to the facts or law in this case. See e.g., Dennett v. 

Kuenzli, 130 Idaho 21, 26, 936 P.2d 219 (Ct. App. 1997) (Holding that "[t]he question, 

however, of whether an oral modification has been proven is one for the trier of fact."); 

5 Although not in the record, AlA Services' tax returns show that John never received less than 
$120,000 in compensation in any year in the past decade. 
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Johnson v. Allied Stores Corp., 106 Idaho 363, 368, 679 P.2d 640 (1984) (Holding that 

an employee suing for severance pay was a question for the jury because the evidence 

was conflicting, i.e., the plaintiff relied upon the 1962 policy manual, while the defendant 

relied upon the 1977 policy manual). 

Similarly, the other authority cited by AlA Services are equally inapplicable or 

support Reed's arguments. See e.g., Lunceford v. houghtlin, 170 S.W.3d 453, 464 (Mo. 

App. 2005); Signing River Mall Co. v. Mark Fields, Inc., 599 So.2d 938, 947 (Miss. 

1992); 10 C.J.S. Bills and Notes § 110 (1995) ("In order for an extension of time to be 

binding, the time to which payment is extended must be as definite as is required in a 

promissory note when originally made."). In addition, AlA Services mistakenly relies on 

other inapplicable cases dealing with sales or extensions to complete a project. See Ore-

Idaho Potato Products, Inc. v. Larsen, 83 Idaho 290, 362 P .2d 384 (1961)( dealing with a 

contract to harvest potatoes which was completed); Great Plains Equipment v. Northwest 

Pipeline Corp., 132 Idaho 754, 979 P.2d 627 (1999) (Contractor stayed on the job and 

completed the pipe stringing at additional costs and involves associated claims of 

quantum meruit as frequently seen in construction projects); Spencer v. Allpress Logging, 

Inc., 134 Idaho 856, 11 P.3d 475 (2000) (defendant continued delivering logs until the 

advance was repaid). These cases are not on point and do not apply to this case. 

In addition, there are no facts provided by Reed to support the alleged oral 

modification and he has not testified to even having knowledge of it. There is no definite 

date for payment. AlA Services is logically required to meet the burden that the alleged 

oral modification complies with general contract principles before its allegations can be 

submitted to a jury, but it has failed to do so. Reed's acceptance of payments due to him 
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is nothing more than evidence of amounts that should be credited against the Note. There 

is no evidence to suggest that Reed acquiesced in any oral modification. 

The only question before the Court is whether the alleged oral modification fails 

as a matter of law under the theories articulated by Reed. The answer to that question is 

yes. 

5. The Alleged Oral Modification Is Not Supported By Any Evidence 
Other than John's Testimony. 

The only evidence that AlA Services alleged oral modification is the testimony 

provided by John. The inconsistencies of John's testimony merely support a finding that 

an agreement was never reached. See Black Canyon, 119 Idaho at 173. AlA Services 

cites Johnson v. Allied Stores Corp., 106 Idaho 363, 368, 679 P.2d 640 (1984), which 

simply holds that whether a contract has been modified is "ordinarily" an issue for the 

jury. Id. (emphasis added). In Johnson, the parties were arguing over which employee 

policy manual determined the amount of severance pay. Id. Because there was 

conflicting views through two different written policy manuals, the Court believed the 

issue should be determined by a jury. Id. In this case, the conflicting testimony at issue 

pertains to John's indefinite terms, which constitute an unenforceable contract. See Black 

Canyon at 173. 

D. AlA Services' Alleged Defenses Are Not Supported by Any Facts and Also 
Fail as a Matter of Law. 

No estoppel or waiver of rights can result from a party's taking receipt of an 

installment payment that is due and owing. This fundamental principle is succinctly 

stated in 28 Am.Jur.2d, Estoppel and Waiver, § 66 (2007), which provides: 

III 
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One cannot be estopped by reason of accepting that which be is legally 
entitled to receive in any event. This is true even under the doctrine of 
guasi-estoppel. Hence, estoppel against attacking or disputing a contract 
or transaction is not ordinarily created by the acceptance of a benefit 
purporting to be derived therefrom if in fact the party is entitled thereto, 
regardless of whether the contract or transaction is sustained or 
overthrown. The payment of a valid and undisputed past-due debt 
cannot be the basis of an estoppel, and is not a bar to the subseguent 
assertion of a claim for the balance, especially where such acceptance 
is accompanied by an express reservation of rights or where it is 
manifest that the party does not intend to surrender them. 

28 AmJur.2d, Estoppel and Waiver, § 66 (2007) (emphasis added). 

AlA Services has misapplied the doctrines of estoppel and waiver in an factually 

unsupported effort to avoid partial summary judgment. AlA Services has failed to submit 

any evidence to support such defenses. AlA Services continuous allegations pertaining 

to Reed agreeing to the alleged oral modification are not supported by any evidence. 

First, it should be noted that the defenses discussed below do not apply because 

AlA Services was in breach of its own alleged oral modification-the same alleged oral 

modification that supplies the allegations for all of the defenses. In other words, AlA 

Services is estopped from asserting any defenses because it is in breach of the alleged 

modification that provided the basis for such defenses. Second, the defenses are 

inapplicable because the record is void of any action taken by Reed other than 10 be the 

recipient of partial interest payments. Reed's silence carries no weight for any of these 

defenses. Finally, because waiver and estoppel are related, all of the legal arguments set 

forth below are incorporated by reference into each section to respond to all waiver and 

estoppel arguments. 

III 

III 

REED TAYLOR'S REPLY IN SUPPORT OF MOTION FOR 
PARTIAL SUMMARY JUDGMENT ON PROMISSORY NOTE - 18 



1. Waiver. 

The doctrine of implied waiver by silence is disfavored and waiver will only be 

inferred from a clear and unequivocal act manifesting an intent to waive. Jones v. 

Maestas, 108 Idaho 69, 71, 696 P.2d 920 (Ct. App. 1985). A party's failure to exercise 

his contractual rights does not constitute waiver. Dannett v. Kuenzli, 130 Idaho 21, 26, 

936 P.2d 219 (Ct. App. 1997) ("Dennett did not promise or lead the Kuenzlis to believe 

that he would not exercise his option to purchase the property. It follows that he did not 

voluntarily and intentionally relinquish his right to exercise the option."). "A court first 

must find whether the facts alleged to constitute waiver are true. The court then must 

decide whether these facts, as a matter of law, suffice to show waiver." Jones, 108 Idaho 

at 71. 

AlA Services can point to no voluntary or intentional act of Reed to support 

waiver. The record is void of any representation or act by Reed manifesting any intent to 

waive his rights under the agreements. Reed was merely accepting payments due to him 

under the Note. Reed's silence of accepting payments can be construed as nothing more 

than evidence of him accepting payments on moneys owed under the Note and do not 

constitute any evidence of waiver or other representation. 

2. Estoppel. 

Equitable estoppel is based on the concept that it would be inequitable to allow a 

person to induce reliance by taking a certain position and, thereafter, take an inconsistent 

position when it becomes advantageous to do so. Regjovich v. First Western Investments, 

Inc., 134 Idaho 154 (2000). All factors of estoppel are of equal importance, and there can 

be no estoppel absent any of the elements. Id. 
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No estoppel or waiver of rights can result from a party's taking receipt of an 

installment payment that is due and owing: 

One cannot be estopped by reason of accepting that which he is legally 
entitled to receive in any event. This is true even under the doctrine of 
quasi-estoppel. Hence, estoppel against attacking or disputing a contract 
or transaction is not ordinarily created by the acceptance of a benefit 
purporting to be derived therefrom if in fact the party is entitled thereto, 
regardless of whether the contract or transaction is sustained or 
overthrown. The payment of a valid and undisputed past-due debt 
cannot be the basis of an estoppel, and is not a bar to the subsequent 
assertion of a claim for the balance, especially where such acceptance is 
accompanied by an express reservation of rights or where it is manifest 
that the party does not intend to surrender them. 

28 Am.Jur.2d, Estoppel and Waiver, § 66 (2007) (emphasis added). 

To reiterate, AlA Services' payment was made too late on the Note and the 

alleged orally modified version of the Note. The doctrines of estoppel and waiver have 

no application. No estoppel or waiver of rights can result from Reed's taking receipt of 

the delinquent payment that was due and owing. No estoppel can result from Reed not 

exercising his contractual rights. No estoppel can result from AlA Services' untimely 

payment of the delinquent payment on December 3, 2007, and its failure to cure the 

default within the required 5 business days. No estoppel can result from AlA Services' 

failure to pay the entire outstanding balance of the Note, which is due and owing as a 

matter of law. 

3. Promissory Estoppel. 

In order to allege the defense of promissory estoppel under contract law, it must 

be shown that: 

(1) the detriment suffered in reliance was substantial in an economic sense; (2) 
substantial loss to the pomisee acting in reliance was or should have been 
foreseeable by the promisor; and (3) the promise must have acted reasonably in 
justifiable reliance on the promise as made. 
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Mohr v. Shultz, 86 Idaho 531, 540,388 P.2d 1002 (1964). 

Under contract law, promissory estoppel is simply a substitute for consideration in 

"situations where injustice would otherwise result." Mohr, 86 Idaho at 540. A 

substitution for consideration is not a substitute for an agreement between parties. Black 

Canyon Racquetball Club, Inc. v. Idaho First, 119 Idaho 171, 178, 804 P.2d 900 (1991); 

Smith v. Boise Kenworth Sales, Inc., 102 Idaho 63, 68, 625 P .2d 417 (1981). "While 

promissory estoppel may provide consideration for a contract, there must be a sufficient 

definite agreement to have an enforceable contract." Id. 

There was no consideration because Reed was merely accepting payment of 

money due to him under the Note. AlA Services has offered no evidence of detrimental 

reliance or foreseeable loss, nothing. Moreover, AlA Services' argument that it is 

somehow better off financially than in 2003 is equally flawed. The revenues, net income, 

and assets of AlA Services have dropped virtually every year since 2003. See Hearing, 

Ex. Wand AR-AT. Moreover, AlA Services' subsidiary guaranteed a $15,000,000 loan 

for an entity in which it holds no ownership interest. See Hearing Ex. Rand Q. 

For the reasons articulated in the sections above (which are incorporated by 

reference into this Section) and in Reed's Motion for Partial Summary Judgment, there 

was also no definitive agreement. Moreover, the alleged oral modification contained 

terms that are too uncertain and too indefinite. Thus, promissory AlA Services' 

misplaced reliance upon estoppel fails as a matter of law. 

4. Quasi-Estoppel. 

A party cannot be estopped from asserting contractual rights simply because he 

delayed in doing so, even if he has knowledge of certain facts that arguably should have 
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resulted in him asserting his rights earlier. Dennett v. Kuenzli, 130 Idaho 21, 26, 936 

P.2d 219 (Ct. App. 1997). The party asserting quasi-estoppel has "the burden of 

demonstrating, among other things, that [the other party] maintained inconsistent 

positions." Id. at 27. The element of unconscionability must be present in order for the 

doctrine of quasi-estoppel to apply. In re Estate of Elliott, 141 Idaho 177, 183, 108 P .3d 

324 (2005). 

In Estate of Elliot, the Idaho Supreme Court that quasi-estoppel was inapplicable 

because Elliot was entitled to receive the Medicaid payments. Like Estate of Elliot, Reed 

was merely accepting payments that he was entitled to receive under the terms of the 

Note. Reed never changed his position. Reed did not obtain some "unconscionable" 

advantage by allowing his brother additional time to pay the Note by not placing the Note 

in default. There is absolutely nothing unconscionable about Reed receiving the 

payments that he was entitled to receive under the Note or the alleged orally modified 

Note. 

II. CONCLUSION 

There are no issues of material fact and Reed is entitled to partiaL 

DATED: This 10th day of December, 2007. 

SMITH, CANNON & BOND PLLC 

:~~----
Roderick C. Bond 
Ned A. Cannon 
Paul R. Cressman, Jr. 
Attorneys for Plaintiff Reed J. Taylor 
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App. 1999) CIt is the general common law rule in this country that an oral modification ofa 

written contract may be enforceab1e, notwithstanding a clause prohibiting unwritten 

ITlodificalions, at least in circumstances where one party has relied upon the n10dification.") 

(citing Allan Farnsworth. FARNSWORTH ON CONTRACTS § 7.6 (2d cd. 1998); Ga. Corbin. CORl3IN 

ON CONTRACTS § ] 295 (1963); 

Harr{J/gloll v. McCarthy, 91 Idaho 307,310.420 P.2d 790, 793 (l9GG) ("The provIsion in 

a private building or construction contract that alterations or extras must be ordered in writing 

can be avoided by the parties to thc contract where their words, acls or conduct amount to a 

waiver, modification. rescission or abandonment of that provision or where the owncrby his acts 

or conduct is estopped to rely on it."); 

Ida/tO lIfigralfl Coullcil. IlTc. v. NortlIwesterl1 Afllt. Life IllS. Co., 110 Idaho 804, 806, 718 

P .2d 1242. 1244 (Ct. App_ 1986) ("We have found no reason why a clause requiring contract 

modifications be in writing. _ . may not be waived. Further, a waiver need not be exprcss but 

SUPPLEMENTAL AUTHORITIES IN OPPOSITION TO MOTION FOR SUMMARY 
JUDGMENT-2 

SUPPLEMENTAL AUTHORITIES IN OPPOSITION TO MOTION FOR SUMMARY 
JUDGMENT 

40005.0000.1109!lZ$. t 



Hawley Troxell 12/21/2007 10:lJ:0 PAUE 4/0 

may be ilnpLied frOlll conduct. More specificaHy, an implied waiver occurs where a party's 

neglect to insist upon enforcing a right results in prejudice to aoother party."). 
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SMITH, CA1'.TNON & BOND PLLC 

Attorneys for Plaintiff 
508 Eighth Street 
Lewiston, Idaho 83501 
Telephone: (208) 743-9428 
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IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT OF THE 
STATE OF IDAHO, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF NEZ PERCE 

REED 1. TAYLOR, a single person, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

AlA SERVICES CORPORATION, an Idaho 
corporation; AlA INSURANCE, INC., an Idaho 
corporation; R. JOHN TAYLOR and CONNIE 
TAYLOR, individually and the community 
property comprised thereof; BRYAN 
FREEMAN, a single person; JOLEE DUCLOS, 
a single person; CROP USA INSURANCE 
AGENCY, INC., an Idaho Corporation; and 
JAMES BECK and CORRINE BECK, 
individually and the community property 
comprised thereof; 

Defendants. 

Case No.: CV-07-00208 

REED TAYLOR'S RESPONSE IN 
OPPOSITION TO CONNIE 
TAYLOR'S MOTION FOR 
PROTECTION ORDER AND REED 
TAYLOR'S REQUEST FOR ORDER 
TO COMPEL AND FOR AWARD OF 
ATTORNEYS' FEES AND COSTS 

Reed Taylor ("Reed") submits this Response to Connie Taylor's Motion for Protective 

Order and further requests that the Court enter an order to compel and award fees: 
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I. FACTS 

Reed Taylor served his First Set of Requests for Production, First Set of Interrogatories 

and First Requests for Admission to Connie Taylor on October 21, 2007. See Affidavit of 

Roderick C. Bond, Ex. A. Connie Taylor served her responses and objections on December 4, 

2007. See Affidavit of Jon Hally, Ex. A, p. 60. Connie Taylor did not produce any documents to 

Reed Taylor's First Requests for Production. See Affidavit of Roderick C. Bond, ~ 3. 

Counsel for Connie Taylor and Reed Taylor held an LR.C.P. 37 discovery conference on 

December 6, 2007. See Affidavit of Roderick C. Bond, ~ 4. Counsel for Connie Taylor declined 

to revise the responses and produce responsive documents. Jd. at ~ 4. 

Through December 27, 2007, Counsel for Connie Taylor has not produced any 

documents to Reed Taylor's First Set of Requests for Production of Documents. Jd. at ~~ 3-4. 

Connie Taylor and R. John Taylor were divorced on December 16, 2005. See Affidavit 

of Roderick C. Bond, Ex. C. Connie Taylor was appointed to the board of AlA Services and 

AlA Insurance on April 30, 2007. See Affidavit of Roderick C. Bond, Ex. B. 

II. LEGAL AUTHORITY AND ARGUMENT 

A. Connie Taylor Has Failed to Meet the Burden Required for a Protective Order. 

LR.C.P. 26(c) governs the entry of protective orders, which states in part: 

Upon motion by a party or by the person from whom discovery is sought, and for good 
cause shown, the court in which the action is pending ... may make any order which 
justice requires to protect a party or person ... 

LR.C.P. 26(c) (emphasis added). "This puts the burden on the party seeking relief to show 

some plainly adequate reason therefor." 8 Fed. Prac. & Proc. Civ.2d § 2035 (2007) (emphasis 

added). "It is not sufficient to merely state a generalized objection; instead, the objecting party 
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must demonstrate that a particularized harm is likely to occur if the discovery be had by the party 

seeking it." G-69 v. Degnan, 130 F.R.D. 326, 331 (D.C.N.l 1990). 

An objection that a "request is overly-broad, not specific, and creates a hardship on the 

producing party" is insufficient to warrant entering a protective order. McLeod, Alexander, 

Pmvel & Apffel, P.e. v. Quarles, 894 F.2d 1482, 1484 (5th Cir. 1990) citing 8 Fed. Prac. & Proc. 

Civ.2d § 2035 (2007). Objections must be specific to each request and the party resisting 

discovery must show how each discovery request is not relevant. McLeod at 1485. 

Here, Connie Taylor has failed to meet the required burden necessary to obtain an 

protective order. Instead of complying with the law and Idaho Rules of Civil Procedure, Connie 

Taylor has unilaterally elected to not comply with Reed Taylor's Requests for Production and 

Interrogatories by submitting generic and inappropriate objections. She has failed to show good 

cause. She has not met the required burden. Because Connie Taylor has utterly failed to meet 

her burden or make a good faith showing, Reed Taylor should be awarded fees as provided under 

I.R.C.P.26(c). 

1. Connie Taylor Has Cited No Authority for Her Motion. 

In her Motion, Connie Taylor has failed to cite a single case or any legal authority to 

support her arguments. The only authority she cites is I.R.C.P. 26, which does not support her 

arguments. Moreover, Connie Taylor's ill-conceived Motion for a Protective Order also fails as 

a matter of law for the reasons set forth below. 

III 

III 
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B. Reed Requests that the Court Enter an Order Compelling Connie Taylor to 
Provide Full and Complete Responses, Answers, and Responsive Documents. 

LR. C.P. 26(b)( 1), provides as follows in pertinent part: 

Unless otherwise limited by order of the court in accordance with these rules, the 
scope of discovery is as follows: (1) Parties may obtain discovery regarding any 
matter, not privileged, which is relevant to the subject matter involved in the 
pending action, whether it relates to the claim or defense of the party seeking 
discovery or to the claim or defense of any other party ... It is not ground for 
objection that the information sought will be inadmissible at the trial if the 
information sought appears reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of 
admissible evidence. 

I.R.C.P. 26(b)(1) (emphasis added). Federal Courts interpreting the identical Federal Rule have 

consistently held that the rule allowed the broadest possible discovery. See e.g., Hickman v. 

Taylor, 329 U.S. 495,67 S.Ct. 385,91 L.Ed. 451 (1947). In Hickman, the U.S. Supreme Court 

discussed the scope of discovery under this rule and observed that: 

No longer can the time-honored cry of 'fishing expedition' serve to preclude a 
party from inquiring into the facts underlying his opponent's case. 

Hickman at 392. The only limitation on discovery of unprivileged material under the rule is that 

it could lead to the discovery of admissible evidence, which is such a broad standard that at the 

discovery stage a party may in fact engage in a fishing expedition. See 8 Wright & Miller, 

Federal Prac. & Proc., § 2008 (2007). 

Under the broad LR.C.P. 26(b)(1), evidence is discoverable even if it is not admissible 

at trial, if the "information sought is reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible 

evidence." LR.C.P. 26(b)(1) (emphasis added). 

LR.C.P. 26(c) expressly authorizes the Court to require the party moving for a protective 

order to compel discovery and award attorneys' fees to the responding party: 
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If the motion for a protective order is denied in whole or in part, the court may, on such 
terms and conditions are just, order that any party or person provide or permit discovery. 
The provisions of Rule 37(a)( 4) apply to the award of expenses incurred in relation to the 
motion. 

I.R.C.P. 26( c). In other words, it is unnecessary for the party responding to contemporaneously 

file a motion to compel. Id. 

Here, not only does Connie Taylor fail to meet the burden required to obtain a protective 

order, but she has failed to produce responsive documents and answers. She has completely 

ignored her obligations under the Idaho Rules of Civil Procedure, including, I.R.C.P. 26. 

1. Connie Taylor Has Failed to Produce a Single Document or Provide Full 
and Complete Answers and Responses. 

Instead of asserting proper objections and producing responSIve documents, Connie 

Taylor failed to produce even a single document to Reed Taylor's 117 Requests for Production 

of Documents. Moreover, Connie Taylor failed to provide full and complete answers to Reed 

Taylor's First Set ofInterrogatories. An order compelling Connie Taylor to produce responsive 

documents and to provide full and complete answers and responses is appropriate and warranted. 

See I.R.C.P. 26(c). 

2. All Emails and Electronic Files and Documents Must Be Produced. 

Electronic information, including e-mails, are discoverable under the recently enacted 

I.R.C.P. 34(a), which provides that a party may obtain discovery of "electronic and data storage 

devices in any medium which constitute or contain matters within the scope of Rule 26(b) ... " 

I.R.C.P. 34(a). Although no reported decisions in Idaho have addressed this rule, Federal courts 

interpreting the analogous Federal rules have consistently held that electronic data, including e-

mails, are discoverable. Rowe Entertainment, Inc. v. William Morris Agency, Inc., 205 F.R.D. 
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421, 428 (S.D.N.Y. 2002) (There is no justification for precluding discovery of defendants' e-

mails on the ground that such discovery was unlikely to provide relevant information or would 

invade the privacy of non-parties); Playboy Enterprises. v. Welles, 60 F. Supp. 2d 1050, 1053 

(S.D. Cal. 1999) (E-mails contained on defendant's hard drive are discoverable). 

Here, Connie Taylor has refused to produce any emails or any other electronic files or 

documents. The Court should order her to produce all responsive electronic information, 

including all responsive emails. 

3. Connie Taylor Must Produce Her Tax Returns and Related Financial 
Information. 

It has been held that a party's financial information is relevant for discovery purposes 

when it implicates elements of a claim or defense asserted in a dispute. Daval Steel Products, 

Div. of Francosteel Corp. v. MlV Fakredine, 951 F.2d 1357 (2nd Cir. 1991). A plaintiffs alter-

ego claim is sufficient to warrant the production of tax returns and financial information. 

McLeod, 894 F.2d at 1484-85. In addition, "[t]ax returns are generally discoverable if they 

contain information relevant or material to the issues in the action or may lead to the discovery 

of admissible evidence. 23 Am Jur 2d Depositions and Discovery § 261 (2001) (internal 

footnotes omitted). Reed has stated causes of action for fraud, breach of fiduciary duties, 

fraudulent conveyances, conversion and constructive trust. 

4. All Responsive Documents Must Be Produced Pertaining to 
Communications and Documents Exchanged Between Connie Taylor and 
AlA's Attorneys and AlA's Accountants Prior to April 30, 2007, and All 
other Parties From 1995 Through the Present Time. 

"It is the corporation, and not the shareholder, who is the holder of the [attorney-client 

privilege ... Shareholders do not enjoy access to such privileged information merely because the 
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attorney's actions also benefit them." .McDermott, Will & Emery v. Superior Court, 83 Cal. 

AppAth378, 99 Ca1.Rptr.2d 622, 626 (Cal. App. 2000) (internal citations omitted); see also In re 

o.P.M Leasing Services, Inc., 670 F.2d 383 (N.Y. 1982) (holding that management of a 

corporation is a function vested in the board of directors and the shareholders have no power to 

do anything except elect members of the board). 

Here, Connie Taylor was appointed as a member of the board of directors of AlA 

Services and AlA Insurance on April 30, 2007. Therefore, all responsive communications and 

documents, including those involving law firms or accountants for AlA Services, AlA Insurance 

or Crop USA, are discoverable prior to April 30, 2007. Finally, the narrow exception described 

above does not preclude Connie Taylor from providing responsive answers and documents 

pertaining to all other parties dating back to 1995. 

5. No Husband and Wife Privilege Applies to John Taylor and Connie 
Taylor'S Communications after December 16, 2005. 

"A person has a privilege to prevent testimony as to any confidential communication 

between the person and his or her spouse made during the marriage." LR.E. 504. 

Here, Connie Taylor and R. John Taylor were divorced on December 16, 2005. See 

Affidavit of Roderick C. Bond, Ex. C. 

Therefore, all communications between Connie and John are discoverable to the extent 

that they relate in any way to this action after their dissolution, except those protected by way of 

her membership on the board of AlA Services or AlA Insurance on or after April 30, 2007. 

Moreover, all communications or documents exchanged by them that were not confidential are 

discoverable during their marriage, i.e., all non-privileged emails in which others were carbon 
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copied, stock certificates, stock subscription agreements, stock purchase agreements, etc. 

6. Connie Taylor Must Provide All Responsive Documents Under Her 
Possession, Custody or Control. 

A party must produce all responsive documents which are in his or her "possession, 

custody or control. LR.C.P.34(a). 

Here, Connie Taylor has stated that certain documents are not in her possessIOn. 

However, she must also state that no such responsive documents are in her custody or control. 

She must be specific that she does not have nor can obtain responsive documents. 

7. Connie Taylor Must Provide a Privilege Log. 

Connie Taylor must provide a log for all privileged communications and documents as 

provided for in LR.C.P. 26. Connie Taylor failed to provide a privilege log. The Court should 

order her to do so. 

C. Reed Requests an Award of His Attorneys' Fees and Costs Incurred in 
Defending Connie Taylor's Motion and Compelling Discovery. 

The Court has the authority to award attorneys' fees and costs to the party defending a 

motion for protective order. See LR.C.P. 26(e); LR.C.P. 37(a)(4). 

Here, Connie Taylor has failed to meet the burden required to have a protective order 

entered and Reed is entitled to Connie Taylor providing full and complete discovery. 

Significantly, Connie has failed to produce a single document in response to Reed's First 

Requests for Production of Documents. Thus, Reed should be awarded his attorneys' fees and 

costs incurred in defending against Connie Taylor's Motion and those insurred obtaining an 

order compelling discovery. 

III 
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III. CONCLUSION 

For the reasons articulated above, the Court should deny Connie Taylor's Motion for a 

Protective Order and enter an order compelling her to provide full and complete responses, the 

production of responsive documents, to provide a privilege log, and to provide full and complete 

answers to interrogatories. Finally, Reed should be awarded his attorneys' fees and costs 

incurred in responding to Connie Taylor's Motion and compelling her to fully and appropriately 

respond to Reed's Requests for Production and Interrogatories. 

DATED: This 2ih day of December, 2007. 

SMITH, CANNON & BOND PLLC 

By.~·~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
Roderick C. Bond 
Ned A. Cannon 
Attorneys for Plaintiff Reed J. Taylor 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I, Roderick C. Bond, declare that, on the date indicated below, I served a true and correct 

copy of Reed Taylor's Response in Opposition to Connie Taylor's Motion and Request for 

Motion to Compel and Award of Attorneys' Fees and Costs and the Affidavit of Roderick C. 

Bond wi Exhibits on the following parties via the methods indicated below: 

David A. Gittins 
Law Office of David A. Gittins 
P.O. Box 191 
Clarkston, W A 99403 
Attorney for Defendants JoLee Duclos and 
Bryan Freeman 

Michael E. McNichols 
Clements Brown & McNichols 
321 13th Street 
Lewiston, ID 83501 
Attorney for R. John Taylor 

Jonathan D. Hally 
Clark & Feeney 
P.O. Box 285 
Lewiston, ID 83501 
Attorney for Connie Taylor, James Beck and 
Corrine Beck 

Gary D. Babbitt 
D. John Ashby 
Hawley Troxell Ennis & Hawley LLP 
877 Main Street, Suite 1000 
P.O. Box 1617 
Boise, Idaho 83701-1617 
Attorneys for AlA Services, AlA Insurance, and 
Crop USA Insurance Agency 

Via: 

( ) U.S. Mail, Postage Prepaid 
( ) Hand Delivered 
( ) Overnight Mail 
e ) Facsimile 
eX) Email (pdf attachment) 

Via: 

( ) U.S. Mail, Postage Prepaid 
( ) Hand Delivered 
( ) Overnight Mail 
( ) Facsimile 
(X) Email (pdf attachment) 

Via: 

( ) U.S. Mail, Postage Prepaid 
( ) Hand Delivered 
( ) Overnight Mail 
( ) Facsimile 
eX) Email (pdf attachment) 

Via: 

( ) U.S. Mail, Postage Prepaid 
( ) Hand Delivered 
( ) Overnight Mail 
( ) Facsimile 
eX) Email (pdf attachment) 
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] ames 1. Gatziolis 
Charles E. Harper 
Quarles & Brady LLP 
Citigroup Center, 500 West Madison Street 
Suite 3700 
Chicago,IL 60661-2511 
Attorneys for Crop USA Insurance Agency 

Via: 
( ) U.S. Mail, Postage Prepaid 
( ) Hand Delivered 
( ) Overnight Mail 
e ) Facsimile 
eX) Email (pdf attachment) 

Signed this 2ih day of December, 2007, at Lewiston, Idah . 

Roderick 
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RODERICK C. BOND 
NED A. CANNON, ISBA #2331 
SMITH, CANNON & BOND PLLC 

Attorneys for Plaintiff 
508 Eighth Street 
Lewiston, Idaho 83501 
Telephone: (208) 743-9428 
Fax: (208) 746-8421 

IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT OF THE STATE OF 
IDAHO, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF NEZ PERCE 

REED 1. TAYLOR, a single person, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

AlA SERVICES CORPORATION, an Idaho 
corporation; AlA INSURANCE, INC., an 
Idaho corporation; R. JOHN TAYLOR and 
CONNIE TAYLOR, individually and the 
community property comprised thereof; 
BRYAN FREEMAN, a single person; JOLEE 
DUCLOS, a single person; CROP USA 
INSURANCE AGENCY, INC., an Idaho 
Corporation; and JAMES BECK and 
CORRINE BECK, individually and the 
community property comprised thereof; 

Defendants. 

STATE OF IDAHO ) 
) ss: 

COUNTY OF NEZ PERCE ) 

AFFIDAVIT OF RODERICK C. BOND 
IN OPPOSITION TO CONNIE TAYLOR'S 
MOTION FOR PROTECTIVE ORDER AND IN 
SUPPORT OF ORDER TO COMPEL. .. -1 

Case No.: CV-07-00208 

AFFIDAVIT OF RODERICK C. BOND IN 
OPPOSITION TO CONNIE TAYLOR'S 
MOTION FOR PROTECTIVE ORDER AND 
IN SUPPORT OF ORDER COMPELLING 
DISCOVERY AND AWARD OF 
ATTORNEYS' FEES AND COSTS 
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I, Roderick C. Bond, being first duly sworn on oath, deposes and says: 

1. I am one of the attorneys for the Plaintiff Reed 1. Taylor in the above-entitled 

action. I make this Affidavit on my personal knowledge. 

2. Attached as Exhibit A is a copy of Reed Taylor's First Set of Requests for 

Production of Documents, First Set of Interrogatories and First Request for Admission, which 

were served on October 21,2007. 

3. On December 4, 2007, Reed Taylor was served with Connie Taylor's Responses 

and Objections to ,Reed Taylor's First Set of Requests for Production and First Set of 

Interrogatories. No documents were produced at this time and anytime thereafter. 

4. On December 6, 2007, I held an I.R.C.P. 37 conference with counsel for Connie 

Taylor. Mr. Hally refused to produce any documents or otherwise revise Connie Taylor's 

discovery responses. During the LR.C.P. 37 conference, Mr. Hally objected to Reed Taylor's 

. definition of "you" as it included friends. I advised Mr. Hally that Reed was trying to ensure that 

all responsive documents were produced to him and not just later produced at trial by Connie, 

and that Connie can state her objection and produce otherwise responsive documents to Reed 

Taylor's requests. Despite the discovery conference, Connnie Taylor failed to produce a single 

document to Reed Taylor's extensive requests for production and failed to answer 

interrogatories. 

5. Attached as Exhibit B is the board resolution in which Connie Taylor was 

appointed to the board of AlA Services and AlA Insurance on April 30, 2007. 
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6. Attached as Exhibit C is the Interlocutory Decree of Dissolution filed on 

December 16,2005, in which Connie Taylor and R. John Taylor were divorced. 

DATED: This 27'" day of December, 2007. a 
RodericK' C. Bon, 

!J 

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this 2ih day of December, 2007. 

AFFIDAVIT OF RODERICK C. BOND 

Notary Pu lie for Idaho 
Residing at: LCWf'E)hrrJ 
My commission expires: i/ 21/2.012. 
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Exhibit A 
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Roderick C. Bond 
Ned A. Carmon, ISBA #2331 
SMITH, CANNON & BOND PLLC 

Attorneys for Plaintiff 
508 Eighth Street 
Lewiston, Idaho 83501 
Telephone: (208) 743-9428 
Fax: (208) 746-8421 

Paul R. Cressman, Jr., ISBA #7563 
AHLERS & CRESSMAN PLLC 

Attorneys for Plaintiff 
999 Third Avenue, Suite 3100 
Seattle, Washington 98104-4088 
Telephone: (206) 287-9900 
Fax: (206) 287-9902 

IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT OF THE 
STATE OF IDAHO, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF NEZ PERCE 

REED J. TA YLOR, a single person, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

AlA SERVICES CORPORATION, an Idaho 
corporation; AlA INSURANCE, INC., an Idaho 
corporation; R. JOHN TAYLOR and CONNIE 
TAYLOR, individually and the community 
property comprised thereof; BRYAN 
FREEMAN, a single person; JOLEE DUCLOS, 
a single person; CROP USA INSURANCE 
AGENCY, INC., an Idaho Corporation; and 
JAMES BECK and CORRINE BECK, 
individually and the community property 
comprised thereof; 

Defendants. 
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TO: CONNIE TAYLOR, Defendant; and Jon Hally, her attorney. 

Plaintiff Reed Taylor submits the following Requests for Admission, Interrogatories and 

Requests for Production of Documents ("Requests" or "Request"). Pursuant to Rules 26, 33, 34 

and 36 of the Idaho Rules of Civil Procedure, you are required to provide Admissions, Answers 

and Responses (and requested documents) within thirty (30) days from the date of service. Each 

Request is required to be answered on the basis of your entire knowledge. You must furnish all 

requested information that is known by you (whether or not in your control or possession), 

possessed by you or any other party, available to you, or possessed or available to any of your 

attorneys, consultants, representatives, experts, or other agents and supplement such information 

as required under Civil Rules. Each Request for Admission must be answered in accordance 

with Civil Rules. Type the Admission, Answers and Responses in the spaces provided, adding 

additional pages if more space is required. Return the original to this office. 

1. DEFINITIONS 

A. The term "document" or "documents" shall mean and include, without limitation, 

the original (or any copy when the original is not available) unless otherwise stated, and any non-

identical copy (whether different from the original because of notes made on such copy or 

otherwise) or writings .of every kind and description whether inscribed by hand, mechanical, 

Dictaphone, electronic, magnetic, computer, PDA, microfilm, digital photographs, photographs 

or other means, as well as other phonic statements, conversations or events and including, but not 

limited to, any and all: papers, general ledgers, check registers, agreements (including 

modifications), contracts (including all modifications), letters, flow charts, court orders, court 
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stipulations, e-mails, e-mail attachments, electronic files, PDF files, OCR files, Tiff files, all 

electronic documents and files (including, without limitation, Microsoft Word, Microsoft Excel, 

Corel WordPerfect, Microsoft PowerPoint, Microsoft Publisher, and all other files or programs), 

website pages, website files, check requests, expense reports, adjusting journal entries, reports, 

cables, wire transfers, loan applications, credit applications, loan documents, appraisals, 
" 

valuations, loan closing documents, loan guarantees, checks, canceled checks, deposit slips, 

cashier's checks, copies of cashier's checks, wire transfer instructions or authorizations, 

interoffice memos, automatic deposits, automatic withdrawals, credit authorizations, account 

inquires, financial statements and balance sheets presented to any lender or prospective lender, 

opinion letters, valuations, appraisals, stock valuations or appraisals, spreadsheets, stock 

certificates, meeting minutes (including board of directors and advisory boards), board 

resolutions (including advisory boards), state or federal securities filings or forms (whether in 

paper or electronic form), all tax forms (including, without limitation, 1099, W-2 and W-4 

forms) prospectuses (including, without limitation I-A prospectuses), private placement 

memorandums, subscription agreements, shareholder resolutions, shareholder agreements, 

confidentiality agreements, employment agreements, non-compete agreements, accounting 

analyses, all papers and writings referencing any action taken by the board of directors or 

shareholders (including advisory boards), notes of board meetings or advisory board meetings, 

notes of office meetings, financial statements, balance sheets, statements, payroll documents, 

notes, memoranda, deeds, mortgages, deeds of trust, options, correspondence, telegrams, 

documents in employee files, commission reports, income statements, vouchers, estimates, 
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patents, books, planners, annual reports, correspondence, notes, training manuals or documents, 

manuals, employee handbooks, internal messages and memoranda, letters, demand letters, 

notices, reports, studies, invoices, compilations, studies, tables and tabulations, tallies, maps, 

telegrams, requests for information, records, diaries, reports, logs, photographs, illustrations, 

models, time sheets, administrative files, working papers, employee notebooks, accountant work 

papers, applications, account signature cards, letters of transmittal, fax cover sheets, account 

opening forms or related forms, laboratory data, press releases, option grants, brochures, 

vouchers, credit reports, credit applications, bond applications, proxies, voting agreements, 

bonds, bank account statements, drawings, estimates, bids, plaques, diagrams, plans, 

photographs, video tapes or recordings, audio tapes or recordings, plans, summaries, revisions, 

drafts, compilations, tallies, tables and tabulations, studies, maps, schedules, schedule updates, 

records, reports (including, without limitation, daily, weekly and monthly reports, diaries, and 

logs), computer stores or computer-readable data, computer print-outs, purchase orders, 

instruments, certificates, stock certificates, canceled stock certificates, bonds, documents that 

support any document or entries in any documents, documents that support the conclusions or 

opinions of any document, exhibits, journals, messages, emails and email attachments (including, 

without limitation, all emails, draft emails, emails or electronic attachments and/or files sent or 

received in an original, carbon copy or blind carbon copy form), electronic calendar entries and 

notes (e.g., Microsoft Outlook), expert witness reports, pleadings, deposition transcripts, hearing 

transcripts, admini'strative documents and transcripts, affidavits, declarations, any and all 

communications whatsoever, and any other writing of whatever description or form contained in 
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any storage device or in any computer although not yet printed, including documents stored on 

computer tape, back-up tapes or drives, computer runs, electronic files, computer cards, PDAs, 

disks, diskettes, email devices.laptopcomputers.CD-ROMS. Zip Disks, hard drives, removable 

storage device, flash drives, tape drives, removable and/or portable hard drives or storage device 

of any type, laptop and tablet computers, portable electronic devices, cell phones or any other 

storage device, carbon copy, photographic copy, preliminary tape, or all versions of any such 

materials the contents of which differ in any respect from the originals. If a document has been 

prepared in more than one copy, or if additional copies have been made, and the copies are not 

identical, or have undergone alteration, each non-identical copy must be produced. If a 

document has been lost, destroyed, or is otherwise unavailable, please list the document, state the 

status of the document (e.g., lost or destroyed), state the date the document was created or 

received, and state the subject matter of the document. 

B. The term "identify" when used with respect to a document, or the description or 

identification of a document, shall be deemed to include a request for the following information 

with respect to that document: 

1) The nature and substance of the document; 

2) The date, if any, which the document bears; 

3) The "identity" of the persons to whom the document is addressed; 

4) The "identity" of all persons having possession, custody, or control of 

each original or legible copy of the document. 
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C. The term "identity" or "identify," when used with respect to a person or entity or 

a request for the description or identification of a person or entity, shall be deemed to include a 

request for the following information with respect to such person: 

1) The person's or entity's name; 

2) The person's or entity's last known address; and 

3) The person's or entity's telephone number. 

D. The term "relating to" or "relate in any way" or "relates'.' or "pertains" or "pertain 

to" or "pertaining to" as used herein shall mean any document which is relevant in any way to 

the subject matter, including, without limitation to the foregoing, all documents which contain, 

record, reflect, summarize, evaluate, comment upon, transmit, or discuss the subject matter of 

any request, as well as drafts, work papers, or other preparation materials, exhibits shown or 

circulated at any meeting, the text or notes of any oral or written presentation or conversation. 

E. The term "person" shall include the plural as well as the singular and includes any 

natural person, group of natural persons acting as individuals, or groups of natural persons acting 

in collegial capacity, agency capacity, corporation, partnership, joint venture and any other 

incorporated or unincorporated business or social entity. 

F. The phrase "state with particularity" or the term "describe" means that you shall 

set forth every aspect of every fact, circumstance, act, omission, or course of conduct known to 

you, relating in any way to the matter inquired about. 

G. The term "produce" refers to the request for production of documents contained in 

these Requests for Production. 
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H. The terms "you" or "your" or "Connie Taylor" shall mean Connie Taylor and/or 

all of her representatives, spouses, friends, employees, agents, business managers, publicists, 

joint ventures, independent contractors, personal managers, attorneys (except with respect to 

privileged matters), accountants, auditors, consultants, expert witnesses, employees, managers, 

superintendents, and other entities or persons acting or purporting to act on her behalf, or 

persons, including entities, employed for any purpose whatsoever with respect to the subject 

matter of this litigation, regardless of whether or not still employed, contracted, or otherwise 

associated with Connie Taylor. 

1. The terms "R. John Taylor" or "John Taylor" shall mean R. John Taylor and/or all 

of his representatives, spouses, friends, employees, agents, business managers, publicists, joint 

ventures, entities in which you hold or have held an ownership interest, entities in which you 

have acted as a director or officer or advisory board member, partners, independent contractors, 

personal managers, attorneys (except with respect to privileged matters), accountants, auditors, 

consultants, expert witnesses, employees, managers, superintendents, and other entities or 

persons acting or purporting to act on his behalf, or persons, including entities, employed for any 

purpose whatsoever with respect to the subject matter of this litigation, regardless of whether or 

not still employed, contracted, or otherwise associated with R. John Taylor. 

J. The term "AlA Insurance" shall mean AlA Insurance, Inc. and/or all of its 

officers, directors, shareholders, advisory board members, representatives, employees, agents, 

business managers, publicists, subsidiaries, joint ventures, independent contractors, personal 

managers, attorneys (except with respect to privileged matters), accountants, auditors, 
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consultants, expert witnesses, employees, managers, superintendents, and other entities or 

persons acting or purporting to act on its behalf, or persons, including entities, employed for any 

purpose whatsoever with respect to the subject matter of this litigation, regardless of whether or 

not still employed, contracted, or otherwise associated with ALA Insurance. 

K. The term "AlA Services" shall mean AIA Services Corporation and/or all of its 

officers, directors, shareholders, advisory board members, representatives, employees, agents, 

business managers, publicists, subsidiaries, joint ventures, independent contractors, personal 

managers, attorneys (except with respect to privileged matters), accountants, auditors, 

consultants, expert witnesses, employees, managers, superintendents, and other entities or 

persons acting or purporting to act on its behalf, or persons, including entities, employed for any 

purpose whatsoever with respect to the subject matter of this litigation, regardless of whether or 

not stilI employed, contracted, or otherwise associated with AlA Services Corporation. 

L. The term "Crop USA" shall mean Crop USA Insurance Agency, Inc. and/or all of 

its officers, directors, shareholders, advisory board members, representatives, employees, agents, 

business managers, publicists, subsidiaries, joint ventures, independent contractors, personal 

managers, attorneys (except with respect to privileged matters), accountants, auditors, 

consultants, expert witnesses, employees, managers, superintendents, and other entities or 

persons acting or purporting to act on your behalf, or persons, including entities, employed for 

any purpose whatsoever with respect to the subject matter of this litigation, regardless of whether 

or not still employed, contracted, or otherwise associated with Crop USA. 
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M. The singular of any word, term or number includes the plural, and the plural 

includes the singular. 

N. Words or terms in the masculine gender include the feminine and neuter. 

O. If you claim privilege or work product protection for any document, identify each 

such document and, with respect to each document, state the specific basis for the claim of 

privilege or protection, and provide the following information: 

1. The subject matter of each document. 
2. The title, heading, or caption of each document, if any. 
3. The identifying number(s), letter(s) or combination thereof, if any, and the 

significance or meaning of such number(s), letter(s) or combination thereof 
4. The date appearing on each document or, if no date appears thereon, the date or 

approximate date on which the document was prepared. 
S. The general nature and description of each document and the number of pages of 

which it consists. 
6. The identity of the person who signed each document and, if it was not signed, the 

identity of each person who prepared it. 
7. The identity of each person to whom each document was addressed and the identity 

of each person to whom a copy was sent. 
8. The identity of each person with custody of a copy of each such document. 
9. ANY OBJECTION WHICH IS NOT SO ASSERTED MAY BE DEEMED 

WAIVED. 

P. If you claim privilege or work product protection for any conversation or 

communication, provide the following information with respect to each such conversation or 

communication: 

1. Date of the conversation or communication. 
2. The identity of each participant. 
3. The place(s) where the conversation took place. 
4. The general nature of the conversation or communication. 
S. Specific basis for the claim of privilege or protection. 
6. The identity of each document relating to the conversation or communication. 
7. If you object to answering only part of any Discovery Request, specify the part to 

which you object and answer the remainder. 
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8. ANY OBJECTION WHICH IS NOT SO ASSERTED MAYBE DEEMED 
WAIVED. 

2. REQUESTS ARE CONTINUING / TIME PERIOD 

These Requests are ongoing, and you have a duty to supplement and provide additional 

information as it becomes available to you. Unless otherwise specified, these Requests cover the 

time period from January 1, 1995, through the date that this litigation is concluded. 

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO.1: Produce all documents (See above defmition for 

"documents" e.g., notes, emails, electronic files, canceled checks, statements, agreements, 

correspondence, letters, expert witness reports, etc.) that evidence, refer, or relate in any way to 

any payments or loans of funds, assets, labor, or services that you or any entity in which have 

hold or have held an ownership interest have received from AlA Services, ALA Insurance or 

Crop USA. 

RESPONSE: 

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO.2: Produce all documents (See above definition for 

"documents" e.g., notes, emails, electronic files, canceled checks, statements, agreements, 

correspondence, letters, expert witness reports, etc.) that evidence, refer, or relate in any way to 

all notes of communications, communications, agreements, transactions, or correspondence 

between you and any advisory board or member of any advisory board of ALA Services, ALA 

Insurance or Crop USA or involve any advisory board meeting, decision, resolution or minutes 
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of any meeting, decision, or resolution thereof. 

RESPONSE: 

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO.3: Produce all documents (See above definition for 

"documents" e.g., notes, emaiis, electronic files, canceled checks, statements, agreements, 

correspondence, letters, expert witness reports, etc.) that have been provided to your attorney or 

received from your attorney that relate in any way to the subject matter of this litigation or the 

parties to this litigation (Please note that all documents that you assert are privileged must be 

specifically listed and addressed in a privilege log). 

RESPONSE: 

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO.4: Produce all documents (See above definition for 

"documents" e.g., notes, emails, electronic files, canceled checks, statements, agreements, 

correspondence, letters, expert witness reports, etc.) that evidence, refer, or relate in any way to 

any insurance policies which may have coverage (whether or not such coverage was accepted or 

denied) for directors or officers of ALA Insurance, ALA Services, or Crop USA (including 

policies and correspondence to or from all such insurance companies). 

RESPONSE: 
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INTERROGATORY NO.1: State with particularity all facts (e.g., the amount or value, date of 

payment or use, name of entity or person, reason for payment or use, etc.) pertaining to the 

payment or use of AlA Services or AlA Insurance's labor, services, accounts, credit, loan 

guarantees, loans, office space, funds, or assets to R. John Taylor, Crop USA or any entity in 

which you or R. John Taylor hold or have held an ownership interest. 

ANSWER: 

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO.5: Produce all documents (See above definition for 

"documents" e.g., notes, emails, electronic files, canceled checks, statements, agreements, 

correspondence, letters, expert witness reports, etc.) that evidence, refer, or relate in any way to 

the information requested or provided by you in the preceding Interrogatory. 

RESPONSE: 

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO.6: Produce all of your tax returns and the tax returns of 

all privately held entities in which you hold or have held an ownership interest, together with all 

related documents (including, without limitation, all schedules, forms, attachments, and/or 

exhibits to your tax returns) for the 1995 tax year through the 2007 tax year. 

RESPONSE: 

PLAINTIFF'S FIRST REQUESTS FOR 
PRODUCTION, FIRST 
INTERROGATORIES, AND FIRST 
ADMISSIONS TO CONNIE T AYLOR - 12 

AFFIDAVIT OF RODERICK C. BOND IN OPPOSITION TO CONNIE TA YLOR'S MOTION FOR 
PROTECTIVE ORDER AND IN SUPPORT OF ORDER TO COMPEL. .. /73Z-



REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO.7: Produce all documents (See above definition for 

"documents" e.g., notes, emails, electronic files, canceled checks, statements, agreements, 

correspondence, letters, expert witness reports, etc.) that evidence, refer, or relate in any way to 

all agreements or arrangements of any type between you and Crop USA, ALA Services, ALA 

Insurance, or any other entity in which you hold or have held an ownership interest. 

RESPONSE: 

INTERROGATORY NO.2: Provide a list of all loans or credit arrangements of any type used 

by you or any entity in which you hold or have held an ownership interest that were guaranteed 

or provided by AlA Insurance or ALA Services (or both), induding, without limitation, any loans 

or credit arrangements guaranteed by AlA Insurance or ALA Services (or both) since 1995. For 

each such loan or credit arrangement, state the amount of credit available under each loan or 

credit arrangement, the purpose of each loan or credit arrangement, the financial institution or 

creditor who made each loan or credit arrangement, and the present balance of each loan or 

credit arrangement. 

ANSWER: 

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO.8: Produce all documents pertaining to damages 

incurred by you or any of the defendants in this action or for the calculation or detennination of 
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any damages. 

RESPONSE: 

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO.9: Produce all documents (See above definition for 

"documents" e.g., notes, emails, electronic files, canceled checks, statements, agreements, 

correspondence, letters, expert witness reports, etc.) that evidence, refer, or relate in any way to 

the information requested or provided by you in the preceding Interrogatory (including, without 

limitation, all documents provided to or received from any lending party, creditor, or financial 

institution, e.g., documents held in the lenders file that were provided by you such as financial 

statements, loan applications, account opening forms, balance sheets, etc.). 

RESPONSE: 

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 10: Produce all documents (See above definition for 

"documents" e.g., notes, emails, bank statements, loan statements, electronic files, canceled 

checks, statements, agreements, correspondence, letters, expert witness reports, etc.) that 

evidence, refer, or relate in any way to your contention that Reed Taylor did not have the right to 

vote the shares of AlA Insurance on February 1,2007. 

RESPONSE: 
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REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 12: Produce all documents (See above definition for 

"documents" e.g., notes, emails, electronic files, canceled checks, statements, agreements, 

correspondence, letters, expert witness reports, etc.) that evidence, refer, or relate in any way to 

your receipt of proceeds, dividends, distributions, loans, compensation or the cost of benefits of 

any type or nature provided to you by AlA Services, AlA Insurance, Crop USA, Pacific Empire 

Holdings Corporation, Pacific Empire Radio Corporation, Pacific Empire Communications 

Corporation, and all other entities in which you or R. John Taylor hold or have held an 

ownership interest. 

RESPONSE: 

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 11: Produce all documents (See above definition for 

"documents" e.g., notes, emails, electronic files, canceled checks, statements, agreements, 

correspondence, letters, expert witness reports, etc.) that evidence, refer, or relate in any way to 

all opinion letters relating in any way to AlA Services, AlA Insurance, or Crop USA (including, 

without limitation, opinion letters from attorneys to lenders, attorneys to accountants, opinion 

letters from accountants or auditors, or opinion letters from auditors or accountants to you, AlA 

Services, AlA Insurance, Crop USA, or any of their/your attorneys, agents, officers, directors, 

advisory board members or accountants). 

RESPONSE: 

PLAINTIFF'S FIRST REQUESTS FOR 
PRODUCTION, FIRST 
INTERROGATORIES, AND FIRST 
ADMISSIONS TO CONNIE TAYLOR -15 

AFFIDAVIT OF RODERlCK C. BOND IN OPPOSITION TO CONNIE TAYLOR'S MOTION FOR 
PROTECTIVE ORDER AND IN SUPPORT OF ORDER TO COMPEL. .. 1735 



INTERROGATORY NO.3: State with particularity the details and facts pertaining to your 

counterclaim(s), if any, against Reed Taylor and cross claims against any of the other defendants 

in this action: For each counterclaim and cross claim, state the date the counterclaim or cross 

claim accrued, provide a breakdown of all damages (including all components), provide the legal 

basis for each damage component, identify the persons who are witnesses to each counterclaim 

and cross claim together with the applicable damages, and state with particularity the knowledge 

held by each such person as to each of your counterclaims and cross claims. 

RESPONSE: 

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 12: Produce all documents (See above definition for 

"documents" e.g., notes, emails, electronic files, canceled checks, statements, agreements, 

correspondence, letters, expert witness reports, etc.) that evidence, refer, or relate in any way to 

the information requested or provided by you in the preceding Interrogatory. 

RESPONSE: 

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 13: Produce all documents (See above definition for 

"documents" e.g., notes, emails, electronic files, canceled checks, statements, agreements, 

correspondence, letters, expert witness reports, etc.) that evidence, refer, or relate in any way to 

any notes of communications, communications, or correspondence between you or any other 
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person or entity in which you act as an officer, or director and Alan Coalson (or any entity or 

firm relating in any way to Alan C. Coalson, e.g., BOO Seidman or Alan C. Coalson CPA PS). 

RESPONSE: 

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 14: Produce all documents (See above definition for 

"documents" e.g., notes, emails, electronic files, canceled checks, statements, agreements, 

correspondence, letters, expert witness reports, etc.) that evidence, refer, or relate in any way to 

any valuation reports or appraisals performed to value the Series C Preferred Shares of AlA 

Services, including, without limitation, appraisals and valuations specifically conducted for AlA 

Insurance's purchase of the Preferred C Shares of AlA Services from Crop USA. 

RESPONSE: 

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 15: Produce all documents (See above defmition for 

"documents" e.g., notes, emails, electronic files, canceled checks, statements, agreements, 

correspondence, letters, expert witness reports, etc.) that evidence, refer, or relate in any way to 

private placement memorandums, securities filings or forms (state or federal, electronic form or 

paper), prospectuses, i-A prospectuses, forms filed with the Securities and Exchange 

Commission, state agency, and/or any other document relating in any way to securities or the 

sale or purchase of securities (shares of stock, bonds or any other security) of AlA Services, AlA 
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Insurance, or Crop USA. 

RESPONSE: 

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 16: Produce all documents (See above definition for 

"documents" e.g., notes, emails, electronic files, canceled checks, statements, agreements, 

agreements, correspondence, letters, expert witness reports, etc.) that evidence, refer, or relate in 

any way to your acquisition, purchase, exchange, transfer, or sale of shares or assets of Crop 

USA (and any portion thereof), including, without limitation, copies of all stock certificates, 

subscription agreements, purchase agreements, sale agreements, appraisals, and all related 

documents. 

RESPONSE: 

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 17: Produce all documents (See above definition for 

"documents" e.g., notes, emails, electronic files, canceled checks, statements, agreements, 

agreements, correspondence, letters, expert witness reports, etc.) that evidence, refer, or relate in 

any way to your acquisition, purchase, exchange, transfer, or sale of shares or assets of AlA 

Services (or any portion thereof), including, without limitation, copies of all stock certificates, 

subscription agreements, purchase agreements, sale agreements, appraisals, and all related 

documents. 
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RESPONSE: 

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 18: Produce all documents (See above definition for 

"documents" e.g., notes, emails, electronic files, canceled checks, statements, agreements, 

agreements, correspondence, letters, expert witness reports, etc.) that evidence, refer, or relate in 

any way to your acquisition, purchase, exchange, transfer, or sale of shares or assets of any entity 

in which R. John Taylor holds or has held an ownership interest (or any portion thereof), 

including, without limitation, copies of all stock certificates, subscription agreements, purchase 

agreements, sale agreements, appraisals, and all related documents. 

RESPONSE: 

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 19: Produce all documents (See above definition for 

"documents" e.g., notes, emails, electronic files, canceled checks, statements, agreements, 

agreements, correspondence, letters, expert witness reports, etc.) that evidence, refer, or relate in 

any way to your acquisition, purchase, exchange, transfer, or sale of shares or assets of any 

privately held entity in which you hold or have held an ownership interest (or any portion 

thereof), including, without limitation, copies of all stock certificates, subscription agreements, 

purchase agreements, sale agreements, appraisals, and all related documents. 

RESPONSE: 
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REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 20: Produce all documents (See above definition for 

"documents" e.g., notes, emails, electronic files, canceled checks, statements, agreements, 

agreements, correspondence, letters, expert witness reports, etc.) that evidence, refer, or relate in 

any way to your acquisition, purchase, exchange, transfer, or sale of shares or assets of Pacific 

Empire Holdings Corporation (or any portion thereof), including, without limitation, copies of all 

stock certificates, subscription agreements, purchase agreements, sale agreements, appraisals, 

and all related documents. 

RESPONSE: 

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 21: Produce all documents (See above definition for 

"documents" e.g., notes, emails, electronic files, canceled checks, statements, agreements, 

agreements, correspondence, letters, expert witness reports, etc.) that evidence, refer, or relate in 

any way to your acquisition, purchase, exchange, transfer, or sale of shares or assets of Pacific 

Empire Radio Corporation (or any portion thereof), including, without limitation, copies of all 

stock certificates, subscription agreements, purchase agreements, sale agreements, appraisals, 

and all related documents. 

RESPONSE: 
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REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 22: Produce all documents (See above definition for 

"documents" e.g., notes, emails, electronic files, canceled checks, statements, agreements, 

agreements, correspondence, letters, expert witness reports, etc.) that evidence, refer, or relate in 

any way to your acquisition, purchase, exchange, transfer, or sale of shares or assets of Pacific 

Empire Communications Corporation (or any portion thereof), including, without limitation, 

copies of all stock certificates, subscription agreements, purchase agreements, sale agreements, 

appraisals, and all related documents. 

RESPONSE: 

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 23: Produce all documents (See above definition for 

"documents" e.g., notes, emails, electronic files, canceled checks, statements, agreements, 

agreements, correspondence, letters, expert witness reports, etc.) that evidence, refer, or relate in 

any way to your acquisition, purchase, exchange, transfer, or sale of shares or assets of Radio 

Leasing, LLC (or any portion thereof), including, without limitation, copies of all stock 

certificates, subscription agreements, purchase agreements, sale agreements, appraisals, and all 

related documents. 

RESPONSE: 

PLAINTIFF'S FIRST REQUESTS FOR 
PRODUCTION, FIRST 
INTERROGATORIES, AND FIRST 
ADMISSIONS TO CONNIE TAYLOR - 21 

AFFIDAVIT OF RODERlCK C. BOND IN OPPOSITION TO CONNIE TAYLOR'S MOTION FOR 
PROTECTIVE ORDER AND IN SUPPORT OF ORDER TO COMPEL. .. 

)7L// 



REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 24: Produce all documents (See above definition for 

"documents" e.g., notes, emails, electronic files, canceled checks, statements, agreements, 

agreements, correspondence, letters, expert witness reports, etc.) that evidence, refer, or relate in 

any way to your acquisition, purchase, exchange, transfer, or sale of shares or assets of Radio 

Leasing II, LLC (or any portion thereof), including, without limitation, copies of all stock 

certificates, subscription agreements, purchase agreements, sale agreements, appraisals, and all 

related documents. 

RESPONSE: 

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 25: Produce all documents (See above definition for 

"documents" e.g., notes, emails, electronic files, canceled checks, statements, agreements, 

agreements, correspondence, letters, expert witness reports, etc.) that evidence, refer, or relate in 

any way to your acquisition, purchase, exchange, transfer, or sale of shares or assets of Crop 

USA Financial LLC (or any portion thereof), including, without limitation, copies of all stock 

certificates, subscription agreements, purchase agreements, sale agreements, appraisals, and all 

related documents. 

RESPONSE: 
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REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 26: Produce all documents (See above definition for 

"documents" e.g., notes, emails, canceled checks, statements, agreements, agreements, electronic 

files, correspondence, letters, expert witness reports, etc.) that evidence, refer, or relate in any 

way to financial statements prepared by you, prepared on your behalf, or submitted to any of 

your lenders, financial institutions, prospective lenders or creditors, or any other party. 

RESPONSE: 

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 27: Produce all documents (See above definition for 

"documents" e.g., notes, emails, electronic files, canceled checks, statements, agreements, 

agreements, correspondence, letters, expert witness reports, etc.) that evidence, refer, or relate in 

any way to all Joint Defense Agreements or any other defense agreement or arrangement of any 

type pertaining to any individual, joint or combined legal representation of you or any of the 

defendants in this lawsuit. 

RESPONSE: 

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 28: Produce all documents (See above definition for 

"documents" e.g., notes, emails, electronic files, canceled checks, statements, agreements, 

agreements, correspondence, letters, expert witness reports, etc.) that have not been produced by 

AlA Insurance or AlA Services that evidence, refer, or relate in any way to the $15 Million line 
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of credit loan to Crop USA from Lancelot Investors Fund, L.P. dated October 27, 2006, and all 

modifications and extensions of such loan (including, without limitation, all correspondence 

pertaining to such loan, defaults, all negotiations for such loan or post-closing negotiations or 

communications) . 

RESPONSE: 

REQUEST FOR ADMISSION NO.1: Admit that it was a violation of the Articles of 

Amendment to the Articles of Incorporation of AlA Services, filed May 8, 1996, for AlA 

Insurance, as a subsidiary of AlA Services, to guarantee the $15 Million line of credit loan to 

Crop USA from Lancelot Investors Fund, L.P., dated October 27, 2006. 

RESPONSE: 

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 29: If your Response to the preceding Request for 

Admission is anything other than an unequivocal admission, produce all documents (See above 

definition for "documents" e.g., notes, emails, electronic files, canceled checks, statements, 

agreements, correspondence, letters, expert witness reports, etc.) that evidence, refer, or relate in 

any way to your Response or the basis for your Response to the preceding Request for 

Admission. 

RESPONSE: 
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INTERROGATORY NO.4: Identify all of your past or present ownership interests in any 

business or entity stating with particularity the acquisition date of each such interest, the 

acquisition cost of each interest, the number of shares acquired in each instance, units or amount 

of interest acquired in each instance, and the person or entity from which each such interest was 

acquired (this Interrogatory includes, without limitation, shares of stock in Crop USA, shares of 

stock in any other entity, partnership interests, options to purchase, LLC units, sole 

proprietorship businesses and all other ownership interests). 

ANSWER: 

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 30: Produce all documents (See above definition for 

"documents" e.g., notes, emails, electronic files, stock certificates, canceled checks, statements, 

agreements, correspondence, letters, expert witness reports, etc.) that evidence, refer, or relate in 

any way to the information requested or provided by you in the preceding Interrogatory, 

including, without limitation, all stock certificates, subscription agreements, purchase 

agreements, sale agreements, appraisals, options, contracts providing options to purchase. 

RESPONSE: 

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 31: Produce all documents (See above definition for 

"documents" e.g., notes, emails, electronic files, canceled checks, statements, agreements, 
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correspondence, letters, expert witness reports, etc.) that evidence, refer, or relate in any way to 

meetings, resolutions or any other decisions (including minutes thereof) of advisory boards of 

ALA Insurance, ALA Services or Crop USA. 

RESPONSE: 

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 32: Produce all documents (See above definition for 

"documents" e.g., notes, emails, electronic files, canceled checks, statements, agreements, 

correspondence, letters, expert witness reports, etc.) that evidence, refer, or relate in any way to 

meetings, resolutions or any other decisions (including minutes thereof) of the board of directors 

of ALA Insurance, ALA Services, or Crop USA. 

RESPONSE: 

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 33: Produce all documents (See above definition for 

"documents" e.g., notes, emails, electronic files, canceled checks, statements, agreements, 

correspondence, letters, expert witness reports, etc.) that have not been produced by ALA 

Services or ALA Insurance that evidence, refer, or relate in any way to meetings, resolutions or 

any other decisions (including minutes thereof) of the board or directors of ALA Insurance, ALA 

Services, or Crop USA. 

RESPONSE: 
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REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 34: Produce all documents (See above definition for 

"documents" e.g., notes, emails, electronic fIles, canceled checks, statements, agreements, 

correspondence, letters, expert witness reports, etc.) that have not been produced by AlA 

Services or AlA Insurance that evidence, refer, or relate in any way to attorneys, auditors or 

accountants who were involved in any way (or rendered any opinions, agreements or 

correspondence from or to any such attorneys, auditors or accountants) to AlA Insurance's 

purchase of the Preferred C Shares of AlA Services from Crop USA in 2004 or the exchange of 

the same Preferred C Shares of AlA Services to common shares of Crop USA before the 2004 

transaction. 

RESPONSE: 

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 35: Produce all documents (See above definition for 

"documents" e.g., notes, emails, electronic files, canceled checks, statements, agreements, 

correspondence, letters, expert witness reports, etc.) that that have not been produced by AlA 

Insurance or AlA Services that evidence, refer, or relate in any way to appraisals or valuations 

performed or provided for AlA Services, AlA Insurance or Crop USA, including, without 

limitation, appraisals or valuations of any entire company, block or blocks of business, book or 

books of business, common shares, preferred shares, or any other asset. 

RESPONSE: 
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REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 36: Produce all documents (See above definition for 

"documents" e.g., notes, emails, electronic files, canceled checks, statements, agreements, 

correspondence, letters, expert witness reports, etc.) that have not been produced by ALA 

Services or ALA Insurance that evidence, refer, or relate in any way to all management or 

administrative agreements or other business agreements or arrangements between AlA Insurance 

andlor ALA Services and Crop USA or any other entity in which you hold or have held an 

ownership interest. 

RESPONSE: 

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 37: Produce all documents (See above definition for 

"documents" e.g., notes, emails, electronic files, canceled checks, statements, agreements, 

correspondence, letters, expert witness reports, etc.) that have not been produced by ALA 

Services or AlA Insurance that evidence, refer, or relate in any way to allocations of expenses, 

labor, funds, costs, services, or rent between AIA Services or AIA Insurance and any other 

person or entity in which you hold or have held an ownership interest (including, without 

limitation, Crop USA, Pacific Empire Holdings Corporation, Pacific Empire Radio Corporation, 

and Pacific Empire Communications Corporation). 

RESPONSE: 
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REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 38: Produce all documents (See above definition for 

"documents" e.g., notes, emails, electronic files, canceled checks, statements, agreements, 

correspondence, letters, expert witness reports, etc.) that evidence, refer, or relate in any way to 

agreements, contracts, leases, rental agreements, or other arrangements between you or any 

entity in which you hold or have held an ownership interest and AlA Services, AlA Insurance, 

Crop USA or any other entity in which you hold or have held an ownership interest. 

RESPONSE: 

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 39: Produce all documents (See above definition for 

"documents" e.g., notes, emails, electronic files, canceled checks, statements, agreements, 

correspondence, letters, expert witness reports, etc.) that evidence, refer, or relate in any way to 

the fairness of all transactions involving Crop USA or AlA Services or ALA Insurance and you, 

R. John Taylor, Pacific Empire Holdings Corporation, Pacific Empire Radio Corporation, 

Empire Communications Corporation or any other entity in which you or R. John Taylor hold or 

have held an ownership interest, including, without limitation, all documents evidencing, 

indicating and/or supporting your contention that such transactions were not in bad faith, did not 

involve self-dealing, were anus-length transactions, and/or were conducted in accordance with 

appropriate corporate governance practices involving interested directors, shareholders and/or 

officers. 

RESPONSE: 
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REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 40: Produce all documents (See above definition for 

"documents" e.g., notes, emails, electronic files, canceled checks, statements, agreements, 

correspondence, letters, expert witness reports, etc.) that evidence, refer, or relate in any way to 

any communications, notes of communications, correspondence, or agreements between you and 

Marcus McNabb. 

RESPONSE: 

REQUEST FOR ADMISSION NO.2: Admit that AlA Services or AlA Insurance has 

guaranteed a loan for an entity in which you hold or have held an ownership interest (from 

August 1,1995, through the present). 

RESPONSE: 

INTERROGATORY NO.5: If your Response to the preceding Request for Admission is an 

admission, provide the name and address of each lender, the amount of each loan, the date of 

each loan, and the present balance of each loan. 

ANSWER: 
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